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WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LTD.

April 25, 2007
REPORT OF RESULTS
National Instrument 31-102 — Continuons Disclosure Obligations

Section 11.3

Matters Voted Upon

Description of Matter Outcome of Vote

. The election of the following nominees as Carried (no ballot)
directors of West Fraser until the close of
the next Annual General Meeting.

(a) Henry H. Ketcham
(b} Clark S. Binkley

(¢) J. Duncan Gibson
(d) Willhiam H. Ketcham
(e} William P. Ketcham
(f) Harald H. Ludwig
(g) Brian F. MacNeill
(h) Robert L. Phillips
(i) Janice G. Rennie

2. The appointment of Carried (no ballot)
PricewaterhouseCoopers. LLP. Chartered
Accountants, as auditors of West Fraser to '
hold office until close of the next Annual
General Meeting and authorizing the
directors to fix the auditor’s remuncration.

3. Toamend the Stock Option Plan to increase by 1.5 million the number of Common shares

that may be issued under share purchasc options granted under the Stock Option Plan.

Votes For % Votes For Voles Against % Votes Against

21.230.188 79 5,745,169 21

16073491



-2.

4. To amend the Stock Option Plan to add certain limits on the number of share purchase
options that may be issued to insiders of the Company, establish certain restrictions on
future amendments without sharcholder approval, provide for automatic extensions of
option terms that expire during blackout periods and certain incidental amendments.

Votes For % Votes For Votes Against Y% Votes Against

22.038.713 82 4,931,471 18

1607345.1
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ITYTD

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the unaudited interim conso!fgatedrffhaﬁcfaf /“, .g; 2 3
statements included in this quarterly report and Managememn!’s Discussion & Analysis included in the Company's 2006
annual report. The figures are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated. Additional information Ty TION,.
relating to the Company, including the Company’s Amnual Information Form is available on SEDAR.at Mvw.sgdar._cgrrli.-' B '_,{_‘,; Fa

I

This report of management’s discussion and analysis contains historical information, descriptions of current
circumstances and statements about polential future developments. The latter, which are forward-looking statements,
are presented to provide reasonable guidance to the reader but the accuracy of these sltatements depends on a
number of assumplions and is subject to various risks and uncertainties. These include, but are not limited to,
uncertainties associated with the effect of general economic conditions on demand for the Company’s products, foreign
exchange rate flucluations, trade sanctions, the availability of fibre and changes in stumpage fees, competition,
operational curtaitments and lransportation limitations, natural disasters, insect infestation, the effects of forestry, land
use, envirommental and other governmenl laws and regulations, First Nations claims and the ability of the Company to
execule its business plans. These statements are not guaranteed by the Company and aclual outcomes and resulls
may differ materially from those anlicipated or projected. Accordingly, readers should exercise caution in relying upon
forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements
to reflect subsequen! events or circumstances.

Throughout this repon, reference is made fo EBITDA (defined as operating earnings plus amortization and resiructuring
charges), which the Company considers to be a key performance indicator. EBITDA is not a generally accepted
earnings measure and should not be considered as an allernative to eamings or cash flows as determined in
accordance with Canadian generally accepled accounting principles. As there is no standardized method of calculating
EBITDA, the Company's use of the term may not be directly comparable with similarly litted measures used by other
companies.

The information in this report is as at April 23, 2007, uniess otherwise indicated.

U.S. Sawmill Acquisition

On March 31, 2007, the Company acquired 13 sawmills from International Paper Company and
became the second largest lumber producer in North America with an annual capacity of
approximately 6.2 billion board feet. The 13 mills, which are located in North and South
Carolina, Georgia, Florida, Alabama, Arkansas and Texas, employ approximately 2,200 people
and have a combined annual production capacity of approximately 1.8 billion board feet of
southern yellow pine ("SYP") lumber.

Operating activities of the acquired sawmills prior to March 31, 2007 were managed by and for
the benefil of the previous owner and are not reflected in the financial results covered by this

report.

Transaction Terms

The preliminary purchase price after taking into account estimated transaction expenses and
the termination of two long-lerm pulp supply contracts is $390 million (US $337 million). Further
adjusimenis 1o the purchase price may be made pursuant to the agreement of purchase and

sale.

The transaclion includes the assignment of multi-year market-price log supply agreements
which are expected o provide, in aggregate, approximately 15% of the acquired mills’ current
log requirements. West Fraser also entered into long-term agreements to sell residual wood
chips at market prices. The transaction resulted in the termination of two supply contracts for
170,000 tonnes of NBSK pulp per year, which were entered into as part of West Fraser's 2004
acquisition of Weldwood of Canada Limiled ("Weldwood"). The termination of these contracts is
not expected to have a material impact on West Fraser's pulp operations.

Financing, Synergies and Current Operations
The acquisition was financed with cash on hand, available lines of credit and a $100 million
term loan which is payable at the Company's option on or before March 31, 2010.
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West Fraser has established US $23 million in annual pre-tax synergies as a target lo be
realized by the end of the third year after the completion of the acquisition. Synergies are
expected o be achieved by implementing best practices and by centralizing U.S. sales and
administrative offices.

Softwood Lumber Agreement

The Softwood Lumber Agreement (the "SLA 2006") came into force on Oclober 12, 2006.
Under the SLA 2006, the Canadian provinces were required 10 choose one of two options with
respect to lumber shipments to the U.5.: to pay to the Canadian government either a variable
export tax based on price or a lower variable export tax but subject to a quota on total
shipmenis. B.C. and Alberta elected the exporl tax only option, which results in West Fraser's
Canadian lumber operations betng subject to the following export laxes:

Prevailing price’ Export Tax {%)
Over US $355 Nil
US $336 - §£355 5
US $316 - $335 10
US $315 or under 15

. Based on Random Lenglhs Framing Lumber Composite Price (the “Reference Price™).

pry

The export tax rate is set monthly based on a four-week average Reference Price that is
published 21 days prior to the start of any given month.'Shipments to the U.S. from B.C. and
Alberia during the first quarter of 2007 resulted in a 15“7? export lax being incurred.

Also, if monthly shipments from the B.C. Interior region or from Alberta (as export tax-only
regions) exceed a certain trigger volume as defined in the SLA 2008, a surge mechanism (the
“Surge”) will result in a 50% increase in the applicable export tax rate for that month. The Surge
is calculated monthly based on trailing estimated U.S. lumber consumption. For the first quarter
of 2007 the Canadian government determined that the Surge did not apply.

The United States government has asserted that, for the purposes of the Surge calculation,
lumber consumption levels should be based on actuat rather than estimated consumption and
that this adjustment mechanism should also apply to export tax-only regions. If this position
prevailed, the B.C. Interior region could be subject to tth Surge adjustment. This issue is now
the subject of consultations between the two governments and could be referred to arbitration
under the SLA 2006. We believe the Canadian position will prevail, however, if the Surge
adjustment applies the Company would incur additional export taxes of approximalely $3
million for each month of Surge.



Revenue & Earnings Comparison

Q1-2007 Q4 — 2006 Q1 - 2006

Production
Lumber - MMfbm 994 910 1,136
MDF — MMsft (3/4” basis) 68 67 71
Plywood - MMsf (3/8” basis) 186 172 184
LVL — Mcf 750 655 781
BCTMP - Mtonnes 139 138 140
NBSK — Mtonnes 118 141 141
Linerboard and Kraft Paper — Mtonnes 105 117 120
Newsprint — Mtonnes 32 31 32
Shipments
Lumber — MMfbm 956 1,000 1,098
MDF — MMsf (3/4" basis) 75 55 78
Plywood — MMsf (3/8” basis) . 157 163 175
LVL - Mcf ' 707 526 751
BCTMP - Mtonnes 139 108 163
NBSK — Mtonnes 119 136 145
Linerboard and Kraft Paper — Mtonnes 110 114 124
Newsprint — Mtonnes 30 29 32
Financial Highlights ($ millions)
Sales 759 727 902
EBITDA 41 427 115
Amaortization (62) (69) (62)
Restructuring charge - - {38)
Operating earnings (21) 358 15
Interest income on duty refund - 50 -
Interest expense - net (2) {7) (10)
Exchange gain (Joss} on long-term debt 3 (14) M
Other income 12 46 6
Recovery (provision) for income {axes 3 (137) 4)
Earnings ! (5) 296 6
$CDN/$US — average 117 1.14 1.16
Selected Quarterly Information
{$ millions, except earnings per share ("EPS") amounts which are in $)

Q1-07 Q406 Q3-06 Q2-06 Q106 Q4-056 Q3-05 Q2-05
Sales 759 727 809 888 902 832 890 953
Earnings {5) 296 (8} 104 6 S 18 38
Basic EPS - § {0.12) 6.93 (0.19) 243 0.14 0.20 0.42 0.89
Diluted EPS - $ {0.12) 6.87 (0.19) 2.41 0.14 0.20 0.42 0.88

Operating earnings in the quarter improved by $8 million from the fourth quarter of 2008,
ignoring the effect of the $387 miflion duty refund received in that quarter, primarily due to
higher SPF, plywood, pulp, linerboard and kraft paper prices. The increase was partially offset
by a log inventory write-down of $18 million and lower production velumes at the Hinton and
Kitimat mills which resuited in higher costs per tonne.




Operating earnings in the quarter declined by $36 million from the first quarter of 2006
reflecting lower lumber prices and the log inventory writedown as well as higher costs at the
Kitimat mili. This earnings reduction was partially offset by improved pricing for pulp, linerboard
and kraft paper. The Company's results for the first quarter of 2006 also included a $38 million
Hinton pulp restructuring charge.

Administration expense of §21 million was $12 million lower than the fourth quarter of 2006 and
$9 million lower than the first quarter of 2006 due primarily to an $8 million adjustment to
incentive compensation accrued at December 31, 2006. Administration expense for the quarter
includes a share option expense of $2 million compared to a $5 million expense in the fourth
quarter of 2006 and a $1 million expense in the first quarter of 2006.

Interest expense of $2 million was $5 million lower than the fourth quarter of 2006 and $8
million lower than in the first quarter of 2006 due 1o lower debt levels and interest earned on
cash held on deposit. Resulls for the fourth quarter of 2006 also included interest income of
$50 million related to the return of softwood lumber duties.

The change in value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar resulted in an exchange
gain of $3 million in the quarter on the Company’s U.S. denominated long-term debl compared
to an exchange loss of $14 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 and an exchange loss of $2
million in the first quarter of 2006.

Other income included a $4 million loss on the transiation of U.S. dollar cash, receivables and
foreign operations, compared to a $19 million translation gain in the fourth quarter of 2006 and
a $4 million translation gain in the first quarter of 2006. Other income for the quarter also
included a $10 million gain resulting from the termination of pulp supply contracts related to the
U.S. sawmill acquisition (see note 3 to the unaudited interim consoclidated financial statements),
gains on the sale of property, plant, equipment and timber and other items for all quarters.

Lumber .
Q1-07 Q4-06 Q1-06
Sales - § millions 361 358 505
EBITDA - $ millions {13) 388 91
EBITDA margin - % - 102 17
Operating earnings - $ millions | {40) 354 64
Benchmark Price
SPF #2 & Better 2 x 4 {per bem) uUss ' 253 245 343
SYP #2 West 2 x 4 {per Mfbm)° US § : 263 267 409

1. Source: Random Lengths — 2 x 4, #2 & Betler — Net FOB mill.
2. Source: Random Lengths — 2 x 4 —~ Nel FOB mill Westside.

Operating earnings declined by $7 million from the fourth quarter of 2006, ignoring the $387
million duty refund received that quarter. Log inventorigs were wrilten down by $18 million in
the quarter and export tax was charged during the entire quarter instead of a partial quarter.
These factors were partially offset by higher SPF and chip prices in the first quarter of 2007.
Shipment volumes were down due to the Canadian National Railway Company ("CN") strike
and the sale of Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills on October 31, 2006.

Operating earnings declined by $104 million from the first quarter of 2006 reflecting lower
lumber prices which also resulted in an $18 million log inventory writedown in the quarter.
Production volumes decreased compared to the first quarter of 2006 primarity due to the sale of
the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills. This sale and the CN strike during the quarter
resulted in lower shipment volumes over the comparative period in 20086,



West Fraser, along with others in the industry, is working closely with the British Columbia
government to address the economic impact of the continuing mountain pine beetle (*“MPB”)
infestation on operations. This includes ensuring that the most current information related to the
impact on operations is faclored into stumpage determinations and that the log grades
introduced in 2006 accurately reflect the potential of MPB-affected logs to yield merchantable
lumber. The Company is also working with the B.C. government to develop the most
appropriale policies to deal with non-sawlog materiaf left in harvested areas.

The Alberta government is taking proactive action to control the spread of the MPE and to
reduce the area of stands al risk for attack. An advisory group made up of representatives from
the provincial and local governments, industry, abariginal groups, academia and environmentat
organizations is advising the Alberta government on strategies to contain and prevent further
spread of the infestation. Although the hardest hit areas.in Alberta are to the north and west of
West Fraser's operaling areas, all of the Company's Alberta operations are shifting harvest
activities into pine stands which have been identified as being at high risk of infestation.

The Company experienced railcar shortages in the first quarter of 2007 and of 2006 due 1o
winter operating conditions. During the first quarter of 2007, service was further reduced by the
CN strike which resulted in partial service for 15 days. 'ﬁhe result was an increase in inventory
levels and increased transportation and loading costs as product was shipped by ather more
costly methods. Inconsistent rail service remains a significant issue.

The new sawmill in Quesnel operated on a three shift basis during the quarter and its slartup is
progressing largely as expected. Additionat planer capacity will be added 10 the Quesnel
operations to handle the increased volume of lumber to be produced.

SPF fumber prices strengthened marginally compared to the fourth quarter of 2006, averaging
US $253 per Mibm compared to US $245 per Mfbm, both of which are significantly down from
the average price during the first quarter of 2006 of US $343 per Mfbm. SYP lumber prices
averaged US $263 per Mibm during the quarter compared to US $267 per Mibm in the fourth
quarter of 2006 and US $409 per Mfbm in the first quarter of 2006. The pricing fluctuations are
due primarity to significantly reduced U.S. housing staris resulting in excess lumber supply.
Annualized U.S. housing starts are forecast to average 1.5 million for 2007 compared to an
annualized average of just over 1.8 miliion for 2006.

Lumber supply is expecled to decrease further in the second quarter of 2007 due to production
curtailments but the market is likely to remain oversupplied resulling in a depressed lumber
pricing environment for the balance of the year.

Panels
Q1-07 Q4-06 Q1-06
Sales - $ millions 119 102 124
EBITDA - $ millions ! 15 5 16
EBITDA margin - % 13 5 13
Operating earnings (loss) - $ millions 5 (5) 7
Benchmark price
Plywood (per Msf 3/8 basis)' Cdn $ 379 367 375
MDF (per Msf 3/4" basis)? US $ ; 451 462 414

1. Source: Crow's Market Report — Detivered Toronlo. .
2. Source: Resource Information Systems, Inc. — MDF Western U.S. — Net FOB mill.

Operating earnings for the quarter increased by $10 million from the fourth quarter of 2006
primarily due to higher plywood prices, improved plywood production costs and higher LVL and



MODF shipment volumes. The increase was parlially offset by lower LVL prices and plywood
shipment volumes.

Operaling earnings declined by $2 million from the first quarter of 2006 primarily due to lower
LVL prices, lower plywood and LVL shipment volumes and higher LVL unit production costs.
The decline was partially offset by higher MDF and chip prices.

Permanent plywood plant closures have removed approximaltely 10% of Canadian plywood
production from the market leading to improved product pricing. The reduced supply combined
with refatively strong forecast housing demand in Canada for 2007 should lead to a stable
pricing environment for the balance of 2007.

MDF markets for the first quarter of 2007 were strong and price levels are expected to improve
in the second quarter.

Pulp & Paper

Q1-07 Q4-06 Q1-06
Sales - § millions o279 267 273
EBITDA - $ millions 35 42 13
EBITDA margin - % 12 16 5
Operating earnings {loss) - $ millions 10 19 (48)
Benchmark price
NBSK (US $ per tonne)’ 790 770 653
Linerboard (US $ per lonnegz 568 568 513
Newsprint (US $ per tonne) 614 654 644

1. Source: Resource Information Syslems, Inc. - U.S. lisl price delivered U.S.

2. Source: Pulp & Paper Week - Unbleached linerboard kraft, East. )

3. Source: Resource Information Syslems, Inc. - U.S, delivered 48.8 gram newsprint.
1

Operating earnings were $9 miltion lower than the fourth quarter of 2006 primarily due to lower
production and shipment volumes at the Hinton and Kitimat mills, higher fibre and unit
manufacturing costs at most of the Company's pulp and paper mills and higher transportation
costs relating to the CN labour disruplion. The higher costs were partially offset by improved
prices for pulp, linerboard and kraft paper.

Operating earnings were $10 million compared to an operating loss of $48 million in the first
quarter of 2006 primarily due to improved prices for putp, linerboard and kraft paper and the
$38 million restructuring charge for the Hinton pulp mill recorded in the first quarter of 2006.
The improvement in prices was partially offset by higher fibre costs at most mills, lower
production at the Kitimat and NBSK mills resulting in higher unit production costs, higher
transportation costs as a result of the CN labour disruption, lower newsprint prices and lower
shipment volumes for all the pulp and paper products.

Annual maintenance shutdowns are scheduled at the Hinton and Cariboo pulp mills and the
Kitimat linerboard and kraft paper mill in the second quarter of 2007. The annual shutdowns are
expected to reduce normal production by approximately 50,000 tonnes.

Pulp

The Company's BCTMP mills ran well in the quarter producing 139,000 tonnes compared to
138,000 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2006 and 140,000 tonnes in the first quarter of 2006.
Combined production at the two NBSK mills was 118,000 tonnes compared to 141,000 tonnes
in the fourth quarter of 2006 and the first quarter of 2006. The lower production was primarily
due to the closure of the wocodroom and the #1 pulp machine at the Hinton pulp mill at the end
of 2006 and various production issues at both NBSK mills during the quarter. Fibre costs were




higher during the quarter due to rising woodchip prices and, in the case of Hinton pulp, the

purchase of higher priced whole log chips.
|

The woedroom at the Hinton mill was closed at the end of 2006 as part of the previously
announced restructuring, alihough the #1 pulp machine ran on a limited basis in the quarter
because of current high pulp prices.

The $20 million upgrade of the remaining Hinton pulp machine, expected to be completed by
the end of the second quarter of 2007, is expected to result in improved operations and lower
production costs at the mill. After completion of the upgrade, the annual capacity of the mill will
be 350,000 tonnes reflecting a net reduction of approximately 70,000 tonnes. In the first quarter
of 2006, a $35 million writedown of property, plant, equipment and timber and a charge of $3
million for other costs related to the restrucluring plan was recorded.

Although paper demand was flal in the first quarter, NBSK pulp markets demonstrated
conlinued strength. The NBSK pulp capacity reduclions that took place in 2006 as well as tight
chip supplies in Canada and Europe continue to support improved pricing. The benchmark
NBSK pulp price in North America increased $20 per tonne in January of 2007 and there was a
further $20 per tonne in April to US $810 per tonne. Current market indicators suggest that
NBSK pulp markets should remain strong through the third quarter of 2007. However weak
paper markets and growth in southern hemisphere capacity may impact pulp markets in the
latter part of the year. '

Market conditions for other pulp grades, including BCTMP, were weaker in the quarter due to
new southern hemisphere hardwood kraft capacity ramping up.

1
Linerboard and Kraft Paper
Production at the Kitimat linerboard and kraft paper mill.in the quarter was significantly below
expectations as a result of production problems relating to the start-up of the turbo-generator as
well as several other operational issues. During the quarter, the turbo-generator commenced
operations and by the end of the quarter was running at approximately 75 percent of the target
run rate. |

The production shortfall of approximately 15,000 tonnes compared to the first quarter of 2006
resulted in higher unit production costs. In addition, higher fibre costs and higher natural gas
consumption further reduced profitability for linerboard and kraft paper.

During the quarter, overseas linerboard markets continued to strengthen, driven by positive
demand and higher fibre costs. North American markets were flat due to lower box shipments
and, as a result, the announced first quarter price increase was not achieved.

Kraft paper markets continued to strengthen with price tevels increasing by 10-15% in the last
year. Improved markets were the result of capacity reductions and improving demand in
ofishore markets. Markets are expected to remain strong for the remainder of the year.

Newsprint

The Alberta Newsprint mill operated well in the quarter with production volumes and cosls
similar to the first quarter of 2006.

Newsprint prices declined in the first quarler of 2007 compared to the fourth quarter of 2006
and the first guarter of 2006 as newsprint demand continued to decline. This price trend may
continue for the remainder of the year. :




Change in Accounting Policies

Financial instruments |

The Canadian institule of Chartered Accountants |ssued new accounting rules on financial
tnstruments, hedges and comprehensive earnings that wm require the Company to account for
derivatives and financial assets held for trading or available for sale at fair value. Loans,
receivables and investments held to maturity will be measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Other financial liabilities will be measured at fair value or at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method
establishes the discount rate which eguates the eslimaléd future cash flows with the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Other comprehensive earnings is the method used to record revenues, expenses, gains and
iosses on net financial assets that are not required to be included in earnings. Foreign currency
iranslation gains and losses on self-sustaining foreign operations wilt be included in other
comprehensive earnings. Comprehensive earnings are the sum of earnings for the period plus
other comprehensive earnings. i

The new rules do not have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

[
Translation of Foreign Operations
The Company has determined that the Company's foreign operations became self-sustaining
upon the acquisition of 13 sawmills in the United States (see note 3 to the unaudited interim
consclidated financial statements). Accordingly, on March 31, 2007, the Company changed its
translation method from the temporal method to the current rate method.

1
Under the current rate method all assets and liabilities a:re translated at the exchange rate in
effect at the balance sheel date and the resulting unrealized gains or losses are included in
accumulated other comprehensive earnings. Under the temporal method, monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date while non-
monetary items are transtated at historical exchange rates.

[

The result of this change in accounting policy was a reduction of $18.2 million in accumulated
other comprehensive earnings included in shareholders’ equity. Unrealized gains or losses in
translation are included in other comprehensive earnings from the date of the change.

Capital Structure 1
The number of Common shares and Class B common shares outstanding was

42,774,689 as at March 31, 2007. The increase reflects lhe issuance of 2,752 Common shares
pursuant to the Employee Share Purchase Ptan. On February 15, 2007, 2,000,000 Class B
common shares were converted to Common shares.

March 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Common , 39,889,483 37,886,731
Class B common . 2,885,206 4,885,206

Total ‘ 42,774,689 42,771,937




Capital Requirements and Liquidity

Summary of Financial Position (3 millions, excepl as otherwise indicated)

Q1-07 Q4-06 Q1-06
Net cash’ 12 606 22
Current assets 1,076 1,451 1,130
Current liabilities 636 830 713
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.7 1.7 1.6
Net debt 756 19 847
Sharehalders’ equity 2,210 2,239 1,866
Net debt to capitalization2 - % 25 1 31

1. Nel cash consists of cash and short-term invesimenis less oulstanding cheques in excess of funds on deposit.
2. Nel debt (total debt fess cash and short-term investments) divided by net debt plus sharehoiders’ equity.

Woest Fraser's cash requirements, ather than for operating purposes, are primarily for interest
payments, repayment of debt, additions to property, plant, eguipment and timber, acquisitions
and payment of dividends. in years without a major acquisition or debt repayment, cash on
hand and cash provided by operations have normally been sufficient to meet these
requirements.

Selected Cash Flow ltems (5 millions)

Q1-07 Q4-06 Q1-06
Operating Activities
Cash provided before working capital changes 52 364 102
Non-cash working capital change _ {384) 260 {(117)
Cash provided by {used in) operaling aclivities C(332) 624 (15)
Financing Activities
Debt and operating loans : 150 (66) 75
Dividends and other {6) {6} {6)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 144 (72) 69
Investing Activities
Acquisition {379) - -
Additions to property, ptant, equipment & timber (27) (46) (95)
Other - net 1 89 5
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities ~_(405) 43 {(50)
Change in cash {593) 595 4
Ending cash ' 12 606 22

Non-cash working capital items in the guarter included a $167 million decrease in income taxes
payable primarily due to income tax payments of $165 million, and a $131 million decrease in
accounts payable primarily due to the $122 million payment of the special charge related to the
SLA 2006 on the prior year duty refunds. First quarter non-cash working capital items also
include the seasonal build up of log inventory. '

Investing activities include $379 million for the purchase of 13 sawmills in the southern United
States and $27 miflion in property, plant and equipmentI additions.

On March 30, 2007, West Fraser extended its current $500 million committed revolving credit
facility from June 2010 to March 2012 and entered into a 5-year $100 million committed
revolving facility for its U.S. operations. Also, West Fraser entered into a $100 million 3-year
term facility to fund part of the U.S. acquisition. The revolving and term facilities are at floating
interest rates.




FORM 52-109F2

Certification of Interim Filings

1, Henry H. Ketcham, Chairman, President and Chief Execuiive Officer of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.,
certify that:

o

[ have reviewed the interim filings (as this tenn is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers ' Annual and Interim Filings) of West Fraser Timber Co.
Ltd. (the issuer) for the interim period ending March 31, 2007;

Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings;

Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly présem in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings;

The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

{a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused them 10 be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entilies, particufarly during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared; and

)] designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the issuer’s GAAP; and

I have caused the issuer to disclose in the interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: Aprit 23, 2007.

“Henry H. Ketcham”™

Henry H. Ketcham
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

1563999.1




FORM 52-109F2
Certification of Interim Filings

[, Martti Solin, Executive Vice-President, Finance and Corporate Development and Chief Financial
Officer of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.. certify that:

1. I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers ' Annual and Interim Filings) of West Fraser Timber Co.
Lid. (the issuer) for the interim period ending March 31, 2007;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue staiement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings;

4, The issuer’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

{(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared; and

b designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it 1o be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reparding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the issuer’s GAAP; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: April 23, 2007.

"Martti Solin”’

Martti Solin

Executive Vice-President, Finance and Corporate
Devetopment and Chief Financia) Officer

1564005.1
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudiled)

As at

March 31, 2007

As at
December 31, 2006

Assets

Current assets

Cash and short-term investments
Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Property, plant, equipment and timber
Deferred charges

Goodwill

Other assets (nofe 4}

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current liabitities

Cheques issued in excess of funds on deposit
Operating loans (note 5)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable

Current portion of reforestation obligations
Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)

Long-term debt (note 5)
Other liabilities (note 6)

Future income taxes

Shareholders' equity (note 7)

$ 426 % 605.6

332.8 300.9

684.4 531.9

16.3 12.9

1,076.1 1,451.3

2,394.9 2,133.9

35.6 38.1

263.7 263.7

128.2 127.7

$ 3,8985 S 4,014.7
$ 303 $ -
45.9 -

365.4 468.4

1.5 178.9

54.2 54.2

428.2 128.2

635.5 829.7

594.5 496.0

150.1 137.5

308.4 3124

1,688.5 1,775.6

2,210.0 2,239.1

$ | 3,8985 $ 4,014.7

Number of Common shares outslanding at April 23, 2007 was 42,797,376
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
(in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

January 1 to March 31

2007 2006
Sales $ 7586 § 902.0
Costs and expenses
Cost of products sold 547.1 580.7
Freight and other distribution cosls 126.1 1454
Export taxes 235 -
Amortization 62.1 61.8
Selling, general and administration 21.0 285
Restructuring charge (note 8) - 3786
Duty expense - 224
779.8 886.4
Operating earnings (loss) (21.2) 15.6
Other
Interest expense - net (2.2) (10.0)
Exchange gain (loss) on long-term debt 3.2 {1.5)
Other income 11.8 6.2
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and non-
controlling interest (8.4) 10.3
Recovery of (provision for) income taxes (note 9) 3.3 {3.8)
Earnings (loss) before non-controlling interest (5.-1) 6.5
Nen-controlling interest - {0.4)
Earnings (loss) $ (5.1} % 6.1
Earnings {loss) per share (note 11) i
Basic § (0.12) § 0.14
Diluted $ {0.12) $ 0.14
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

Comprehensive Earnings
{(in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

and Accumulated Other

January 1 to March 31

2007 2006
Retained Earnings
Batance - beginning of period $ 16413 $ 11,2688
Earnings (loss) {5.1) 6.1

1,636.2 1,274.9

Common share dividends {6.0) (6.0)
Balance - end of period $ 16302 $ 1,2689
Accumuiated Other Comprehensive Earnings
Batlance - beginning of period $ - % -
Cumulative translation adjustment on self sustaining foreign
operations (note 2) 18.2) -
Balance - end of period $ 18.2) § -




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

January 1 to March 31

2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities
Earnings (loss) $ (54 % 6.1
Items not affecting cash
Amortization 62.1 61.8
Write down of pulp assels (nofe 8) - 34.8
Exchange {gain} loss on long-term debt (3.2) 1.5
Change in reforestation obligations 11.5 12.4
Future income taxes (4.0) (15.4)
Other (9.8) 0.9
51.5 102.1
Net change in non-cash working capital items {384.1) (116.8)
(332.6) (14.7)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt (0.3) (0.3}
Proceeds from long-term debt 102.8 -
Net proceeds from operating loans 47.9 749
Common share dividends (6.0) (6.0)
Other 0.1 0.1
144.5 68.7
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisilion (note 3) (379.2) -
Additions to property, plant, equipment and timber (26.6) (54.7}
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, equipment and limber 3.0 3.2
{Increase) decrease in other assets (2.4) 1.4
(405.2) (50.1)
{Decrease) increase in net cash * (593.3) 3.9
Net cash - beginning of period 605.6 18.3
Net cash - end of period $ 123 % 22.2
*Net cash consists of cash and short-term investments less cheques issued in excess of funds on deposit.
Supplemental information:
Interest paid $ 04 § 27
Income taxes paid $ 1645 § 355
Non cash investing activity:
Pulp supply contracts terminated on acquisition (note 3) $ {10.4) % -
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

First Quarter Segmented information
{in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

Pulp & Corporate
Lumber Panels paper & other Consolidated
January 1, 2007 to March 31, 2007
Sales
To external customers 351 'i1 $ 118.8 273.7 § - $ 758.6
To other segments 25.0 2.7 - -
386.t $ 121.5 278.7 % -
EBITDA' (13.|4) $ 154 4.7 % 42 % 40.9
Amortization 26.2 10.8 243 0.8 62.1
Operating earnings (loss) (39.6) 4.6 10.4 34 (21.2)
Interest expense - net (2.8} {0.8) (0.3) 1.7 (2.2)
Exchange gain on long-term debt -: - - 3.2 3.2
Other income 1.2 - 9.9 0.7 11.8
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and non-
controlling interesl {41.2) § 3.8 200 $ 9.0 % {8.4)
January 1, 2006 to March 31, 2006
Sales
To external customers 5052 % 123.8 2730 §% - 8 902.0
To other segments 21.0 26 - -
526.2 % 126.4 2730 $ -
EBITDA' 914 3 16.4 125 $ {(53) § 115.0
Amortization 27.9 9.8 23.2 0.9 61.8
Restructuring charge g - 37.6 - 37.6
Operating eamnings (loss) 63.5 6.6 (48.3) (6.2) 15.6
Interest expense - net (5‘|2) {1.8) (2.9} {0.1) {10.0)
Exchange loss on long-term debt -| - - (1.5) (1.5)
Other income 2.0 0.2 1.3 2.7 6.2
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and non-
controlling interest 603 § 5.0 (49.9) § 5.1 % 10.3
1 Non GAAP measure:
EBITDA is defined as operating earnings plus amortization and restructuring charge.




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

(figures are in millions of dollars except where indicated|- unaudited)

1.

Basis of presentation

These interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

These interim consolidated financial statements follow the same accounting policies and
methods of their application as the December 31, 2006 consolidated annual financial
statements except as disclosed in note 2.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified 10 conform to the current period’s
presentation.

Changes in accounting and estimates

Foreign currency translation

The Company has determined that the Company's foreign operations became self

sustaining upon the acquisition of 13 sawmills in the United States (note 3). Accordingly, on
March 31, 2007, the Company changed its translation method from the temporal method to
the current rate method.

Under the current rate method all assets and habllmes are translated at the exchange rate in
effect at the balance sheet date and the resulting unreahzed gains or losses are included in
accumulated other comprehensive earnings. Under the ternporal method, monetary assets
and lighilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date while
non-monetary items are translated at historical exchange rates.

The result of this change in accounting policy was a reduction of $18.2 million in
accumulated other comprehensive earnings mcfuded in shareholders’ equity. Unrealized
gains or losses on translation are included in other comprehensuve earnings from the date of
the change.

Financial instruments

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the new accounting standards issued by
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants for financial instruments, hedges and
comprehensive earnings. The recommendations require the Company o account for
derivatives and financial assets held for trading or available for sale at fair value. Loans,
receivables and investments held to maturity are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Other financial Ilabllmes will be measured at fair value or at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method The effective interest rate method
establishes the discount rate which equales the estimated future cash flows with the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

|
Other comprehensive earnings is the method used to record revenues, expenses, gains and
losses on net financial assets that are not required to be included in earnings. Foreign
currency transtation gains and losses on self-sustammg foreign operations will be included




in other comprehensive earnings. Comprehensive elarnings are the sum of earnings {loss)
for the period plus other comprehensive earnings {loss).

The adoption of the new recommendations did not malerially impact the Company’s
financial statements.

Change in estimates

The December 31, 2006 estimate of accrued incentive compensation was reduced by 38.0
million in the quarter resulting in a reduction o selling, general and administration expenses.

Acquisition

On March 31, 2007 the Company acquired 13 sawmills from International Paper Company
("IP"} for $389 6 million. The 13 mills are located in the southern United States.

The transaction resulted in the termination of supply, contracts under which IP agreed to
purchase 170,000 tonnes of NBSK pulp annualiy. The terminated pulp supply contracts
were entered into as part of the Company’s 2004 acqwsmon of Weldwood of Canada
Limited and had a remaining term of less than eight|years. These pulp supply contracts
were valued at $10.4 million based on an analysis of market conditions at the time of
termination and a settlement gain of $10.4 million is|recorded in other income.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method, whereby the purchase
consideration was allocated to the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the effective date of the purchase. The Company has not yet finalized the
allocation of the purchase cost for the acquisition. The preliminary allocation of the purchase
cost is based on management’s best estimates and|information available at the time of
preparing these consolidated financial statements and any changes may be material.

The preliminary purchase price allocation is as follows:

Current assets $102.2
Current liabilities (28.1)
Property, plant and equipment 315.5
Consideration 389.6
Consideration attributed to termination of

pulp supply contracts {10.4)
Net cash consideration | $379.2

The allocation above includes estimated costs related to the acquisition of $6.2 million.
Actual amounts incurred may differ from this estimate and any such difference will be
factored into the final allocation.




4. Other assets

March 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Power purchase agreements - net $ 100.6 $ 1024
Investments 9.7 10.7
Advances for timber and timber deposits 17.9 14.6

$ 128.2 $ 1277

5. Long-term debt and operating loans

March 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Cdn $125 debentures due 2007: interest at 6.8% $ 1250 $ 1250
Cdn $150 debentures due 2009; interest at 4.94% 150.0 150.0
Cdn $100 term note due 2010; interest at floating 100.0 -
rates'”
US $300 senior notes due 2014; interest at 5.2% 346.4 349.6
Cdn $3 term note; interest at floating rates 3.0 3.3
Cdn $4 note payable due 2020; interest at 5.5% 2.8 -
Deferred financing costs {4.5) (3.7)
722.7 624.2
Less: Current portion of iong-term debt (128.2) (128.2)
$ 594.5 $ 496.0

(1) Floaling rates are based on Prime, US base, Banker's Acceptances or LIBOR at the Company’s option.

The Company has approximately $605.0 million in revolving lines of credit available, of
which $47.9 million was drawn as at March 31, 2007. | Deferred financing costs of $2.0
million are offset against operating loans for presentatlon purposes. Interest is payable at
floating rates based on Prime, US base, Bankers' Acceplances or LIBOR at the Company's

option. The Company has also issued $17.1 million under various letters of credit.

6. Other liabilities

March 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Post-retirement obligations $ 543 $ 54.0
Timber damage deposits 15.2 14.6
Reforestation obligations - long-term 71.6 60.1
Other asset retirement obligations 9.0 8.8

$ 150.1 $ 1375




7. Shareholders’ equity

March 31, 2007
Number of

Shares Issued | Amount

December 31, 2006
Number of

Shares Issued Amount

Common 39,889,483 $ 5979 37,886,731 $ 597.6
Class B common 2,885,206 0.3 4,885,206 0.5
Totat Common 42,774,689 598.2 42,771,937 598.1
Retained earnings 1,630.2 1,641.3
Accumulated other (18.2) -
comprehensive earnings
Share purchase loans {0.2) (0.3)
Shareholders’ equity $2,210.0 $2,239.1
Common shares

For the three months ended March 31, 2007, the Colmpany issued 2,752 Common shares
for cash of $0.1 million and 2,000,000 Class B common shares in the amount of $0.2 miltion
were exchanged for Common shares (for the three months ended March, 2006 the
Company issued 3,422 Common shares for cash of $0.1 million}.

8. Restructuring charge

In the first quarter of 2006, the Company expensed $37.6 million related to a restructuring of
the pulp mili in Hinton, Alberta. Of this amount, $34. 8 million was for the writedown of
property, plant, equipment and timber with the balance for other restructuring costs.

9. Income taxes

The Company's effective tax rate is as follows:

January 1 to March 31, 2007 January 1 to March 31, 2006

Amount % Amount %

Income taxes at statutory rates % 2.8 341 $ (3.9 (34.1)
Large corporations tax - - (0.7 (6.7)
Non — taxable amounts 0.4 4.7 (0.7) (6.7)
Rate differentials between 0.9 9.9 1.9 18.4

jurisdictions and on specified

activities
Other {0.8) (9.4) (0.8) (7.8)
Income tax recovery (expense) $ 3.3 39.3 $ (3.8) {36.9)

10. Employee future benefits

The total benefit cost of the Company’s defined beneflt pension plans was $5.6 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2007 (three months ended March 31, 2006 - $5.7

million).




11. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on earnlngs available to Common
shareholders, as set out below, using the weighied average number of Common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share assume the exercise of share options using the

treasury stock method.

January 1 to March 31

2007 2006
Earnings (loss) $ (5.1) $ 6.1
Weighted average number of shares
{thousands)
Weighted average shares — basic 42,761 42,740
Share options — treasury stock method 473 375
Weighted average shares - diluted 43,234 43,115
Earnings per share (dollars)
Basic $(0.12) $ 0.14
Diluted $( 0.12) $ 0.14




News release via Canada NewsWire, Toronto 416-863-9350

Attention Business/Financial Editors/Fingncial Analysts:
West Fraser Announces First Quarter Results

VANCOUVER, April 23 /CNW/ - West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. today reported a
first quarter loss of $5 million or $0.12 per share on sales of §759 million
compared to earnings of $296 million or 5$6.87 per share (earnings of T T
57 million or $0.17 per share prior to softwood lumber duty refunds) on sales - ' .
of $727 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 and ear%ings of $6 million or | ; —
$0.14 per share on sales of 5902 million in the firsﬁ quarter of last yeaf.'ﬂ ; ia

EBITDA (1) was 541 million or 5% of sales for the quarter compared to. -

EBITDA of 5115 million or 13% of sales for the compar%ble period last year, . -

t- .

For the fourth quarter of 2006, EBITDA, excluding thelduty refund, would have’ '™ ;A
been $40 million or 6% of sales. 'f', - I
<< v

First quarter 2007 earnings reflect the following after-tax items:

- A gain of 53 million or $0.06 per share related to the translation of
U.S. dollar denominated debt; and

- A gain of $7 million or $0.16 per share related to the termination of
two pulp supply contracts.

First Quarter 2006 earnings reflect the following after-tax items:

- An expense of $25 million or $0.58 per share related to a
restructuring charge resulting from the announced closure of the
No.l pulp machine and the woodroom at|the Company's NBSK pulp mill in
Hinton, Alberta; and
- An expense of $2 million or $0.04 per|share related to the
translation of U.S. dollar denominated debt.

(1) Throughout this news release, ref?rence is made to EBITDA
(defined as operating earnings plus amortization and restructuring
charges), which the Company considers|to be a key performance
indicator. EBITDA is not a generally accepted earnings measure and
should not be considered as an altern§tive to earnings or cash flows
as determined in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. As there is no|standardized method of
calculating EBITDA, the Company's use |of the term may not be directly
comparable with similarly titled measures used by other companies.

>>

Operational Results

Lumber EBITDA for the quarter was negative $13 million compared to
$1 million in the fourth quarter of 2006, excluding duty refunds. First
quarter 2007 results reflect log inventory writedowns [amounting to $18

million.

Prices for SPF lumber strengthened marginally ccmpared to the fourth
quarter of 2006, averaging US $253 per Mfbm compared to US $245 per Mfbm.
Prices for SYP averaged US $263 per Mfbm compared to qS $267 per Mfbm in the
fourth quarter of 2006. Continuing low lumber prices are mainly the result of
weak housing starts in the U.S5. and excess supply.
Lumber production for the quarter was 9%4 MMfbm, an improvement of
84 MMfbm from the previous quarter, reflecting strong [operating performance.
Panel operations generated EBITDA of $15 million or 13% of sales compared
to $5 million or 5% of sales in the previous quarter. The improvement was
primarily due to higher plywood prices, lower plywood production costs and
increased LVL and MDF shipment volumes. The improvement was partially offset
by lower LVL prices and decreased plywood shipment vo%umes.
EBITDA for the pulp and paper operations was $35 million or 12% of sales,




compared to $42 million or 16% of sales in the fourth quarter of 2006. These
results reflect improved prices for pulp, linerboard|and kraft paper. This
improvement was offset by higher transportation costs as a result of the
Canadian National Railway Company ("CN") strike and lower production volumes
at Hinton and Kitimat, resulting in higher manufactufing costs.

Production problems relating to the start-up of the turbo-generator at
the Kitimat linerboard and kraft paper mill resulted|in lower production in
the quarter. By the end of the first quarter, the turbo-generator was running
at approximately 75 percent of target.

Annual maintenance shutdowns scheduled aF the Kitimat, Hinton and Cariboo
mills in the second quarter are expected to reduce normal production by
approximately 50,000 tonnes in aggregate.

U.S. sawmill acquisition

On March 31, 2007, West Fraser completed| the acquisition of 13 sawmills
in the southern United States from International Paper Company. The
preliminary price, after taking into account estimated transaction expenses,
the termination of two long-term pulp supply contracts, and working capital is
$390 million (US $337 million). Further adjustments to the purchase price may
be made in 2007. The 13 sawmills have a combined annual production capacity of
approximately 1.8 billion board feet of SYP lumber an employ approximately
2,200 people. With its two existing sawmills in the scuthern United States,
the Company now has total production capacity in the{ United States of
approximately 2.2 billion board feet. When combined rith the SPF lumber
capacity from its Canadian operations, West Fraser iF the second largest
lumber producer in North America with an annual production capacity of
approximately 6.2 billion board feet.

Transportation Issues

West Fraser welcomed the intervention of| the Canadian government to end
the labour disruption at CN Rail. The labour dispute, which started on
February 10, 2007, adversely affected shipments and costs in the first
quarter. With both the labour disruption and winter %onditions substantially
over, West Fraser expects rail service to return to more acceptable levels.

The Company

West Fraser is an integrated forest prodpcts company producing lumber,
LVL, MDF, plywood, pulp, linerbeoard, kraft paper andlnewsprint. The Company
has approximately 9,100 employees and operations in British Columbia, Alberta
and the southern United States.

Forward-Looking Statements

Some information contained in this release is prospective, such as
statements about potential future developments, and may be affected by known
or unknown risks and uncertainties, which are mostly outside the control of
West Fraser. The results or outcomes of events mentioned in such prospective
information may differ materially from actual resulﬁs or outcomes. This
prospective information and statements are not guaranteed by the Company and
actual results and outcomes will depend on a number of factors including those
described in the Company's 2006 annual Management Dﬂscussion & Analysis under
"Risks and Uncertainties." Readers should exercise caution in relying on such
information and statements. The Company undertakes Ho obligation to publicly
revise these forward looking statements to reflect subsequent events or
circumstances.

Conference Call
Investors are invited to listen to the quarterly conference call on

Tuesday, April 24 at 8:30 a.m. Pacific Daylight Time (11:30 a.m. Eastern
Daylight Time) by dialing 1-888-575-8232 (toll-free North America). The call




may also be accessed through West Fraser’'s web site at www.westfraser.com.
Annual Meeting

West Fraser's annual meeting will be held on April 25, 2007 at 11 a.m. at
the Company's offices in Quesnel, BC.

<<
West Fraser shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol:['WFT"
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION| & ANALYSIS
>>

The following discussion and analysis sh?uld be read in conjunction with
the unaudited interim consclidated financial stateme?ts included in this
quarterly report and Management's Discussion & Analysis included in the
Company's 2006 annual report. The figures are expressed in Canadian dollars,
unless otherwise indicated. Additional information relat;ng to the Company,
including the Company's Annual Information Form is available on SEDAR at
www.sedar.comn.

This report of management's discussion and analysis contains historical
information, descriptions of current circumstances and statements about
potential future developments. The latter, which are| forward-locoking
statements, are presented to provide reasonable guid?nce to the reader but the
accuracy of these statements depends on a number of assumptlons and is subject
to various risks and uncertainties. These include, but are not limited to,
uncertainties associated with the effect of general economic conditions on
demand for the Company's products, foreign exchange rate fluctuations, trade
sanctions, the availability of fibre and changes in stumpage fees,
competition, operational curtailments and transportatlon limitations, natural
disasters, insect infestation, the effects of forestry, land use,
environmental and other government laws and regulations, First Nations claims
and the ability of the Company to execute its businefs plans. These statements
are not guaranteed by the Company and actual outcomes and results may differ
materially from those anticipated or projected. AccoFdlngly, readers should
exercise caution in relying upon forward-looking staFements. The Company
undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements
to reflect subsequent events or circumstances,

Throughout this report, reference is made to EBITDA (defined as operating
earnings plus amortization and restructuring charges), which the Company
considers to be a key performance indicator. EBITDA 15 not a generally
accepted earnings measure and should not be cons;dered as an alternative to
earnings or cash flows as determined in accordance W}th Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. As there is no standardlzed method of
calculating EBITDA, the Company's use of the term may not be directly
comparable with similarly titled measures used by otper companies,

The information in this report is as at April 23, 2007, unless otherwise
indicated.

U.S. Sawmill Acquisition

On March 31, 2007, the Company acquired 13 sawmills from International
Paper Company and became the second largest lumber producer in North America
with an annual capacity of approximately 6.2 billionlboard feet. The 13 mills,
which are located in North and South Carolina, Georgla, Florida, Alabama,
Arkansas and Texas, employ approximately 2,200 people and have a combined
annual production capacity of approximately 1.8 billion board feet of southern
yellow pine ("SYP"} lumber.

Operating activities of the acquired sawmills prior to March 31, 2007
were managed by and for the benefit of the previous owner and are not
reflected in the financial results covered by this réport.




Transaction Terms

The preliminary purchase price after takipg into account estimated
transaction expenses and the termination of two long-%erm pulp supply
contracts is $390 million (US $337 million). Further adjustments to the
purchase price may be made pursuant to the agreement ?f purchase and sale.

The transaction includes the assignment of multi-year market-price log
supply agreements which are expected to provide, in aggregate, approximately
15% of the acquired mills' current log requirements. West Fraser also entered
into long-term agreements to sell residual wood chips |at market prices. The
transaction resulted in the termination of two supply |contracts for 170,000
tonnes of NBSK pulp per year, which were entered into |as part of West Fraser's
2004 acguisition of Weldwood of Canada Limited ("Weldwood"}. The termination
of these contracts is not expected to have a material |impact on West Fraser's
pulp operations.

Financing, Synergies and Current Operations

The acquisition was financed with cash on [hand, available lines of credit
and a $100 million term loan which is payable at the Company's option on or
before March 31, 2010.

West Fraser has established US $23 millioq in annual pre-tax synergies as
a target to be realized by the end of the third year qfter the completion of
the acquisition. Synergies are expected to be achieveq by implementing best
practices and by centralizing U.S. sales and administrative offices.

Softwood Lumber Agreement

The Softwcod Lumber Agreement (the "SLA 2006") came into force on
October 12, 2006. Under the SLA 2006, the Canadian provinces were required to
choose one of two options with respect to lumber shipments to the U.S.: to pay
to the Canadian government either a variable export tax based on price or a
lower variable export tax but subject to a quota on total shipments. B.C. and
Alberta elected the export tax only option, which results in West Fraser's
Canadian lumber operations being subject to the following export taxes:

<<

Prevailing price(l) Export Tax (%)
Over US $355 Nil
Us $336 - §355 5
UsS $31e6 - 5335 10
US $315 or under 15

(1) . Based on Random Lengths Framing LumbeL Composite Price (the
"Reference Price").
>>

The export tax rate is set monthly based on a four-week average Reference
Price that is published 21 days prior to the start of gny given month.
Shipments to the U.S. from B.C. and Alberta during the|first quarter of 2007
resulted in a 15% export tax being incurred.
Also, if monthly shipments from the B.C. I?terior region or from Alberta
(as export tax-only regions) exceed a certain trigger volume as defined in the
SLA 2006, a surge mechanism (the "Surge") will result %n a 50% increase in the
applicable export tax rate for that month. The Surge i? calculated monthly
based on trailing estimated U.S. lumber consumption. For the first quarter of
2007 the Canadian government determined that the Surgeldid not apply.
The United States government has asserted that, for the purposes of the
Surge calculation, lumber consumption levels should be|based on actual rather
than estimated consumption and that this adjustment me$hanism should also
apply to export tax-only regions. If this position prevailed, the B.C.
Interior region could be subject to the Surge adjustment. This issue is now




the subject of consultations between the two governments and could be referred
to arbitration under the SLA 2006. We believe the Canadian position will
prevail, however, if the Surge adjustment applies the Company would incur

additional export taxes of approximately $3 million

<<
Revenue & Earnings Comparison

Q1-

Production

Lumber - MMfbm

MDF - MMsf (3/4" basis)
Plywood - MMsf (3/8" basis)

LVL - Mcf

BCTMP - Mtonnes

NBSK - Mtonnes

Linerbocard and Kraft Paper
- Mtonnes

Newsprint - Mtonnes
Shipments

Lumber - MMfbm

MDF - MMsf (3/4" basis)
Plywood - MMsf (3/8" basis)

LVL - Mcf

BCTMP - Mtonnes

NBSK - Mtonnes

Linerboard and Kraft Paper
- Mtonnes

Newsprint - Mtonnes

Financial Highlights ($ millions)

Sales

EBITDA

Amortization

Restructuring charge

Operating earnings
Interest income on duty refund
Interest expense - net

Exchange gain (loss) on
long-term debt

Other income

Recovery (provision) for
income taxes

Earnings

$CDN/SUS -~ average

Selected Quarterly Information
($ millions, except earnings per share (

for each month of Surge.
2007 Q4 - 2006 Q1 - 2006
994 910 1,136
68 67 71
186 172 164
750 655 781
139 138 140
118 141 141
105 117 120
32 31 32
956 1,000 1,098
75 55 78
157 le3 175
707 526 751
139 108 163
119 136 145
110 114 124
30 29 32
759 727 802
41 427 115
(62) (69) (62)
- - (38)
(21) 358 15
- 50 -
(2) (7 (r0)
3 (14) (1)
12 46 6
3 (137) {4)
(5) 296 6
.
1.17 1.14 1.16

rEPS") amounts which are in §}




Sales 759 727 805 g8g 902 g3z 890 953

Earnings (5) 296 (8) 104 [ 9 18 38
Basic EPS

-8 (0.12) 6.93  (0.19) 2.43 0.14 0.20 0.42 0.89
Diluted

EPS - § {0.12) 6.87 (0.19) 2.41 0.14 0.20 0.42 0.88

Operating earnings in the quarter improved by $8 million from the fourth
quarter of 2006, ignoring the effect of the $387 milﬂion duty refund received
in that quarter, primarily due to higher SPF, plywooq, pulp, linerboard and
kraft paper prices. The increase was partially offset by a log inventory
write-down of $18 million and lower production volumes at the Hinton and
Kitimat mills which resulted in higher costs per tonne.

Operating earnings in the quarter declined by $36 million from the first
quarter of 2006 reflecting lower lumber prices and the log inventory writedown
as well as higher costs at the Kitimat mill. This earnings reduction was
partially offset by improved pricing for pulp, linerboard and kraft paper. The
Company's results for the first quarter of 2006 also included a $38 million
Hinton pulp restructuring charge.

Administration expense of $21 million was| $12 million lower than the
fourth quarter of 2006 and $9 million lower than the first quarter of 2006 due
primarily to an $8 million adjustment to incentive compensation accrued at
December 31, 2006. Administration expense for the quarter includes a share
option expense of $2 million compared to a $5 million| expense in the fourth
quarter of 2006 and a $1 million expense in the first| quarter of 2006.

Interest expense of $2 million was $5 milgion lower than the fourth
quarter of 2006 and $8 million lower than in the first quarter of 2006 due to
lower debt levels and interest earned on cash held on| deposit. Results for the
fourth quarter of 2006 alsc included interest income of $50 million related to
the return of softwooed lumber duties.

The change in value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar
resulted in an exchange gain of $3 million in the quafter on the Company's
U.S. denominated long-term debt compared to an exchange loss of $14 million in
the fourth quarter of 2006 and an exchange loss of $2{million in the first
quarter of 2006.

Other income included a $4 million loss on the translation of U.S5. dollar
cash, receivables and foreign operations, compared to|a $19 million
translation gain in the fourth quarter of 2006 and a $4 million translation
gain in the first gquarter of 2006. Qther income for the quarter also included
a $10 million gain resulting from the termination of ﬁulp supply contracts
related to the U.S. sawmill acquisition (see note 3 to the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements)}, gains on the sale|ocf property, plant,
equipment and timber and other items for all quarters

Sales - $ millions
EBITDA - $ millions
EBITDA margin - %
Operating earnings - § millions
Benchmark Price
SPF No. 2 & Better 2 x 4 {(per Mfbm) (1) US $
SYP No. 2 West 2 x 4 (per Mfbm) (2) US §

1. Source: Random Lengths - 2 x 4, No. 2 & Better
- Net FOB mill.




2. Source: Random Lengths - 2 x 4 - Net FOB mill
Westside.

Operating earnings declined by $7 million from the fourth quarter of 2006,
ignoring the $387 million duty refund received that quarter. Leg inventories
were written down by $18 million in the quarter and ekport tax was charged
during the entire quarter instead of a partial quarter. These factors were
partially offset by higher SPF and chip prices in the!first quarter of 2007.
Shipment volumes were down due to the Canadian National Railway Company ("CN"}
strike and the sale of Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills on October 31,

2006.

Operating earnings declined by $104 million from the first quarter of 2006
reflecting lower lumber prices which also resulted in‘an $18 million log
inventory writedown in the quarter. Production volumes decreased compared to
the first quarter of 2006 primarily due to the sale of the Burns Lake and
Decker Lake sawmills., This sale and the CN strike durxng the quarter resulted
in lower shipment volumes over the comparative per;od};n 2006.

West Fraser, along with others in the industry, is working closely with
the British Columbia government to address the economic impact of the
continuing mountain pine beetle {("MPB") infestation on operations. This
includes ensuring that the most current information related to the impact on
operations is factored into stumpage determinations and that the log grades
intreduced in 2006 accurately reflect the potential of MPB-affected logs to
yield merchantable lumber. The Company is also wOrklng with the B.C,.
government to develop the most appropriate policies to deal with non-sawlog
material left in harvested areas.

The Alberta government is taking proactive action to contrel the spread of
the MPB and t¢ reduce the area of stands at risk for ?ttack. An advisory group
made up of representatives from the provincial and leocal governments,
industry, aboriginal groups, academia and envirconmental organizations is
advising the Alberta government on strategies to contaln and prevent further
spread of the infestation. Although the hardest hit areas in Alberta are to
the north and west of West Fraser's operating areas, all of the Company's
Alberta operations are shifting harvest activities into pine stands which have
been identified as being at high risk of infestation.

The Company experienced railcar shortages|in the first quarter of 2007 and
of 2006 due to winter operating conditions. During the first quarter of 2007,
service was further reduced by the CN strike which resulted in partial service
for 15 days. The result was an increase in inventory levels and increased
transpertation and loading costs as product was shlpped by other more costly
methods. Inconsistent rail servic¢e remains a 51gn1f1cent issue.

The new sawmill in Quesnel operated on a three shift basis during the
quarter and its startup is progressing largely as expected Additiconal planer
capacity will be added to the Quesnel operations tc handle the increased
volume of lumber to be produced.

SPF lumber prices strengthened marginally compared to the fourth quarter
of 2006, averaging US $253 per Mfbm compared to US $245 per Mfbm, both of
which are significantly down from the average price durlng the first quarter
of 2006 of US $343 per Mfbm. SYP lumber prices averaged US $263 per Mfbm
during the quarter compared to US $267 per Mfbm in the fourth quarter of 2006
and US $409 per Mfbm in the first quarter of 2006. The pricing fluctuations
are due primarily to significantly reduced U.S. housing starts resulting in
excess lumber supply. Annualized U.S. housing starts are forecast to average
1.5 million for 2007 compared to an annualized average of just over 1.8
million for 2006.

Lumber supply is expected to decrease further in the second quarter of
2007 due to production curtailments but the market is [likely to remain
oversupplied resulting in a depressed lumber pricing environment for the
balance of the year.

Panels

Q1-07 Q4-06 Q1-06




Sales - § millions 119 102 124

EBITDA - § millions 15 ] 16
EBITDA margin - % 13 5 i3
Operating earnings {(loss) - § millions 5 {5) 7
Benchmark price
Plywood (per Msf 3/8" basis) (1} Cdn § 379 367 375
MDF (per Msf 3/4" basis) (2} US § 451 462 414

1. Source: Crow's Market Report - Deliveied Toronto.
2. Source: Resource Information Systems, [Inc.
- MDF Western U.S. - Net FOB mill.

Operating earnings for the quarter increased by $10 million from the
fourth quarter of 2006 primarily due to higher plywood prices, improved
plywood production costs and higher LVL and MDF shipment velumes. The increase
was partially offset by lower LVL prices and plywood|shipment volumes.

Operating earnings declined by $2 million from the first quarter of 2008
primarily due to lower LVL prices, lower plywood and|LVL shipment wvolumes and
higher LVL unit production costs. The decline was partially offset by higher
MDF and chip prices.

Permanent plywood plant closures have repoved approximately 10% of
Canadian plywood production from the market leading to improved product
pricing. The reduced supply combined with relatively| strong forecast housing
demand in Canada for 2007 should lead to a stable pricing environment for the
balance of 2007.

MDF markets for the first quarter of 2007 were strong and price levels are
expected to improve in the second quarter.

Pulp & Paper

Sales - $ millions 279 267 273
EBITDA - $ millions 35 42 13
EBITDA margin - % 12 16 5
Operating earnings (loss) - $ millions 10 19 (48)
Benchmark price
NBSK (US $ per tonne) (1) 790 770 653
Linerboard (US § per tonne) (2) 568 568 513
Newsprint (US $ per tonne) (3) 614 654 644

1. Source: Rescurce Information Systems,| Inc.
- U.5. list price delivered U.S.
2. Source: Pulp & Paper Week - Unbleached
linerboard kraft, East.
3. Source: Resource Information Systems, Inc.
- U.S. delivered 48.8 gram newsprint.
>>

Operating earnings were $9 million lower than the fourth quarter of 2006
primarily due to lower production and shipment voluqes at the Hinton and
Kitimat mills, higher fibre and unit manufacturing costs at most of the
Company's pulp and paper mills and higher transportation costs relating to the
CHN labour disruption. The higher costs were partialﬂy offset by improved
prices for pulp, linerboard and kraft paper. I

Operating earnings were $10 million compared to an operating loss of $48
millicon in the first quarter of 2006 primarily due to improved prices for
pulp, linerboard and kraft paper and the $38 million restructuring charge for
the Hinton pulp mill recorded in the first quarter of 2006. The improvement in
prices was partially offset by higher fibre costs at most mills, lower




production at the Kitimat and NBSK mills resulting in
costs, higher transportation costs as a result of the
lower newsprint prices and lower shipment volumes for
products.

higher unit production
CN labour disruption,
all the pulp and paper

Annual maintenance shutdowns are scheduled at the Hinton and Cariboo pulp

mills and the Kitimat linerboard and kraft paper milll

in the second quarter of

2007. The annual shutdowns are expected to reduce normal production by

approximately 50,000 tonnes.

Pulp

The Company's BCTMP mills ran well in the

quarter producing 139,000

tonnes compared to 138,000 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2006 and 140,000
tonnes in the first quarter of 2006. Combined productlon at the two NBSK mills
was 118,000 tonnes compared to 141,000 tonnes in the ﬁourth quarter of 2006

and the first quarter of 2006. The lower production wa
closure of the woodroom and the No. 1 pulp machine at
the end of 2006 and various production issues at both

s primarily due to the
the Hinton pulp mill at
NBSK mills during the

quarter. Fibre costs were higher during the quarter due to rising woodchip
prices and, in the case of Hinton pulp, the purchase of higher priced whole

log chips.

The woodroom at the Hinton mill was closed at the end of 2006 as part of
the previcusly announced restructuring, although the No. 1 pulp machine ran on
a limited basis in the guarter because of current high pulp prices.

The $20 million upgrade of the remaining Hinton pulp machine, expected to

be completed by the end of the second guarter of 2007,

is expected to result

in improved cperations and lower production costs at the mill. After

completion of the upgrade, the annual capacity of the
tonnes reflecting a net reduction of approximately 70,
quarter of 2006, a $35 million writedown of property,

mill will be 350,000
C00 tonnes. In the first
plant, equipment and

timber and a charge of $3 million for other costs related to the restructuring

plan was recorxded.

Although paper demand was flat in the flrst quarter, NBSK pulp markets
demonstrated continued strength. The NBSK pulp capac1ty reductions that took
place in 2006 as well as tight chip supplies in Canada and Eurcpe continue to
support improved pricing. The benchmark NBSK pulp price in North America
increased 520 per tonne in January of 2007 and there was a further $20 per
tonne in April to US $810 per tonne. Current market indicators suggest that
NBSK pulp markets should remain strong through the thilrd quarter of 2007.

However weak paper markets and growth in southern hemi'sphere capacity may

impact pulp markets in the latter part of the year.

Market conditions for other pulp grades, including BCTMP, were weaker in
the quarter due to new socuthern hemisphere hardwood kraft capacity ramping up.

Linerboard and Kraft Paper

Production at the Kitimat linerboard and kraft paper mill in the quarter
was significantly below expectations as a result of prbduction problems
relating to the start-up of the turbo-generator as well as several other
operaticnal issues. During the quarter, the turbo-generater commenced
cperations and by the end of the quarter was running at approximately 75

percent of the target run rate.
The production shortfall of approximately

15,000 tonnes compared to the

first quarter of 2006 resulted in higher unit productien costs. In addition,

higher fibre costs and higher natural gas consumption
profitability for linerboard and kraft paper.

further reduced

During the quarter, overseas linerboard ma;kets continued to strengthen,
driven by positive demand and higher fibre costs. North American markets were

flat due to lower box shipments and, as a result, the
price increase was not achieved.

f .
announced first quarter

Kraft paper markets continued to strengthen with price levels increasing

by 10-15% in the last year. Improved markets were the

result of capacity

reductions and improving demand in offshore markets. Markets are expected to

remain strong for the remainder of the year.




Newsprint

The Alberta Newsprint mill operated well in the quarter with production
volumes and costs similar to the first quarter of 2006.

Newsprint prices declined in the first quarter of 2007 compared to the
fourth quarter of 2006 and the first quarter of 2006 as newsprint demand
continued to decline. This price trend may continue for the remainder of the
year,

Change in Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments

The Canadian Institute of Chartered hccountants issued new accounting
rules on financial instruments, hedges and comprehensive earnings that will
require the Company to account for derivatives and fiqancial assets held for
trading or available for sale at fair value. Loans, receivables and
investments held to maturity will be measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Other financial llabl%ltles will be measured
at fair value or at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method establishes the discount rate which equates
the estimated future cash flows with the net carrying |amount of the financial
asset or liability.

Other comprehensive earnings is the method used to record revenues,
expenses, gains and losses on net financial assets that are not required to be
included in earnings. Foreign currency translation gafns and losses on self-
sustaining foreign operations will be included in other comprehensive
earnings. Comprehensive earnings are the sum of earnings for the period plus
other comprehensive earnings.

The new rules do not have a significant impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Translation of Foreign Operations i

The Company has determined that the Company's foreign operations became
self-gsustaining upon the acquisition of 13 sawmills in the United States (see
note 3 to the unaudited interim consolidated f1nanc1aﬂ statements) .

Accordingly, on March 31, 2007, the Company changed 1ts translation method
from the temporal method teo the current rate methed.

Under the current rate methed all assets and liabilities are translated
at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet d%te and the resulting
unrealized gains or losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive
earnings. Under the temporal method, monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date while non-
monetary items are translated at historical exchange r?tes

The result of this change in accounting pollcy was a reduction of
$18.2 million in accumulated other comprehensive earnlngs included in
shareholders' equity. Unrealized gains or losses in trgnslatlon are included

in other comprehensive earnings from the date of the change.
Capital Structure

The number of Common shares and Class B common shares cutstanding was
42,774,689 as at March 31, 2007. The increase reflects| the issuance of 2,752
Common shares pursuant to the Employee Share Purchase Plan. On February 15,
2007, 2,000,000 Class B common shares were converted to Common shares.

March December
31, 2007 31, 2006

Common 39,889,483 37,886,731




Class B common 2,885,206 4,885,206

Capital Requirements and Liquidity

Summary of Financial Position {$ millions, except
as otherwise indicated)

Net cash(l) 12 606 22
Current assets 1,076 1,451 1,130
Current liabilities 636 830 713
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.7 1.7 1.6
Net debt 756 19 847
Shareholders' equity 2,210 2,239 1,866
Net debt to capitalization(2) - % 25 1 31

1. Net cash consists of cash and short-term investments less ocutstanding
cheques in excess of funds on deposit.
2. Net debt (total debt less cash and short-term investments) divided by
net debt plus shareholders’ equity.

West Fraser's cash requirements, other than for operating purposes, are
primarily for interest payments, repayment of debt, ddditions to property,
plant, equipment and timber, acquisitions and paymenﬁ of dividends. In years
without a major acquisition or debt repayment, cash on hand and cash provided
by operations have normally been sufficient to meet these requirements.

Selected Cash Flow Items ($ millions) ‘

Operating Activities

Cash provided before working capital changes 52 364 102
Non-cash working capital change (384) 260 (117)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (332) 624 {15)

Financing Activities

Debt and operating loans 150 {66) 75
Dividends and other (6) (6) (6)
Cash provided by (used in} financing activities 144 (72) 69

Investing Activities

Acquisition {379) - -
Additions to property, plant, equipment &

timber (27) (46} {55)
Other - net 1 89 5
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities (405) 43 {50)
Change in cash (593) 595 4




>>

Non-cash working capital items in the quarter included a $167 million
decrease in income taxes payable primarily due te income tax payments of
$165 million, and a $131 million decrease in accounts|payab1e primarily due to
the $122 million payment of the special charge relate? to the SLA 2006 on the
prior year duty refunds. First quarter non-cash working capital items also
include the seasonal build up of log inventory.

Investing activities include $379% million|for the purchase of 13 sawmills
in the southern United States and $27 million in property, plant and equipment
additions.

On March 30, 2007, West Fraser extended its current $500 million
committed revolving credit facility from June 2010 to|March 2012 and entered
into a 5-year $100 million committed revolving facility for its U.s.
cperations. Also, West Fraser entered intc a $100 million 3-~year term facility
to fund part of the U.S. acquisition. The revelving and term facilities are at
fleoating interest rates.

<<

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Consclidated Balance Sheets
(in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

As at As at
March 31, December 31,

Current assets

Cash and short-term investments
Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Property, plant, equipment and timber
Deferred charges

Goodwill

Other assets (note 4)

Liabilities and Shareholders’' Equity
Current liabilities

Cheques issued in excess of funds on deposit
Operating lcans (note 5)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable

Current portion of reforestation cbligations
Current portiocn of long-term debt (note 5)

Long-term debt (note 5)
Other liabilities (note 6)
Future income taxes

Sharehclders' equity {(note 7)




Number of Common shares cutstanding at Apr

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
{in millions of Canadian deollars - unaudit

Sales

Costs and expenses

Cost of products sold

Freight and other distribution costs
Export taxes

Amortization

Selling, general and administration
Restructuring charge {(note 8)

Duty expense

Operating earnings (loss)

Other

Interest expense - net

Exchange gain (loss) on long-term debt
Other income

Earnings (loss)} before income taxes and
non-controlling interest
Recovery of (provision for) income taxes |

Earnings (loss) before non-controlling int
Non-controlling interest

Earnings (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share (note 11)
Basic
Diluted

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnin
Comprehensive Earnings
(in millions of Canadian deollars - unaudit

il 23, 2007 was 42,797,376

ed)

January 1 to March 31

2007 2006

] 758.6 s 902.0
547.1 589.7
126.1 145.4
23.5 -

62.1 61.8

21.0 29.5

- 37.6

- 22 .4

779.8 886.4
(21.2) 15.6
(2.2) {10.0}

3.2 {(1.5)

11.8 6.2
{(8.4) 10.3

note 9) 3.3 {3.8)
erest {5.1}) 6.5
- {0.4)

$ {5.1) § 6.1
$ (0.12) ] 0.14
$ (0.12) $ 0.14

gs and Accumulated Other
ed)

January 1 to March 31
2007 2006




Retained Earnings

Balance - beginning of period $1,641.3 § 1,268.8
Earnings (loss) (5.1) 6.1

1,636.2 1,274.9
Common share dividends {6.0) {6.0)
Balance - end of period $ 1,630.2 $ 1,268.9

Balance - beginning of period 5 - $ -
Cumulative translation adjustment on self-

sustaining foreign operations (note 2} {18.2) -
Balance - end of period 5 {18.2) ] -

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

January 1 to March 31

2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities
Earnings (loss) $ (5.1} -1 6.1

Items not affecting cash

Amortization 62.1 61.8
Write down of pulp assets {(note 8) - 34.8
Exchange (gain} loss on long-term debt (3.2} 1.5
Change in reforestation obligations 11.5 12.4
future income taxes {4.0) (15.4)
Other {9.8) 0.9
51.5 102.1
Net change in non-cash working capital items (384.1) (116.8)
(332.6) (14.7)

Cash fiows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt {0.3) (0.3)
Proceeds from long-term debt 102.8 -
Net proceeds from cperating loans 47.9 74.9
Common share dividends {€.0) (6.0)
Other 0.1 0.1
144.5 68.7

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition (note 3} {379.2) -

Additions to property, plant, equipment
and timber {26.6}) (54.7)




Proceeds from disposal of property, plantL
equipment and timber
{Increase) decrease in other assets

(Decrease) increase in net cash(x)
Net cash - beginning of period

Net cash - end of period

3.0 3

(2.4) 1
(405.2) (50
(593.3) 3
605.6 18

$ 12.3 $ 22

(x) Net cash consists of cash and short-term investments less cheques

issued in excess of funds on deposit.

Supplemental information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Non cash investing activity:
Pulp supply contracts terminated on
acquisition (note 3)

o 4

0.4 $ 2
164.5 $ 35
(10.4) $

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
First Quarter Segmented Information

{in millions of Canadian dollars - unaudited)

Lumber Panel?

Pulp &
paper

Corperate Consol-

January 1, 2007 to
March 31, 2007

Sales
To external customers § 361.1 $ 118.8

To other segments 25.0 2.

—~J

EBITDA (1) $ (13.4) § 15.4
Amortization 26.2 10.%

Operating earnings

(loss) (39.6) 4.
Interest expense - net (2.8) (0.
Exchange gain on

long-term debt - -
Other income 1.2 -

& other idated

$ - 5§ 758.6

] -

$ 4.2 $ 40.9
0.8 62.1
3.4 (21.2)
1.7 (2.2)
3.2 3.2
0.7 11.8

Earnings (loss) before 1
income taxes and
non-controlling ’
interest $ {41.2) § 3.%




January 1, 2006 to

S

March 31, 2006

ales
To external customers § 505.2 $ 123.8

To other segments 21.0 2.6

$ 273.

EBITDA (1} $ 91.4 $ 1e6.4
Amortization 27.9 9.8
Restructuring charge - -

Operating earnings (loss) 63.5 6.6

I

Exchange loss on

nterest expense - net {5.2) (1. 8)

long-term debt - -

Other income 2.0 0.2

Earnings (loss) before

(

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial

1.

income taxes and
non-controlling
interest $ 60.3 s 5.0

- $ 902.0
3) $§ 115.0
9 61.8
- 37.6
2) 15.6
1) (10.0)
5) (1.5)
7 6.2
1) $ 10.3

1) Non GAAP measure:

EBITDA is defined as operating earnings plus amortization and

restructuring charge.

Statements

(figures are in millions of dollars except where indicated - unaudited)

Basis of presentation

These interim consclidated financial| statements should be read in
conjunction with the conscolidated annual financial statements for the

year ended December 31, 2006.

These interim consclidated financial| statements fellow the same
accounting policies and methods of their application as the
December 31, 2006 consolidated annual financial statements except as

disclosed in note 2.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the

current period's presentation.
Changes in accounting and estimates

Foreign currency translation

The Company has determined that the Company's foreign operations

became self sustaining upon the acquisition of 13 sawmills in the
United States (note 3). Accordingly,‘on March 31, 2007,
changed its tramslation method from the temporal method to the

current rate method.

the Company

Under the current rate method all assets and liabilities are




translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date
and the resulting unrealized gains or losses are included in
accumulated other comprehensive earn?ngs. Under the temporal method,
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate
in effect at the balance sheet date Yhile non-monetary items are
translated at historical exchange rates.

The result of this change in accounting peolicy was a reduction of
$18.2 million in accumulated other comprehensive earnings included in
shareholders' equity. Unrealized gaiqs or losses on translation are
included in other comprehensive earnings from the date of the change.

Financial instruments

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the new accounting
standards issued by the Canadian Instxtute of Chartered Accountants
for financial instruments, hedges anq comprehensive earnings. The
recommendations require the Company to account for derivatives and
financial assets held for trading or |available for sale at fair
value. Loans, receivables and investments held to maturity are
measured at amortized cost using the [effective interest rate method.
Other financial liabilities will be measured at fair value or at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate method establlishes the discount rate which
equates the estimated future cash flows with the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or liability.

Other comprehensive earnings is the method used to record revenues,
expenses, gains and losses on net fingncial assets that are not
required to be included in earnings. Foreign currency translation
gains and losses on self-sustaining forelgn operations will be
included in other comprehensive earnlngs Comprehensive earnings are
the sum of earnings (loss) for the period plus other comprehensive
earnings (loss).

The adoption of the new recommendations did not materially impact the
Company's financial statements.

Change in estimates
The December 31, 2006 estimate of aCCfued incentive compensation was
reduced by $8.0 million in the quartef resulting in a reduction to
selling, general and administration expenses.

Acquisition
On March 31, 2007 the Company acquired 13 sawmills from International

Paper Company ("IP") for $389.6 million. The 13 mills are located in
the southern United States.

The transaction resulted in the termlnatlon of supply contracts under
which IP agreed to purchase 170,000 tonnes of NBSK pulp annually. The
terminated pulp supply contracts Here|entered into as part of the
Company's 2004 acquisition of Weldwooq of Canada Limited and had a
remaining term of less than eight years. These pulp supply contracts
were valued at $10.4 million based on |an analysis of market
conditions at the time of termination {and a settlement gain of

$10.4 million is recorded in other income.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method,
whereby the purchase consideration waé allocated to the estimated
fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
effective date of the purchase. The Ccmpany has not yet finalized the
allocation of the purchase cost for the acquisition. The preliminary




allocation of the purchase cost is ba
estimates and information available a
consclidated financial statements and

The preliminary purchase price alloca

Current assets
Current liabilities
Property, plant and equipment

Consideratieon

Consideration attributed to terminati
pulp supply contracts

The allocation above includes estimat

§ed on management's best
t the time of preparing these
any changes may be material.

tion is as follows:

on of

ed costs related to the

acguisition of $6.2 million. Actual amounts incurred may differ from

this estimate and any such difference
allocation,

Other assets

Power purchase agreements - net
Investments

Advances for timber and timber deposﬁ

will be factored into the final

March 31, December 31,

2007 2006

5 100.6 s 102.4

9.7 10.7

ts 17.9 14.6
s 128.2 $ 127.7

2007 2006
Cdn $125 debentures due 2007; interegt
at 6.8% $ 125.0 S 125.0
Cdn $150 debentures due 2009; interest
at 4.94% 150.0 150.0
Cdn $100 term note due 2010; interest at
floating rates(1) 100.0 -
US $300 senior notes due 2014, interest
at 5.2% 346.4 349.46
Cdn $§3 term note; interest at fleoating
rates (1) 3.0 3.3
Cdn $4 note payable due 2020; interest at 5.5% 2.8 -
Deferred financing costs (4.5) (3.7)
722.7 624.2
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (128.2) (128.2)
$ 594.5 $ 496.0

(1) Floating rates are based on Prime
or LIBCR at the Company's optionI

, US base, Banker's Acceptances




The Company has approximately $605.0|million in revolving lines of
credit available, of which $47.9 million was drawn as at March 31,
2007. Deferred financing costs of $2E0 million are offset against
operating lcans for presentation purposes. Interest is payable at
floating rates based on Prime, US ba%e, Bankers' Acceptances or LIBOR
at the Company's option. The Company has also issued $17.1 million

under various letters of credit.
Other liabilities
March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Post-retirement obligations $ 54.3 5 54.0
Timber damage deposits 15.2 14.6
Reforestation obligations - long-term 71.6 60.1
Other asset retirement obligations ’ 9.0 8.8
$ 150.1 3 137.5
TTTTTTTmTmemosomsooooooomoeoe- [TTTTTTmmmmmmmommmmm oo
Shareholders' equity
March 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
Issued Amount Issued Amount
Common 39,889,483 'S 597.9 37,886,731 $ 597.6
Class B common 2,885,206 0.3 4,885,206 0.5
Total Common 42,774,689 598.2 42,771,937 598.1
Retained earnings 1,630.2 1,641.3
Accumulated other
comprehensive earnings {18.2) -
Share purchase lcans {(0.2) (0.3)
Shareholders' equity '$ 2,210.0 $ 2,239.1

Common shares

For the three months ended March 31, 2007, the Company issued

2,752 Common shares for cash of $0.1 million and 2,000,000 Class B
common shares in the amount of $0.2 pillion were exchanged for Commeon
shares (for the three months ended March, 2006 the Company issued
3,422 Common shares for cash of $0.ﬂ million).

Restructuring charge

In the first quarter of 2006, the Company expensed $37.6 million
related to a restructuring of the pulp mill in Hinton, Alberta. Of
this amount, $34.8 million was for the writedown of property, plant,
egquipment and timber with the balance for other restructuring costs.

Income taxes
The Company's effective tax rate is as follows:
January 1 to January 1 to

Ma:rch 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Amount % Amount %




10. Employee future benefits
The total benefit cost of the Company's defined benefit pension plans
was $5.6 million for the three month$ ended March 31, 2007 (three
months ended March 31, 2006 - $5.7 million).
l1. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated based on earnings available to
Common shareholders, as set out below, using the weighted average
number of Common shares outstanding. [Diluted earnings per share
assume the exercise of share options!using the treasury stock method.
January 1 to March 31
2007 2006
Earnings (loss) 5 (5.1) 5 6.1
e et
Weighted average number of shares (tﬂousands)
Weighted average shares - basic | 42,761 42,740
Share options - treasury stock methoq 473 375
Weighted average shares - diluted 43,234 43,115
e ol
Earnings per share (dollars)}
Basic $ (0.12) $ 0.14
Diluted $ (0.12) $ 0.14
_________________________________________  RGeE PR R PR R e e e
For the use of CNW GROUP SERVICE only
West Fraser shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol: !'WFT"
>

Income taxes at statutory

rates $ 2.8 34.1 § (3.5) {(34.1)
Large corporations tax - - (0.7} (6.7)
Non-taxable amounts 0. 4 4.7 (0.7} {6.7)
Rate differentials between

jurisdictions and on

specified activities 0L9 9.9 1.9 18.4
Other (ol gy (9.4) (0.8) (7.8)
Income tax recovery (expense) § 3.3 39.3 § (3.8) (36.9)

$SEDAR: 00002660E

/For further information: Mr. Martti Seoli

n, Executive Vice-President,

Finance and Corporate Develcopment and Chief Financial|Officer; Mr. Rodger

Hutchinson, Vice-President, Corporate Controller,

www.westfraser. com/
(WFT.)

CO: West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

CNW 17:48e 23-APR-07

(604) 895-2700,




The following is the report required by section 4.5 of Na

1.

(a)

ALTERNATIVE MONTHLY EARLY

WARNING REPORT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 4.5 OF
NATIONAL INSTRUMENT 62-103

Name and address of the eligible institutional

AIM Funds Management Inc.
5140 Yonge Street, Suite 900
Toronto, Ontario

M2N 6X7

Name of reporting issuer with respect to which this report is filed: f;‘

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Month with respect to which this report is file

March 2007

ional Instrument 62-103:

investor:

d:

Net increase or decrease in the number or principal amount of securities and, in the

cligible institutional investor’s securityholdin

g percentage in the class of securities,

since the last report filed by the cligible institutional investor:

The last report filed by the Eligible Institutional Investor was for information as at March
31, 2006, (the “March Report™). Since the March Report, there has been a decrease of

107,600 common shares of the Reporting Issuer

*Shares™) held by the Ehgible

Institutional Investor (a decreasc of 0.36% in sccurityholding percentage).

Designation and number or principal amlount of securities and the eligible
institutional investor’s securityholding perceintage in the class of securities at the
end of the month for which this report is made:

As at March 30, 2007, the Eligible Institutional Investor had control or direction over

4,857,292 Sharcs representing 12.18% of the outh

tanding Sharcs of the Reporting Issuer.

Designation and number or principal amount of securities and the percentage of

outstanding securities referred to in item 5 ov

er which:

the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint actors,

has ownership and control:

None.




10.

(b)

(c)

the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint actors,
has ownership but control is held by other persons or companies other than the
eligible institutional investor or any joint actor:

None.

the eligible institutional investor, cither alone or together with any joint actors,
has exclusive or shared control but does not have ownership:

All of the securitics of the Reporting Issuer described in item § are held by the
Eligible Institutional Investor on behalf of client accounts over which it has
discretionary trading authority. These securities arc controlled but not owned by the
Eligible Institutional Investor.

Purpose of the eligible institutional investor land any joint actors in acquiring or
disposing of ownership of, or control over,|the securities, including any future
intention to acquire ownership of, or control over, additional sccurities of the
reporting issuer:

The Shares were disposed of, in the ordinary coursc of business, for investment purposes.
The Eligible Institutional Investor may acquirc control or direction over additional
securities in the future; however, this is not cxpected to result in the Eligible Institutional
Investor, cither alone or together with any joint actors, possessing effective control over
the Reporting Issuer.

The general nature and the material terms of any agreement, other than lending
arrangements, with respect to securities of the reporting issuer entered into by the
eligible institutional investor, or any joint actor, and the issuer of the securities or
any other person or company in connectmn with any transaction or occurrence
resulting in the change in ownership or control giving rise to the report, including
agreements with respect to the acquisition, holding, disposition or voting of any of
the securities:

There are no such agreements and therefore this item 1s not applicable.

The names of any joint actors in connection with the disclosure required by this
report:

None.

If applicable, a description of any change in any material fact set out in a previous
report by the eligible institutional investor|in respect of the reporting issuer’s
securities:

Since the March Report, there has been a decrease of 107,600 Shares held by the Eligible
Institutional Investor (a decrease of 0.36% in securityholding percentage).




11.  Statement regarding cligibility to file reports under Part 4 of National Instrument
62-103 in respect of the reporting issuer:

The Eligible Institutional Investor is cligible to file reports under Part 4 of National
Instrument 62-103 in respect of the Reporting [ssuer.

Dated the 10™ day of April, 2007.

AIM Funds Management Inc.

By:  “Wayne Boiton”
Authorized Signatory

Wayne Bolton
Name

Vice President, Compliance
Title




AIM TRIMARK INVESTMENTS
5140 Yonge Street, Suite 900
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M2N 6X7
www._aimtrimark.com

Sara Guzzwell

Senior Law Clerk

T: 416.228.4737

F: 416.590.1621
sara.guzzwell@aimtrimark.com

April 10, 2007

TO:

Alberta Securities Commission

British Columbia Sccurities Commission

The Manitoba Securitics Commission

Saskatchewan Financial Scrvices Commission, Securittes Division
Ontario Securitics Comimission

Autorité des marchés financiers du Québcc

New Brunswick Securines Commission

Nova Scotia Sccurities Commission

Prince Edward Island Securitics Office

Sccuritics Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador
Securities Registry, Northwest Territories

Corporate Affairs, Department of Community Services, Yukon
Legal Registries Division, Department of Justice, Nunavut

Dcar Sirs/Mesdamges:

Re:

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

We enclose the Alternative Monthly Early Waming Report filed by AIM Funds Management Inc. as third
panty filer in connection with the above-noted Corporation in accordance with Section 4.5 of National
Instrument 62-103 regarding the Early Warning System.

If you have any questions or concerns regarding the foregoing, please do not hesitate to contact me at 416-
228-4737.

Yours truly,

AIM FUNDS MANAGEMENT INC.

(Signed) “Sara Guzzwell”

Sara Guzzwell
Senior Law Clerk



News release via Canada NewsWire, Vancouver 604-669-7764

Attention Business/Financial Editors:
West Fraser completes acquisition of U.S. lumber business

(TSX: WET)

VANCOUVER, March 31 /CNW/ - West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. (TSX: WFT)
announced today that, further to its news releases of November 29, 2006 and
January 4, 2007, it has completed its acquisition of 13 sawmills located in
the southern United States from International Paper Company (NYSE: IP). The
business will be operated by a wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary of West Fraser.

About West Fraser

Headquartered in Vancouver, B.C., West Fraser is an integrated forest
products company that produces lumber, LVL, MDF, plywood, pulp, linerboard,
kraft paper and newsprint. West Fraser has manufacturing operations in British
Columbia, Alberta and the southern United States and, with the completion of
the U.S. South acquisition, has approximately 9,100 employees. All of West
Fraser's managed Canadian woodlands are certified to a third-party and
independently-verified sustainable forest management standard, either the
Sustainable Forestry Initiative (SFI}) or Canada's national standard for
sustainable forest management (CAN/CSA Z809).

%SEDAR: (00002660E
/For further information: Martti Sclin, Executive Vice-President, Finance
and Corporate Development and Chief Financial Officer; and Rodger Hutchinson,
Vice President, Corporate Controller (604} 895-2700,
http://www.westfraser.com/
(WFT.)
CO: West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

CNW 12:45e 31-MAR-07
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notice of Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders

| To Be Held April 25, 2007
Information Circular

Y our Participation is Important

Please Take the Time to Vote
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INVITATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Sharcholders:

You are invited to atiend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd,,
which will take place on April 25, 2007 at 11:00 a.m., local time, at 1250 Brownmiller Read, Quesnel,
British Columbia.

The items of business to be considered at this Meeting are described in the accompanying Notice of
Annual General Meeting and Information Circular.

Your participation in the affairs of the Company is very important to us. We encourage you to vote,
which can be easily done by following the instructions enclosed with these materials.

At the Meeting, in addition to dealing with the matters described in the Notice, | will review the
affairs of the Company. You will also have an opportunity to ask questions and to meet the
Company’s Directors and senior executives.

In the interesis of enhanced disclosure we are continually trying 1o improve our commurications with
you. The Information Circular, for example, includes more information about the Company and we hope
you will find it easier to read.

All of our public documents, including the 2006 Annual Report and Quarterly Reports, are available on
our website located at www.westfraser.com. We encourage you to access our website during the year for
continuous disclosure items, including news releases and investor presentations,

I look forward to seeing you at the Meeting,

Y ours sincerely,
s ]
/7% ﬁ,&_

Henry H. Ketcham
Chair of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

'The annual general meeting (the “Meeting™) of sharcholders of WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LTD. (the
“Company™) will be held at 1250 Brownmiller Road, Quesnel, British Columbia on April 25, 2007 a1
11:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

1.

2.

to receive the report of the directors of the Company;

to receive the consolidated financial statements of the Company for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006, together with the auditor’s repert thereon;

to elect the directors of the Company to hold office until the close of the next annual meeting;

to appoint an auditor of the Company to hold office until the close of the next annual general
meeting and 1o authorize the directors to fix the auditor’s remuneration;

to consider and, if deemed advisable, approve the proposed amendments of the 1994 Direclor,
Officer and Employee Stock Option Plan of the Company by way of two separate and
independent resolutions;

to consider any amendment to or variation of any matter identified in this Notice; and

to transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

An Information Circular and a copy of the Annual Report of the Company for the vear ended
December 31, 2006 accompany this Notice. The Information Circular contains details of matters 10 be
considered at the Meeting. The Annual Report includes the consolidated financial statements and the
auditor’s report.

A shareholder of the Company who is unable to attend the Meeting in person and who wishes to
ensure that the shareholder’s shares will be voted at the Meeting must complete, date and sign the
enclosed form of proxy and deliver it by hand or by mail in accordance with the instructions set out
in the form of proxy and in the Information Circular,

Shareholders registered at the close of business on March 16, 2007 will be entitled to receive this Notice
and 1o vote at the Meeting.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, March 30, 2007.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Y4 7y
/’@’&7 ;\/e//.»é....
[

Henry H. Ketcham
Chair of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer




INFORMATION CIRCULAR
(As of March I, 2007, except as otherwise provided)

This Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors and
management of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. for use at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be
held at 1250 Brownmiller Road. Quesnel, British Columbia on April 25, 2007 (and at any adjournment
thereof) for the purposes set out in the attached Notice of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
DEFINITIONS

Unless stated otherwise, in this Circular

“Auditor” means the Company's external auditor, currently PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP,

“Board™” or "Board of Directors™ means the board of directors of the Company,

“CIBC Mellon” means CIBC Mellon Trust Company,

“Circular” means this information circular prepared in connection with the Meeting,

“Director” means a director of the Company,

“Meeting” means the Annual General Meeling of Sharcholders to be held an April 25, 2007 and any
adjournment thereof,

“Notice™ means the attached Notice of Annual General Meeting,
“Share” means a Common share or a Class B Common share in the capital of West Fraser,
“Shareholder”™ means a holder of any Shares,

“Stock Option Plan™ means the 1994 Director, Officer and Employee Stock Option Plan of the Company
as amended and restated June 17, 2003,

“Subsidiary” means a company controlled, directly or indirectly, by West Fraser,
“$" means Canadian dollars, and

“West Fraser”, “Company” or “we”™ means West Fraser Timber Co. Lid.




VOTING AND PROXIES: QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Your vote is important to us. Good corporate governance begins with shareholder participation. If
you cannot attend the Meeting or if you plan to attend but prefer the convenience of voting in
advance, we encourage you to exercise your vote using either of the voting methods described
below. Please read the following for answers to commonly asked gquestions regarding voting and

proxies.

Il you hold Shares in a street form or in a brokcrage account, you may not be a registered
Shareholder. Please refer to “Voting by Non-Registered Sharehelders” on page 6 for a deseription

of the procedure to be followed to vote your Shares,

Q. Am I entitled to vote?

Al You are entitled to vote if you were a
holder of Common shares of West Fraser as of
the close of business on March 16, 2007. Each
Common share entitles the holder to one vote.

Q. What am I voting on?
A. The following matters:

- the election of Directors to the Board of
Directors to hold office until the close of the
next annual general meeting;

- the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as auditor of the Company until the
close of the next annual general meeting:
and

- the proposed amendments to the Company’s
Stock Option Plan.

Q. What if amendments are made to
these matters or if other matters are
brought before the Meeting?

A. if you attend the Meeting in person and
are eligible to vote, you may vote on such
matters as you choose.

If you have completed and returned a proxy, the
persons named in the proxy form will have
discretionary  authority  with  respect  to
amendments or variations to matters identified
in the Notice and to other matters which may
properly come before the Meeting. As of the
date of this Circular, management of the

Company does not know of any such
amendment, variation or other matter expected
to come before the Meeting. If any other
matters properly come before the Meeting, the
persons named in the proxy form will vote on
them in accordance with their best judgement.

Q. Who is soliciting my proxy?

A. The management of West Fraser is
soliciting vour proxy. Solicitation of proxies is
done primarily by mail, supplemented by
telephone or other contact, by our employees,
and the Company bears all associated cosls.

Q. How do I vote?

A, 1) If your Shares are not registered in
your name but are held by a nominee,
please see “Voting by Non-Registered
Shareholders™ on page 6.

2) If you are a registered Shareholder
there are two ways thai you may vote
your Shares:

{a) you may vote in person at the
Meeting; or

(b} you mayv complete and signh the
enclosed form of proxy appointing
the named persons or another
person you choose to represent you
and to vote your Shares at the
Meeting.

If a Shareholder is a body corporate or
association, the form of proxy must be signed by




a person duly authorized by that body corporate
or association.

Completing, signing and returning your form of
proxy does not prevent you from attending the
Mecting in person.

Q. Must 1 use the enclosed form of
proxy?
Al No. If you do not wish 1o use the

enclosed proxy form, yvou may use any other
form of proxy to appoint your proxyholder,
although the Company’s Articles require that a
form of proxy be substantially in the form
enclosed.

Q. Can | appoint someone other than the
named proxyholders to vote my
Shares?

A Yes. Write the name of vour chosen

person, who need not be a Shareholder, in the
blank space provided in the form of proxy. [tis
important to ensure that any other persen you
appoint as proxyholder will attend the Meeting,
and is aware that his or her appointment has
been made to vote your Shares and that he or she
should present him/herself to a representative of
CIBC Mellon.

Q. What if my Shares are registered in
more than one name or in the name of
my company?

A. If your Shares are registered in more
than one name, all those registered must sign the
form of proxy. If your Shares are registered in
the name of your company or any name other
than yours, you may require documentation that
proves you are authorized to sign the form of
Proxy.

Q. What if I plan to attend the Meeting
and vote in person?

A. If you plan to attend the Meeting and
wish to vole your Shares in person, you do not
need to complete or return the form of proxy.
Your vote will be taken and counted at the
Meeting, Please register with the scrutineer
when you arrive at the Meeting.

A

If your Shares are not registered in your name,
but vou wish to attend the Meeting, please see
“Voting by Non-Registered Sharcholders™ on
page 6.

Q. What happens when 1 sign and return
the form of proxy?

A. Signing the enclosed proxy gives
authority to the persons named on the form, or to
another person you have appointed, to vote your
Shares at the Meeting in accordance with the
voling instructions you provide.

Q. What do I do with my completed form

of proxy?
Al Return it to the transfer agent, CIBC
Mellon, in the envelope provided, so that i

arrives no later than 11:00 am. (Vancouver
time), on April 23, 2007.

Q. How will my Shares be voted if |
return my prexy?

A. If your proxy is properly excculed and
returned by the above deadling, the persons
named in the enclosed form of proxy will vote or
withhold from voting your Shares in accordance
with yvour instructions. In the absence of such
instructions, however, your Shares will be
voted FOR the election of the Directors
nominated by management, FOR the
appointment of the Auditor and FOR the
proposed amendments to the Company’s
Stock Option Plan.

Q. If I change my mind, can I revoke my
proxy once I have given it?

A. Yes. If you are a registered Sharcholder
you can revoke your proxy with an instrument in
writing {which can be another proxy with a later
date) executed by you or your attorney
authorized in writing and delivered to CIBC
Mellon, Suite 1600, 1066 West Hastings Street,
Vancouver, B.C., V6E 3XI1, no later than
11:00 a.m. (Vancouver time) on April 23, 2007
or to the individual chairing the Meeting on the
date of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.




Please note that your participation in person in a
vote by  ballot at the Meeting would
automatically revoke any proxy you have given
in respect of the item of business covered by that
vote.

If vou are not a registered Shareholder, see
“Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders”™ on
page 6.

Q. What documents are sent to
Shareholders?
A. Shareholders will receive a package of

the usual annual corporate documents (our 2006
Annual  Report, including the Annual
Information Form, the Notice, this Circular and
the form of proxy).

Copies of our Annual Report, including our
audited consolidated firancial statements, are
filed with Canadian securities regulators and are
available at  www.sedar.com under the
Company’s profile and may also be obtained,
without charge, on request from the Corporale
Secretary of West Fraser.

Q. Who are the Principal Shareholders
of the Company?

A. The Principal Shareholders (persons or
companies that beneficially own or exercise
control or direction over more than 0% of the
outstanding Shares of the Company) arc set out
in the Circular under the heading “Principal
Shareholders™.

Q. What if I have other questions?

A. If you have a question regarding the
Meeting, please contact our Transfer Agent or
the Corporate Secretary of West Fraser at
(604) 691-7429.

Q. How can I contact the Transfer
Agent?
A. You can contact the Transfer Agent at:

CIBC Mellon Trust Company
1600 - 1066 West Hastings Street
Vancouver, British Columbia V6E 3X1

Telephone: (604) 688-4330

(toll free throughout Canada: 1-800-387-0825)
Telecopier: (416) 368-2502

E-mail: inguiries@cibemellon.com

Website: www.cibcmellon.com

VOTING BY NON-REGISTERED
SHAREHOLDERS

Q. If my Shares are not registered in my
name, how do I vote my Shares?

A. Our share regisier does not list non-
registered or beneficial Shareholders. Their
Shares are held in the name of an intermediary
or a “nominee”, which is usuvally a trust
company, securities broker or other financial
institution. If you are a non-regisiered
Shareholder, there are two ways that you can
vote your Shares:

i) By providing voting instructions to
your nominee

Applicable securities laws require your nominge
to seek voting instructions from you in advance
of the Meeting. Accordingly, you will receive,
or have already received with these materials,
from your nominee either a request for voting
instructions or a form of proxy for the number of
Shares you hold. Every nominee has its own
mailing procedures and provides its own signing
and return instructions, which you should follow
carefully to ensure that your Shares are voted at
the Meeting.

2} By attending the Meeting in person

The Company generally does not have access to
the names of its non-registered Shareholders.
Therefore, if you attend the Meeting, the
Company will have no record of your
shareholdings or of your entitlement to vote




unless your nominee has appointed you as registered  Shareholder and instruct your
proxyholder. nominec 1o appoint yourself as proxyholder, you

should present yourself to the scrutineer of the
If you wish 1o vote in person at the Meeting, Meeting with appropriate identification.

insert your own name in the space provided on
the request for voting instructions or form of
proxy provided by your nominee to appoint
vourself as proxyholder. If you are a non-




BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE MEETING

(See Notice of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)

1 Prescntation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
vear ended December3t, 2006 and the
Auditor’s Report for 2006 will be submitted to
Sharcholders at the Meeting, but no vote with
respect thereto is required or proposed to be
taken. The consolidated financial statements are
included in our Annual Report which is being
mailed 1o Shareholders with the Notice and this
Circular.

2) Election of Directors

The table of nominees on the following pages
sels out the name of each person proposed to be
nominated for election as a Director, as well as
other relevant information. The Board and
management of the Company recommend the
election of the nine nominees set out in the table
of nominees to fill the nine positions as Director.
Each Director elected at the Meeting will hold
office until the next annual general meeting or
until the Director’s successor is appointed or
elected.

The Directors may fill vacancies on the Board
resulting from the death, resignation or
retirement of Directors. As well, the Board is
authorized to appoint up to two additional
Directors to hold office until not later than the
next annual general meeting.

3) Appointment of Auditor

The Auditor is 1o be appointed to serve until the
ctose of the next annual general meeling of the

Company, and the Directors are to be authorized
to fix the Auditor's remuneration.

The Board of Directors and imanagement of the
Company, on the advice of the Audit
Committee, recommend that
PricewaterhouseCoopers  LLP,  Vancouver,
Canada, be re-appointed as Auditor, at a
remuneration to be fixed by the Directors.

A representative of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLLP will be present at the Meeting and will have
the opportunity to make a statement if the
representative so desires. The represemtative
will also be available to answer questions.

4) Amendment of Stock Option Plan

Shareholders will be asked to consider two
proposed amendments 1o the Stock Option Plan.
The first amendment will increase by 1.5 million
the number of Common shares that may be
issued under share purchase options granted
under the Stock Option Plan.  The second
amendment adds certain limits on the number of
share purchase options that may be issued to
insiders of the Company, establishes certain
restrictions on amendments to the Stock Option
Plan without shareholder approval, provides for
certain automatic extensions for share purchase
options expiring during or within five business
days of a blackout period under the Company’s
Securities Trading Policy and addresses certain
incidental housekeeping matters. A detailed
description of the proposed amendments is set
out in this Circular.




INFORMATION REGARDING NOMINEES FOR ELECTION AS DIRECTORS

The following table sets out the name of each person we propose be nominated for election as a Director,
as well as that person’s position in the Company, residence and principal occupation, and the date that
person first became a Director. Additional information concerning compensation and security holdings of
Directors is included in this Circular under “Executive Compensation™.

The term of office of each of the current Directors will expire at the conclusion of the Meeting. Each
Director elected will hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company
at which a Director is elected, unless the Director’s office is earlier vacated in accordance with the
Articles of the Company or the provisions of the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia).

Unless otherwise indicated, the nominee has held the same or similar principal occupation with the
organization set out below, or a predecessor of that organization, for the last five years. The information
as to principal occupation and Shares beneficially owned or controlled by each nominee has been
furnished by the respective nominee and is not within the knowledge of the management of the Company.

The following table also sets out committee memberships of the proposed nominees as a1 March 1, 2007.
West Fraser has four committees: audit, compensation, safety & environmem, and governance &
nominating.

HENRY H. KETCHAM Director since September 16, 1985

Henry H. Ketcham was born on December 1, 1949 and currently resides in Vancouver,

and 1,743,228 Class B Common shares of the Company. Mr. Ketcham has been
actively involved with the Company since 1973. He is currently a director of The
Toronto-Dominion Bank.

CLARK S. BINKLEY Director since February 1, 1992
Clark S. Binkley was born on December 1, 1949 and currently resides in Cambridge,

of Imernational Foresiry Investment Advisors, a firm he founded to provide timberland
investment advisory services to sophisticated investors. Between 1998 and 2005,
Dr. Binkley was Senior Vice-President of Hancock Natural Resource Group, Inc., a
timberland investment company. Between 1990 and 1998, Dr. Binkley was the Dean
of the Faculty of Forestry at the University of British Columbia in Vancouver,
Dr. Binkley is currently the Chair of the Safety & Environment Committee and a

currently a director of TimberWest Forest Corp. and Cellfor Inc,, a private forest-
biotechnology company.

British Columbia, Canada. Mr. Ketcham is Chair of the Board and holds the offices of
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Ketcham is also a director
and shareholder of Ketcham Investments, Inc., which owns 3,109,745 Common shares

Muassachusetts, U.S.A. Since April 2005 Dr. Binkley has been the Managing Director

member of the Audit and the Governance & Nominating Committees. Dr. Binkley is
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J. DUNCAN GIBSON

E £

Director since April 29, 1997

J. Duncan Gibson was borm on November 3, 1949 and curremly resides in Toronto,
Omario, Canada. Since November 2001, Mr. Gibson has been a business investor.
Before November 200}, Mr. Gibson was Vice-Chairman of the Commercial Banking
Division of The Toronto-Dominion Bank. Mr. Gibson is currently the Chair of the
Audit Committee and is a member of the Compensation and the Governance &
Nominating Committees. Mr. Gibson is currently a director of FNX Mining Company
Inc. and Futuremed Health Care Income Fund.

WILLIAM H. KETCHAM

Director since April 23, 2002

William H. Ketcham was born on September 20, 1960 and currently resides in New
York, New York, US.A. Mr. Ketcham is a Managing Director at Serafin Partners
LLP, a private equity investment firm. From July 2003 until March 2005 he was a
Managing Director at Fortress Investment Group LLC, a private equity investment
firm. From December 2002 until July 2003 Mr. Ketcham was Managing Partner of
Serafin Partners, LLP and from January 1999 to December 2002 he was Vice-
President of Apex Learning Inc. A trust of the estate of Samuel Kendall Ketcham, of
which Mr, Ketcham is a trustee and a beneficiary, owns 2,477,056 Common shares of
the Company. Mr. Ketcham is a member of the Safety & Environment and the
Governance & Nominating Committees. Mr. Ketcham does not currently serve as a
director of any other public company.

WILLIAM P. KETCHAM

Director since December 1, 1966

William P. Ketcham was born on July 9, 1925 and currently resides in Seattle,
Washington, U.S.A. He was a co-founder of the Company and has been involved in
the Company’s affairs since its inception. Mr. Ketcham is Chairman of the Board of
Henry H. Ketcham Lumber Co., Inc., a private investment company, located in Seattle
and is a director and controlling shareholder of Tysa Investments, Inc. which owns
2,177,363 Common shares and 833,066 Class B Common shares of the Company.
Mr. Ketcham is a member of the Audit and the Governance & Nominating
Committees. Mr. Ketcham does not currenily serve as a director of any other public
company,

HARALD H. LUDWIG

Director since May 2, 1995

Harald H. Ludwig was bom on November2, 1954 and currently resides in West
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. Mr. Ludwig is President of Macluan Capital
Corporation, a diversified private equity investment company. He is currently the
Chair of the Compensation Committee and a member of the Govemance &
Nominating Committee. Mr. Ludwig is currently a director, Co-Chair of the board,
and Chair of the Strategic Commitiee of Lions Gale Entertainment Corp. and a
member of the Advisory Board of Tennenbaum Capital Partners, LLC (private equity).
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BRIAN F. MacNEILL

Director since September 13, 2000

Brian F. MacNeill was bom on July V1, 1939 and currently resides in Calgary, Alberta,
Canada. Mr. MacNeill is a Fellow Chartered Accountant and is Chair of the Board of
Petro-Canada Inc., a Canadian-based energy exploration, development, refining and
marketing company. [n that capacity, he also serves as an ex officio member of each
committee of the board of Petro-Canada. Before January 2001, Mr. MacNeill was
President and Chief Executive Officer of Enbridge Inc. Mr. MacNeill is the Board’s
Lead Director and in that capacity is Chair of the Governance & Nominating
Committee. He is also a member of the Compensation Committee. In addition to
Petro-Canada Inc., Mr. MacNeill is currently a director of Telus Corporation and The
Toronto-Dominion Bank.

Director since April 28, 2005

Robert L. Phillips was born on January 19, 1931 and currently resides in Vancouver,
British Columbia, Canada. Prior to July 2004, Mr. Phillips was Presidemt and Chief
Executive Officer of the BCR Group of Companies which was involved in rail
transportation and marine terminal operations. Before joining BCR, Mr. Phillips was
Executive Vice President, Business Development and Strategy for MacMilkan Bloedel
Limited and has held the position of President and Chief Executive Officer of the PT]
Group Inc. and Dreco Energy Services Lid. Mr. Phillips has also enjoyed a prestigious
law career and was appointed Queen’s Counsel in Alberta in 1991. Mr. Phillips is a
member of the Safety & Environment and the Governance & Nominating Committees,
Mr. Phillips is currently a director of several corporations, including Canadian Western
Bank, EPCOR Utilities Inc., MacDonald, Dettwiler and Associates Ltd. and Precision
Drilling Corporation. Mr. Phillips has attained degrees in chemical engineering,
business and law from the University of Alberta.

JANICE G. RENNIE

Dhrector since April 28, 2004

Janice G. Rennie was born on June 29, 1957 and currently resides in Edmonton,
Alberta, Canada. Mrs. Rennie is a Fellow Chartered Accountant and is currently a
corporate director. From September 7, 2004 to September 9, 2005 she was the Senior
Vice-President, FHluman Resources and Organizational Effectiveness of EPCOR
Utilities Inc., a provider of energy, water and energy-related services and products on
whose board Mrs. Rennie served for over 10 years. Before September 7, 2004,
Mrs. Rennie was the Principal of Rennie & Associates which provided investment and
related advice to small and mid-sized companies. Mrs. Rennie is a member of the
Audit, the Safety & Environment and the Governance & Nominating Comrmnittees.
Mrs. Rennie is currently a Trustee of Canadian Hotel Income Properties REIT and a
director of Nova Chemicals Corporation, Greystone Capital Management Inc.,
Matrikon Inc. and Methanex Corporation.

All of the above nominees have consented to act as Director of West Fraser if elected. We do not
contemplate that any of the proposed nominees will be unable to serve as a Director, but if that occurs for
any reason before the Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy reserve the right to vote
for another nominee at their discretion.

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 1, 2007, a total of 39,888,607 Common shares and 2,885,206 Class B Common shares were
issued, each carrying the right to one vote.
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To the knowledge of the Directors and senior officers of the Company, the only persons who, as at
March 1, 2007 beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or exercised control or direction over, Shares
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of the Company are
as follows:

Amount Beneficially % of Total
Name of Beneficial Holder Fitle of Class Owned or Controlled of Class Votes
Ketcham [nvesiments, Inc. ! Common 3,109,745 7.8 .
Seattle, Washington Class B Common 1,743,228 60.4 4.1
11.
Tysa Invesiments, Inc. Common 2.177.363 5.5 5.1
Seattle, Washington Class B Common 833,066 28.9 1.9
.0
AIM Funds Management Inc.’” | Common 4,749,692 11.9 1.1
Jarislowsky, Fraser Limited Common 6.195,879 15.5 14.5

(1} Ketcham Investments, Inc. is controlled by the family of Henry I, Ketcham, the Chair, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

(2)  Tysa Investments, Inc. is controlled by William P. Ketcham, a director of the Company.

(3) Disclosure as at April 10, 2006. Held on behalt of client accounts over which it has discretionary trading authority.

(4) Disclosure as at March 1, 2004. Includes holdings of mutual funds, pension funds, and other managed client accounts. The Company is not
aware of any change in holdings since March |1, 2004

THE AUDITOR

The current Auditor of the Company is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, of 700 -
250 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has been our Auditor for
more than five years.

The Auditor is elected by the Shareholders and performs its role as Auditor on behalf of the Shareholders.
In connection with the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements, the Auditor reports the results
of the audit to the Shareholders. The Auditor is required to confirm to the Audit Committee its
independence from management in connection with the audit in order to assure the Shareholders that the
audit is effective. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has confirmed its independence from management in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the period ending December 31,
2006.

All services provided by the Auditor are subject to the pre-approval of the Audit Commitiee through
established procedures and a written policy. Management provides regular updates to the Audit
Committee of the services that the Auditor undertakes on the Company’s behall.

BDuring 2006, the Audit Commitiee met with the Auditor and members of our senior management to
review the overall scope and specific plans for the audit of our consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Auditor received and discussed our unaudited guarterly financial statements and earnings
releases with management and the Audit Committee as required from time to time.

The Auditor, the Audit Committee and management maintain regular and open communications
regarding the audit of our financial statements. No disagreements arose among the Auditor, the Audit
Committee and management on matters affecting the audit of our financial statements.
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For additional information concerning the Audit Committee and its members see “Audit Committee™ in
the Company’s Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2006, which is available at
www.sedar.com under the Company’s profile.

AMENDMENT OF STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Stock Option Plan is intended to provide an equity-based incentive to executives and key employees
and, at the same time, promote the creation of value for Shareholders over the long term. Details of the
current Stock Option Plan are included in the report on Executive Compensation of the Compensation
Committee on page 27 under “Stock Option Plan™ and page 29 under “Compensation of Directors and
Senior Officers™. A full copy of the current Stock Option Plan as well as the complete text of the
proposed amended and restated Stock Option Plan will be provided to any Shareholder upon request in
writing to the Corporate Secretary, Suite 501 — 585 Beatty Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6B 1C)
or by emailing to shareholder@westfraser.com.

Increase of Available Shares

Shareholders will be asked to consider a resolution to increase the maximum number of Common shares
that may be issued on the exercise of share purchase options (“Options™) under the Stock Option Plan by
1,500,000 Common shares (the “*Share Increase Amendment™), in addition to certain other proposed
amendments to the Stock Opiion Plan described below (the “Additional Amendments™). Both the Share
Increase Amendment and the Additional Amendments (collectively, the “Propesed Amendments™) have
been approved by the Toronto Stock Exchange conditional upon Shareholder approval,

The Stock Option Plan has been in place and Options issued under it since 1994 and there are currently
3,505,506 Common shares authorized for issuance pursuant to Options granted under the Stock Option
Pian. As of March I, 2007, taking into account Options that have terminated or been cancelled, Options
with respect to a net total of 2,459,886 Common shares, representing 5.8% of the total number of issued
and outstanding Common shares and Class B Common shares, have been granted to participants under
the Stock Option Plan and remain outstanding, Option exercises have resulied in the issuance of 128,792
Common shares, Options with respect to an additional 737,039 Common shares have been surrendered
under the Cash Value Alernative (as defined below) provided for under the Stock Option Plan and
179,789 Common shares remain available for the grant of Options under the Stock Option Plan. As a
result, as of March 1, 2007, a total of 2,639,675 Common shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to
Options granted under the Stock Option Plan, representing 6.2% of the total number of issued and
outstanding Common shares and Class B Common shares as of March 1, 2007.

If the Share Increase Amendment is approved, the maximum number of Common shares authorized for
issuance pursuant to Options granted under the Stock Option Plan will be 5,005,506 which, 1aking into
account those subject to Options that have been exercised or surrendered under the Cash Value
Alternative, will, as of March I, 2007, permit the Company to issue up to 4,139,675 Common shares
pursuant to Options, representing 9.7% of the total number of issued and outstanding Common shares and
Class B Common shares as of March 1, 2007.

In 2003 the Company amended the Stock Option Plan to permit a holder of an Option to surrender an
option in exchange for the amount, per Common share, by which the market value of a Common share
exceeds the exercise price of the Option (the “Cash Value Alternative™). Since implementation of the
Cash Value Alternative, Options representing a total of 737,039 Common shares have been surrendered
pursuant to it while only 31,603 Common shares have been issued on the exercise of outstanding Options.
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Weslt Fraser recognizes that Options granted to executives and key employees represent potential dilution
of current Shareholdings. The Company’s management believes that the Cash Value Alternative will
significantly reduce the ditutive effect of Options granted under the Stock Option Plan while still
providing the Company with a valuable emplovee incentive tool. Management also believes that, given
the small number of Common shares that have been issued in connection with Option exercises since the
implementation of the Cash Value Alternative, and that fact that most of the Directors have met the
Company’s minimum share ownership requircment, there will not be any material dilution of
Shareholdings arising as a result of the exercise of Options granted under the Stock Option Plan.
Management believes that the Stock Option Plan, with its Cash Value Alternative, operates in a manner
similar to the types of long-term incentive plans currently recommended by major institutional
shareholder groups for public companies in North America.

Additional Amendments
The Additional Amendments are as follows:

(a) to revise the amendment provisions of the Stock Option Plan to specify which
amendments require Shareholder approval;

(b) to provide that when the expiry date of an Option occurs during or within five business
days of one of the Company’s blackout periods during which employees are restricted from
trading in the Company’s securities (including exercising Options), the Option expiry date will be
the 10™ business day following the expiry of the blackout period;

(c) to confirm that non-employee directors of the Company are ineligible to receive Options
under the Stock Option Plan; and

(d) to establish certain limitations with respect to the number of Options held by insiders of
the Company,

The rationale for each of these amendments is noted below.
Amendment Provisions

The Toronto Stock Exchange has announced that effective June 30, 2007 it would no longer permit
amendments to be made to a stock option plan of a listed company unless its shareholders approve revised
amendment provisions that specify the circumstances in which shareholder approval is or is not required
for an amendment. The Board believes that, except for certain material changes to the Stock Option Plan
(described below under “Resolutions — Additional Amendments™), it is important that the Board have the
flexibility to make changes 10 the Stock Option Plan without Shareholder approval. Such amendments
could include making appropriate adjustments to outstanding Options in the event of cenain corporate
transactions, the addition of provisions requiring forfeiture of Options in certain circumstances, specifying
practices with respect to applicable tax withholdings and changes 1o enhance clarity or correct ambiguous
provisions in the Stock Option Plan.

Blackout Periods
Under the Company’s Securities ‘Trading Policy, specified employees are restricted from trading in

securities of the Company during periodic blackout periods under such policy or imposed by the
Company. The Additional Amendments address the situation where an Option holder is unable 10
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exercise an Oplion expiring during or within five business days of a blackout period by providing that the
expiry date of the Option will be the 10™ business day following the expiry of the blackout period.

Non-Employee Directors Ineligible

In February of 2004 the Compensation Committee of the Board recommended that non-employee
Directors no longer be eligible to receive Options under the Stock Option Plan. The Board accepted that
recommendation and adopted a deferred share unit plan for those Directors. The Company is proposing
to amend the Stock Option Plan to confirm that non-employee Directors are no longer eligible to receive
Options under the Stock Option Plan.

Insiders

The Stock Option Plan currently does not contain restrictions with respect to Option holdings of
“Insiders™ (being Directors, officers and holders of more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of
the Company). The Company is proposing to amend the Stock Option Plan in order to restrict the number
of Common shares that may be subject to Options held by Insiders as follows:

(a) annual grants of Options to Insiders will not be in respect of a number of Common shares
that exceeds 1% of the total number of outstanding voting securities of the Company (the “1ssued
Shares™);

(b) no single Insider will hold, at any time, Options that would permit the Insider Lo acquire a
number of Common shares that, when combined with all other Common shares issuable to the
Insider under any other equity compensation arrangements then in place, would exceed 5% of the
Issued Shares;

{c) the total number of Options held at any time by Insiders will not permit them to acquire
in total a number of Common shares that, when combined with all other Common shares issuable
to [nsiders under any other equity compensation arrangements then in place, would exceed 10%
of the Issued Shares; and

(d) the number of Common shares that may be acquired by all Insiders during any 12-month
peried by exercising Options, when combined with all other Common shares issuable to insiders
under any other equity compensation arrangements then in place, may not exceed 10% of the
Issued Shares.

Incidental and Ancillary Amendments
The Company is also proposing certain incidental and ancillary amendments to the Stock Option Plan at
this time. None of those changes, on its own or together with all other such changes, constitutes a
material change to the Stock Option Plan.

Resolutions

Shareholders will be asked at the Meeting to pass each of the following resolutions, with or without
variation, relating 1o the Proposed Amendments:
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Share Increase Amendnent

THAT the Stock Option Plan be amended to provide that the number of Common shares that may be
allotted for issuance pursuant to the exercise of share purchase options (“Options™) under the Stock
Option Plan be increased by an additional 1,500,000 Common shares, from 3,505,506 10 5,005,506.
Additional Amendments

THAT the Stock Option Plan be amended to:

l. change the amendment provisions of the Stock Option Plan to clarify that Shareholder approval is
not required for amendments except for any amendment or modification that:

(a) increases the number of Common shares reserved for issuance under the Stock Option
Plan;
(b) reduces the exercise price of an Option except for the purpose of maintaining Option

value in connection with a subdivision or consolidation of, or payment of a dividend payable in,
Common shares or a reorganization, reclassification or other change or event affecting the
Common shares (for this purpose, cancellation or termination of an Option of a Stock Option Plan
participant prior to its expiry date for the purpose of reissuing Options to the same participant
with a lower exercise price shall be treated as an amendment to reduce the exercise price of an
Option);

{(c) extends the term of an Option beyond the expiry date or allow for the expiry date to be
greater than 10 years {except where an expiry date would have fallen within a blackout period of
the Company);

(d) permits Options to be assigned or exercised by persons other than the Option holder
except for normal estate planning or estate settlement purposes;

(e) expands the definitions of Directors, Officers or Employees for participation in the Stock
Option Plan; or

(H permits equity compensation, other than Options, to be made under the Stock Option
Plan;
2. provide that when an Option otherwise would have expired during or within five business days

aftera blackoul period imposed under the Company’s Securities Trading Policy. the expiry date witt be
the 10™ business day following the expiry of the blackout period;

3. confirm that non-employee Directors of the Company are no longer eligible to receive Options
under the Stock Option Plan;

4, restrict the granting of Options under the S1ock Option Plan as follows:
(a) annual grants of Options to Insiders are not to be in respect of a number of Common

shares that exceeds {% of the total number of outstanding voting securities of the Company (the
“Issued Shares™);
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)] no single Insider will hold, at any time, Options that would permit the [nsider to acquirc a
number of Common shares that would exceed 5% of the Issued Shares;

(<) the total number of Options held at any time by Insiders will not permit them to acquire
in total a number of Common shares that would exceed 10% of the Issued Shares;

(d) the number of Common shares that may be acquired by all Insiders during any 12-month
period by exercising Options may not exceed 10% of the 1ssued Shares; and

5. make various other incidental and ancillary amendments that are not, either individually or in the
aggregate, material.

To be effective each resolution must be passed by a majority of the votes cast thereon in person and by
proxy by the Shareholders at the Meeting. The persons designated in the enclosed form of proxy. unless
instructed otherwise, intend to vote in favour of the foregoing resolutions.

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Effective June 30, 2005, National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices
(*NI 58-1017) and National Policy 58-201 Corporate Governance Guidelines (“NP 58-2017) were
adopted in each of the provinces and territories of Canada, NI 58-101 requires issuers to disclose the
corporate governance practices that they have adopted. NP 58-201 provides guidance on corporate
governance practices. In addition, the Company is subject to Multilateral Instrument 52-110 Audit
Committees (*MI1 52-110") which has been adopted in various Canadian provinces and territories and
which prescribes certain requirements in relation to audit committees.

Governance Policy

Our Board of Directors believes that sound governance practices are essential to the effective and
efficient operation of the Company and to the enhancement of Shareholder value. We established a
corporate governance policy (the “Governance Policy™) in 2002. You can review the full text of the
Governance Policy on our website at www.westfraser.com.

The following disclosure has been prepared under the direction of our Governance & Nominating
Committee and has been approved by the Board,

Board Chair

Henry H. Ketchain has served as the Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company since 1985,
In 1996 he assumed the role of Board Chair. The Board has considered the issue of the Board Chair’s
relationship with management in the context of the need to ensure the Board’s independence from
management and has determined that the Board Chair is sufficiently aligned with Shareholder interests to
ensure Board independence from management. The Board Chair is a director and shareholder, and is
retated to the other directors and shareholders, of Ketcham Investments, Inc., whose shareholdings are
described under “*Principal Shareholders™ on page 11. Ketcham Investments, Inc. acts in concert with
Tysa Investments, Inc. which is also a Principal Shareholder of the Company. The Board considers that
these relationships assure that the Board Chair is closely aligned with Shareholder interests and that
separating the position of Board Chair from executive functions is an unnecessary step. However, the
Board has established the position of Lead Director to ensure that the Board’s independence from
management is clear both in fact and in appearance.




- 18-

Lead Director

Brian MacNeill served as Lead Director during 2006. The Board has stipulated that if, and as long as, the
Board Chair is also a member of management, the Board will ensure that one of its non-management
Directors is appointed as Lead Director. The Lead Director’s role is to focus on enhancing the
effectiveness of the Board and to help ensure that it functions in an independent and cohesive fashion. In
addition, the Lead Director participates in setting agendas for Board meetings, chairs regular meetings of
the Governance & Nominating Committee of the Board (from which Directors who are members of
management are excluded), acts as a liaison between members of the Board and management when
necessary, and ensures that the Board has the resources necessary to effectively carry out its functions.

Governance & Nominating Committee

The Board has established a Governance & Nominating Committee comprised entirely of
non-management Directors. The mandate of the Governance & Nominating Committee is summarized
later in this Circular under “Committees of the Board”. The Board, through the Governance &
Nominating Committee, monitors changes to the regulatory, business and investment environments with
respect to governance practices and regularly reviews governance issues with a view to ensuring that both
our Governance Policy and the actual practice of the Company continue to serve the best interests of our
Shareholders, employees and other stakeholders.

Code of Conduct

In 2004 our Board approved a Code of Conduct for the Company, its Directors, officers and employees.
The Code sets out expectations for safety and health, environmental stewardship, conflicts of interest,
ethical conduct and other areas of corporate activity. The Code includes an acknowledgement with
respect to compliance to be signed annually by all Directors and members of management. The Code also
makes provision for a “whistle-blower™ procedure which provides for reporting of potential breaches of
the Code to a non-management source in circumstances where a report to management might be
considered necessary or advisable. The full text of the Code of Conduct may be viewed on our website at
www.westfraser.com.

Charters

The Board has developed and approved formal charters for each of the Audit, Governance & Nominating
and Safety & Environment Committees as well as formal position descriptions for each of the positions of
Board Chair, Lead Director and Chief Executive Officer. The Board Chair’s general mandate is to ensure
the effective and independent conduct of the Board, the Lead Director’s general mandate is to plan and
chair meetings of the Governance & Nominating Committee without management representatives present,
and the Chief Executive Officer’s general mandate is to implement the Company’s strategic and operating
plans and enhance Shareholder value. These materials have also been reproduced on our website at
www.westfraser.com.

Minimum Share Ownership

Finally, on the recommendation of our Compensation Committee, we have developed a minimum
requirement with respect to ownership of Shares that applies to every Director. Each Director must
acquire and hold a minimum of 5,000 Shares of the Company or the equivalent in deferred share units,
As a transition, each Director will have a period of five years from the later of the date of the Director’s
election as a Director and February of 2005 1o acquire the minimum holding. For a description of the
Deferred Share Unit Plan see page 33 — “Executive Compensation — Directors’ Remuneration™.
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Mandate of the Board

Our Board has explicitly assumed overall responsibility for the stewardship of the Company, including
responsibility for (i} adoption of a strategic planning process and approval of a strategic plan, (ii)
identification of the principal risks of the Company’s business and ensuring the implememation of
appropriate systems 1o manage these risks, (iii) succession planning, including appointing, training and
monitoring of senior management, (iv) implementation of a communication policy for the Company
regarding disclosure of corporate information, and (v) the imegrity of the Company’s internal control and
management information systems including accounting systems.

The Board met 6 times in 2006, including 5 regularly scheduled meetings. During the regularly
scheduled meetings, the Board received, reviewed and contributed to management’s long-term strategic
planning and proposed annual operating and capital plans, taking into account identified business
opportunities and business risks. In conjunction witiy the ongoing planning process, the Board regularly
reviews, with management, the strategic environment, the emergence of new opportunities and risks, and
the implications for the strategic direction of the Company. The additional meeting was convened to
consider a potential acquisition opportunity and related matters.

The Board has identified the principal risks of the Company’s business and has, with management,
established systems and procedures to ensure thai these risks are monitored. These svstems and
procedures include the effective management of the Company’s manufacturing assets, forest resources
and financial resources, and ensure compliance with all regulatory obligations.

The Board receives and reviews regular reports on the Company’s operations, including reports dealing
with safety and environmental issues.

The Board is responsible for the supervision of senior management to ensure that the operations of the
Company are conducted in accordance with objectives set by the Board. All appointments of senior
management are approved by the Board. As part of the Company’s planning process, succession
planning for senior management positions is regularly reviewed and discussed.

Corporate Disclosure Policy

The Board has, as part of our Governance Policy, approved a Corporate Disclosure Policy that is intended
to ensure that all material information relating to the Company is communicated appropriately to the
public, our Shareholders and our other stakeholders. The Policy also applies to the dissemination of
annual and quarterly reports, press releases and environmental reports. The Corporate Disclosure Policy
may be viewed on our website at www.westfraser.com. In addition to annual general meelings, meetings
are held from time to time each year between management and various investors, investment analysts,
credit rating agencies and financial institutions, all of which will be governed by the Corporate Disclosure
Policy.

Audit Committee

The Board. through the Audit Committee, is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
and audit process, considering the effectiveness of its system of internal controls and its process for
monitoring compliance with applicable financial reporting and disclosure laws and ils own policies. The
Audit Committee generally meets twice annually with the Auditor to discuss the annuai audit. These
meetings are in addition to regular meetings during which the Audit Commitiee reviews and approves the
Company’s quarterly reports. The Auditor also participates in these regular meetings. The Audit
Committee has complete and unrestricted access to the Auditor.
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Decisions Requiring Prior Approval by the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the stewardship of the Company. Any responsibility that is not
delegated to senior management or to a commitiee of the Board remains with the full Board. The
Company maintains policies with respect to matters requiring prior approval of the Board. These
policies, and understandings between management and the Board through previous Board practice and
accepted legal practice, require that the Company’s annual operating and capital plans, significant capital
expenditures and all transactions or other matters of a material nature must be presented by management
for approval by the Board.

Shareholder Feedback and Concerns

In addition to the information provided to Sharcholders in connection with the annual general meeting of
Shareholders and the continuous disclosure requirements of securities regulatory authorities, we maintain
a policy of ongoing communication with investors and representatives of the investment community.
This process consists of periodic meetings with investment fund managers and investment analysts as
well as individual investors and Shareholders, although always in circumstances that assure full
compliance with applicable disclosure requirements. All news releases issued by us are available for
viewing on our website at www.westfraser.com. Inguiries by Shareholders are directed to and dealt with
by senior management. All communications are subject to the Company’s Corporate Disclosure Policy.

Expectations of Management

The Board has determined its expectations of management which inctude provisien of information and
implementing processes that enable the Board 1o identify risks and opportunities for the Company, the
identification of appropriate comparisons and benchmarks against which the Company’s performance
may be measured and the provision of data that permits the Board to monitor ongoing operations, and
management understands these expectations. As part of the ongoing process of monitoring the
performance of management, the Board receives operational updates on cach business unit of the
Company at each Board meeting. These updates compare actual performance to the Company’s annual
forecast and historical resulis and include discussion of all significant variances.

As part of the monitoring process, the President and Chief Executive Officer submits to the Board at the
beginning of each year a written report setting out goals, expectations and priorities for the year. These
are reviewed by the Board and may be varied based on the Board’s comments. At the end of the year, a
report is submitted by the President and Chief Executive Officer that sets out achievements relative 10 the
original goals and expectations. Both the Board and the President and Chief Executive Officer expect
that the level of such achievement will be taken into account when establishing the executive’s
compensation for the following year.

Composition of the Board
We are required to disclose which of our Directors are, or are not, “independent’™ as that term is used in

MI 52-110. Seven of nine of our Directors are independent. Below is a summary of the basis of our
determinations:
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Name Determination and Basis
Henry H. Ketcham Non-Independent
Basis for Determination: Serves as Chair, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.
William H. Ketcham Non-Independent

Basis for Determination: Sibling served as an executive officer of the
Company within past three vears.

Clark S. Binkley Independent
J. Duncan Gibson Independent
William P, Ketcham Independent
Harald H. Ludwig Independent
Brian F. MacNeill Independent
Robert L. Phillips Independent
Janice G. Rennie Independent

William H. Ketcham, a Director, is the brother of Sam Ketcham who served as our Vice-President,
Administration untif December 13, 2005. As such he is not considered independent under M1 52-110 and
does not qualify to serve as a member of the Audit Committee. William H. Ketcham is also the cousin of
Henry H. Ketcham, the Company’s Chair, Chief Executive Officer and President, is a nephew of
William P. Ketcham, a Director of the Company, and is a trustee of one of West Fraser’s principal
Sharcholders. The Board has considered these relationships and interests, including the shareholding
inerests of Henry H. Ketcham and Sam Ketcham, and has determined that William H. Ketcham is
sufficiently independent of management and has interests aligned with Shareholders to an extent that
qualifies him to be a member of the Governance & Nominating Committee and make a valuable
contribution in that role.

William P. Ketcham is one of three founders of the Company and is the uncle of Henry H. Ketcham,
William H. Ketcham and Sam Ketcham. He also controls one of the Company’s principal Shareholders,
Tysa Investments, Inc. — see page 11 — “Principal Shareholders”. The Board has considered these
relationships and interests, including the shareholding interests of his three nephews, and has determined
that William P. Ketcham is sufficiently independent of management and has interests aligned with
Shareholders to an extent that qualifies him to be a member of the Audit and Governance & Nominating
Committees and make a vatuable contribution in those rofes.

The Governance & Nominating Committee, which is comprised of all Directors other than
Henry H. Keicham, the Company’s Chair, Chief Executive Officer and President, meets without any
members of management being present as part of each regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. There
were five such meetings during 2006. However, because William H. Ketcham is a member of the
Governance & Nominating Committee, such meetings do not technically qualify as meetings of the
independent Directors where all non-independent Directors are not in attendance. However, the
Governance & Nominating Commitiee has determined that the presence of William H, Ketcham at its
meetings does not inhibit open and candid discussion among its independent Directors and that
William H. Ketcham plays an important and valuable role as a member of the Committee.




Committees of the Board

The Board has concluded that, because of its relatively small size, committees of the Board should be
kept to a minimum so that all members of the Board are able to participate in discussions on significant
issues. Therefore, the Board has not appointed an executive committee. Matters that are outside of
management’s authority are reported to and approved by the Board.

Committees of the Board may engage outside advisors at the expense of the Company. Under the
Governance Policy an individual Director may, with the approval of the Board, retain an outside advisor
at the Company’s expense.

The Board has appointed the following four committees of the Board, each of which is comprised entirely
of Directors who are not members of management of the Company: Audit, Compensation, Safety &
Environment, and Governance & Nominating.

Audit Committee
Chair: J. Duncan Gibson

Other Members: Clark S, Binkley
William P. Ketcham
Janice G. Rennie

The full text of the Audit Committee Charter is available for viewing on our website at
www.westfraser.com. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing our annual financial statements
and making recommendations as to approval of the annual financial statements by the Board. Material
issues related to the audit of our internal control and management information systems are discussed with
the Audit Committee as they arise. The Audit Committee has also been delegated the authority to
approve certain of our quarterly financial statements and quarterly earnings anncuncements before
publication. The Audit Commitiee has direct access to the Auditor and is responsible for approving the
nomination, and establishing the independence, of the Auditor. The role of the Audit Committee has been
discussed at various times with our Auditor.

Under M1 52-110, the Audit Committee must be comprised of independent directors. An “independent
director™ is a director that has no direct or indirect material relationship with the Company, including not
being affiliated with management or the Company in terms of specific family or commercial
relationships.  William P. Ketcham is the uncle of Henry H. Ketcham but this relationship does not
disqualify him from serving as a member of the Audit Committee. The Board has considered this
relationship and William P. Ketcham’s interests as a founder and principal Shareholder of the Company,
as well as his long-term participation in the oversight of the financial and operational affairs of West
Fraser, and has determined that his participation as a member of the Audit Committee is in the best
interests of all Shareholders.

Additional disclosure concerning the Audit Committee is contained in the Company’s Annual
Information Form, which is included in the Company’s Annual Report, under the heading “Audit
Committee™.

Compensation Committee

Chair: Harald H. Ludwig
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Other Members J. Duncan Gibson
Brian F. MacNeill

The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
with respect to the remuneration of senior management of the Company and the remuneration of each
Director, and has the authority to grant Options 10 officers and employees under our Stock Option Plan.
This Comunittee reviews the remuneration of Directors each year.

In 2004 the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that Directors no longer be eligible to
receive Options as part of their compensation. The Board has adopted and approved this recommendation
as well as the introduction of a deferred share unit plan as part of a series of changes to the Company's
Director compensation policies.  For more details, sece “Exccutive Compensation — Directors’
Remuneration™ on page 33.

Safety & Environment Committee
Chair: Clark S. Binkley

Other Members: William H. Ketcham
Robert L. Phillips
Janice G. Rennie

The Safety & Environment Committee is responsible for monitoring the Company’s safety and
environmental performance. The Committee conducts an ongoing review of the Company’s safety and
environment-related  policies and  performance, including compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Committee also reviews the suitability and effectiveness of safety and environment
management systems and environment sustainability certification programs to which the Company
subscribes. The Charter of the Safety & Environment Committce may be viewed on our website at
www.westfraser.com. Although William H. Ketcham is not considered independent under M1 52-110,
the Safety & Environment Commitiee believes that he is in fact sufficiently independent of management
and has interests sufficiently aligned with Sharcholders in order to make him a valuable member of the
Committee and as to not compromise the effectiveness of the Committee’s activities.

Governance & Nominating Committee
Chair: Brian F. MacNeill

Other Members: Clark S. Binkley
J. Duncan Gibson
William H. Ketcham
William P. Ketcham
Harald Ludwig
Robert L. Phillips
Janice G. Rennie

The Governance & Nominating Committee is comprised of all Directors other than those considered
related to management. The Charter of the Governance & Nominating Commitiee may be viewed on our
website at www.westfraser.com. The Governance & Nominating Commiltee is responsible for providing
support for the governance role of the Board and, as part of that support, reviews and makes
recommendations on the composition of the Board, periodically assesses the function of the Board and its
Committees, monitors developments in corporate governance and makes recommendations to the Beard
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with respect 10 amendments to its Charter. In addition, this Committee is responsible for establishing
criteria and procedure for identifying candidates for clection to the Board, engaging search firms, where
necessary, and recommending (to the Board) nominees to stand for election as Directors. Although
William H. Ketcham is not considered independent under Mi 52-110, the Governance & Nominating
Committee believes that he is in fact sufficiently independent of management and has interests
sufficiently aligned with Shareholders in order to make him a valuable member of the Committee and as
to not compromise an objective nomination process.

Orientation Program and Continuing Education

New Directors receive a broad range of materials that provide both historical and forward-looking
information concerning Wesl Fraser, its operations, senior management and the Board, and our strategic
objectives. As part of our orientation program, new Directors have an opportunity 1o meet with senior
management to discuss the business of the Company, receive historical and current operating and
financial information and may tour sclected facilities of the Company,

We do not have a formal continuing education program for our Directors. Each of pur Directors has had,
or currently has, executive or board of director responsibilities and there is a regular sharing of those
experiences which assists our Board in identifving and adopting, on a continuing basis, best corporate
practices.

Performance Reviews

The Governance & Nominating Committee conducts an annual review of the performance of the Board
and its Committees. This review has been conducted both by way of a formal questionnaire and report
and by informal interviews and discussions led by the Lead Director. To date no significant problem with
respect to performance ol the Board or any Commiltee has been identified.

The Board has also considered a “peer” or individual director review process and has determined that the
size of the Board, the significant interaction of Directors at both Board and committee levels and the role
of the Lead Director position make this additional review process unnecessary.

Meeting Attendance Record

In 2006 a 93% attendance record for Board meetings was achieved. The following chart sets out meeting
attendance records of our Directors during 2006.

Committees
Governance
Board Safety & &
Director Meetings Audit Compensation Environment Nominating
H.H. Ketcham 6of6 — — — —
C.S. Binkley 6of6 50of6 — 20f2 5of5
1.D. Gibson 6of 6 6of6 20f2 — S5of5

W.H. Ketcham 6of 6 - —_ 2of2 50f5




Committees
Governance
Board Safety & &

Director Meetings Audit Compensation Environment Nominating
W.P. Ketcham 50f6 5of6 — — 40f5
H.H. Ludwig 4of 6 — 2of2 — Jof5
B.F. MacNeill 50f6 — 10f2 — 4 0of 5
R.L. Phillips 60of6 — — Z2of2 50f5
1.G. Rennie 6of 6 60of6 : — 20f2 Sof3

Mandatory Retirement

In 1994 the Board approved the mandatory retirement of Directors at age 70, other than Directors who
were serving in that capacity at that time (this exemption would apply to Clark S. Binkley,
Henry H. Ketcham and William P. Ketcham).

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Report on Executive Compensation

Our policy with respect 1o executive compensation is to provide compensation to executive officers in the
form of a base salary, employment benefits, annual bonus and long-term incentives such as Options in
order to attract and retain the best possible management team. The total compensation is designed to be
competitive with that provided by comparable companies in Canada to executive officers in similar
positions. We use compensation surveys prepared by independent consulting firms to determine the
relative status of our compensation packages.

Composition of the Compensation Commitice

The Compensation Committee currently consists of three independent Directors. This Committee meets
periodically to review matters relating to the compensation of Directors and executive officers. The
Board gives final approval on all matters relating to the compensation of Directors and executive officers
of the Company, other than the granting of Options under the Stock Option Plan, which may be granted
by the Compensation Commitiee.

In establishing the compensation for the executive officers, including the Chief Executive Officer, the
Compensation Committee considers competitive salaries for similar positions in Canada. This includes
companies in the forest products sector as well as manufacturing companies in other sectors. The
Company pertodically participates in broad-based compensation surveys. This information along with
Company-specific data is used 1o establish the compensation for executive officers.

Buase Sualaries

The Compensation Committee reviews base salaries and considers annual adjustments in October of each
year. The most recent adjusiments to base salaries were effective October 1, 2006.
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In determining its recommendation for the base salary for each executive officer, the Committee applied a
general increase similar to that used for all other salaried employees in the Company. In 2006 that
general increase was 2.5%. The Committee then compared the resuiting base salary 10 comparative salary
data and in some cases, made an additional adjustment based on the comparative information.

Bonus Incentive Plan

The bonus incentive plan (the “Bonus Plan™) covers all executive officers of the Company including the
Chief Executive Officer. The Bonus Plan is designed to compensate executive officers in refation to the
financial performance of the Company as a whole. The bonus is calculated as a percentage of current
salary, with the percentage based on the annual return on average Common Shareholders’ equity above a
minimum return.  In certain circumstances the Compensation Commiitee may recommend special
adjustments to annual bonuses of executive officers.

In 2006 the annual return on average Common Shareholder’s equity was affected by several extraordinary
items including the sale of an interest in an Alberta power purchase agreement, the receipt of
compensation for the expropriation of B.C. timber harvesting rights and the sale of the Company’s
interest in the Babine and Decker Lake sawmills. These matters are described in detail in the Company’s
2006 consolidaled financial statements and related Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The
Compensation Committee determined that the effect of these extraordinary items should be excluded
from the annual return calculation for the purposes of the Bonus Plan.

In 2006 the Company received a refund of the deposits that it had been making since May 2002 on
account of softwood lumber duties. The Company was then obliged to pay a special charge of
approximately 18.06% of the refunded amount to the Canadian government and also remit a portion of
the refunded amount 1o a third party pursuant to an earlier agreement. The net amount of the refund
represented an after-tax gain of $289 million, which significantly increased earnings in 2006.

In determining whether to include the effect of the duty refunds in the annual return calculation, the
Compensation Committee, in its deliberations in February 2007, had regard for the fact that duty deposits
had reduced earnings for the same purpose in the four years preceding 2006 and thus reduced or
eliminated bonus entittement under the Bonus Plan during those years, The Compensation Committee
arranged for the recalculation of bonus entitlements for the five years under consideration based solely on
the approximate effect of the special charge had it applied during those five years. [t was recognized that
had this been the applicable duty rate during the five-year period other variables, such as the price of
softwood lumber, may have been influenced and earnings may have been affected. However, the
Compensation Committee considered this an appropriate crosscheck for the limited purpose of assessing
the average annual bonus entitlement and, taking into account the timing of actual payments and the
present-day value of funds, determined there was not a material difference between the average annual
bonus rate under the recalculated scenario and the rate calculated based on including the entire net after-
tax amount of the duty refunds in the 2006 earnings calculation.

The Compensation Committee also considered the benefit of being consistent and applying generally
accepled accounting principles to the calculation. At the same time, the Compensation Commitiee was
cognizant of the fact that if not for the duly refunds the Company’s results were poor, reflecting the sharp
decline in lumber prices coupled with the continuing strength of the Canadian dollar. After considering
these and other issues, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board, and the Board accepted
the recommendation, that the entire net after-tax duty refund amount be included in the annual return
calculation for the purpose of the 2006 bonus calculation.
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In February 2007 the Board of Directors approved bonuses for executive officers in the aggregale amount
of $3,340,680 to be awarded in respect of 2006 based on the annual return on average Common
Shareholder equity in 2006. In 2006 the Compensatiost Committee recommended that bonuses in the
aggregate amount of $699,455 be awarded in respect of 2005 based on the annual returmn on average
Common Shareholder equity in 2005 and taking into account other performance and safety factors.

Stock Option Plan

The Board established the Stock Option Plan on February 24, 1994 to recognize contributions made by
Directors, officers and employees and to provide an incentive for their continuing relationship with the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Stock Option Plan has been amended from time to time, most recently
effective June 17, 2003, As of March 1, 2007, taking into account Options that have terminated or been
cancelled, the total number of Common shares that may be issued upon the exercise of the outstanding
Options under the Stock Option Plan is 2,459.886, the weighted-average exercise price per Common
share that may be issued under the outstanding Options is $36.59, and the total number of Common
shares remaining available for future issuance pursuant to Options granted under the Stock Option Plan is
179,789, which results in a total of 2,639,675 Common shares reserved for issuance pursuant to Options
granted under the Stock Option Plan representing 6.2% of the total number of issued and cutstanding
Common shares and Class B Common shares as of March 1, 2007,

In February 2007 the Compensation Committee granted Options to purchase a total of 394,500 Common
shares under the Stock Option Plan compared to 302,200 Options granted in 2006. The total number of
Common shares that are subject to outstanding Options as at March 1, 2007 is 2,459,886 of which
1,526,600 are exercisable. The Compensation Committee considers its own past practices as well as the
practices of comparable companies when granting Options.

Under the Stock Option Plan, the exercise price per Common share will not be less than the closing price
of the Common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange on the last trading day before the Option is
granted. The term of Options will be fixed by the Board or the Compensation Committee at not more
than ten years and, unless otherwise determined by the Board or the Compensation Committee, Options
vest at the rate of 20% per year after the first year of grant.

Under the Stock Option Plan, Options may not be exercised after a holder ceases to be an elfigible
participant except: in the case of death of an Option holder, any Option held may be exercised by the
personal representative of the holder during a period ending on the earlier of two years after the date of
death and the expiry date of the Option; in the case of retirement or total disability of an Option holder,
any Option held may be exercised during a period ending on the earlier of five years after the date of
retirement or disability and the expiry date of the Option; or in other cases, no later than the earlier of the
expiry date of the Option and 30 days afler the particular time. Options are not assignable, other than
those that may be exercised by the personal representative of a deceased holder.

The number of Common shares subject to an Option, the exercise price per Common share and the total
number of Common shares that may be made subject to Options under the Stock Option Plan will be
adjusted proportionately in the event of any subdivision or consolidation of Common shares or any
dividend payable in Common shares and will be adjusted as determined by the Board in the event of
certain other reorganizations or other events affecting the Common shares.

The Stock Option Plan permits outstanding vested Options to be surrendered pursuant to the Cash Value
Alternative by the holder to the Company in return for a cash payment equal to the accrued value of such
Options, The accrued value of a surrendered Option is the amount by which the weighted average price
per share at which the Common shares were traded on the last trading day exceeds the exercise price per
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Common share applicable to the Option and the amount determined by the Compensation Committee as
representative of the estimated costs avoided by the Option holder (such as trading commissions) by
virtue of electing the Cash Value Alternative. As a result, the Company reflects outstanding Options as
an expense item in its consolidated financial statements.

Since 2003, Directors have been ineligible for Option prants.
Chief Executive Officer’s Compensation

The Compensation Committee recommends the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer following
the same principles as are applied to all other executive officers. The Compensation Committee considers
market competitive salary information for CEO positions in similar sized companies in Canada. This
includes companies in the forest products sector as well as manufacturing companies in other sectors.
The Company periodically participates in broad-based compensation surveys and also periodically seeks
the advice of independent compensation consultants engaged to review our executive compensation
program. This information, along with Company-specific data, is used to determine the competitiveness
of the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation and its alignment with the interests of Shareholders.

In 2006 Henry H. Keicham earned a salary of $704,370, which represents an increase of 6.3% over his
2005 salary. In addition to his base salary, Henry H. Ketcham was awarded a bonus of $896,850 in
respect of 2006. This compares with a bonus of $121,050 received in respect of 2005.

Summury

The Compensation Commitiee is responsible for recommending to the Board the level and nature of
compensation for executive officers and Directors and may grant Options to officers and employees under
the Stock Option Plan. In making its determinations the Committee has access to comparative data and
receives advice from selected independent consultants.

Submitted by the Compensation Comimnittee:
H.H. Ludwig {Chair)

J.D. Gibson

B.F. MacNeill

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the total cumulative return to a Shareholder who invested $100 in
Common shares of the Company on December 31, 2001 with the cumulative total return of the S&P/TSX
Composite Index, the TSX Paper & Forest Products Group of the Composite Index and the S&P/TSX
Capped Materials Index for the same period.
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December 31
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. 100 102 123 158 137 140
S&PITSX Composite Index 100 88 11 127 158 185
S&P/TSX Paper and Forest Products Index 100 103 10t 100 T 76
S&PITSX Capped Materials Index 100 107 136 I46 168 235
Notes:

(1) All returns are expressed on a total return basis (all cash and stock dividends reinvested in the index or security).
(2) All information per Bloomberg, Star Data Systems & the Toronto Stock Exchange.

(3) S&P/TSX Capped Materials Index was previously called S&P/TSX Canadian Materials Index. Name change was effective
May 1. 2003.

Compensation of Directors and Senior Officers

During the financial period ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate direct remuneration paid or payable
to Directors and senior officers by the Company and its Subsidiaries, all of whose financial statements are
consolidated with those of the Company, was $7,703,385.

For the purposes of the following disclosure, the following officers are each a *“Named Executive Officer”
of the Company:

Henry H. Ketcham, Chair, President and Chief Executive Officer,
D. Wayne Clogg, Vice-President, Woodlands,



-30-

Gerald J. Miller, Executive Vice-President, Operations,

Martti Solin, Executive Vice-President, Finance and Corporate Development and Chief Financial
Officer, and

Gary W. Townsend. President, Solid Wood Products.

The compensation of each of the Named Executive Officers for the Company’s three most recenily
completed financial vears is set out befow:

Summary Compensation Table

Long-
Annual Term
Securities
Other Under
Annual Options/
Compensa- SARS All Other
Name and Principal Salary Bonus tion Granted Compensation
Position Year (%) ()" (3 #H> ($)"”
Henry 1. Ketcham 2006 704,370 896,850 — 45,000 —
Chair, President and 2005 662,500 121,050 —_ 51,660 —
Chief Executive Officer 2004 611,150 747.500 — 40,000 —
b. Wayne Clogg 2006 261,630 266,520 — 13,700 —
Vice-President, Woodlands | 2005 249,125 57.288 _ 17,510 —
2004 240,963 263,913 — 10,000 -—
Gerald J. Miller 2006 377,340 384,360 — 34,700 —
Executive Vice-President, 2005 330,000 83,205 — 19,300 —
Operations 2004 294,844 354,375 — 10,000 —
Martti Solin 2006 373,590 384,360 — 34,300 —
Executive Vice-President, 2005 317,500 77,298 — 19,300 —
Finance and Corporate 2004 267,894 340,500 — 10,000 —
Development and Chief
Financial Officer
Gary W. Townsend 2006 377,340 384,360 — 34,700 —
President, Solid Wood 2005 330,000 83,205 — 19,300 —
Products 2004 294,844 354,375 — 10,000 —
(1) Bonuses are paid in cash in the vear following the year in which they are carned.
{2) Perquisites and other personal benefs do not exceed the lesser of $50.000 and 10% of total compensation for any of
the Namcd Executive Officers.
{3) See “Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation - Stock Option Plan”. The Company does not

maintain any long-term incentive plan for exccutive officers,
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The Options granted to each of the Named Executive Officers during the financial year ended
December 31, 2006 pursuant to the Stock Option Plan were as follows:

Options/SAR Grants During The Most Recently Completed Financial Year

Market Value
of Securities
Securities % of Total Underlying
Under Options/SARs Options/SARs
Options/SARs Granted to Exercise or on the Date
Granted'"” Employees in Base Price of Grant Expiration
Name (#) Financial Year | (8/Security) ($/Security) Date
Henry H. Ketcham 45,000 149 41.19 41.19 February 17, 2016
D. Wayne Clogg 13,700 45 41.19 41.19 February 17,2016
Gerald ). Miller 34,700 I1.5 41.19 41.19 February 17, 2016
Martti Solin 34,300 114 41.19 41.19 February 17, 2016
Gary W. Townsend 34,700 11.5 41.19 41,19 February 17, 2016

The number and value of all Options exercised during the year and the values of all outstanding Options
and rights at the end of 2006 were as follows:

Aggregated Options/SARs Exercised
During The Most Recently Completed Financial Year
And Financial Year-End Option/SAR Values

Value of
Unexercised in
Unexercised the-Money
Options/SARs Options/SARs at
- at FY-End FY-End
Securities #) ($)
Acquired Aggregate Value
on Exercise Realized Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name (#) %) Unexercisable Unexercisable
Henry H. Ketcham — — 348,192/153,888 4,279,947/414,383
D. Wayne Clogg — — 81,312/44,598 984,353/104,061
Gerald J. Miller —_ 99,998 108,290/67,030 1,326,888/108,051
Martti Solin — — 94,980/66,630 1,161,121/107,975

Gary W. Townsend

81,670/67,030

984,353/108.051

Pension Plans

The majority of our full-time salaried employees are covered by noen-contributory pension plans which
provide a pension equal to 2% of the average of the employee’s highest compensation (which includes
base salary and bonuses) for any consecutive 60-month period in that employee’s final 10 years with the
Company multiplied by the nrumber of years of credited service with the Company. Normal retirement is
at age 65. Each of these pension plans allows for early retirement at age 55 with a minimum service

requirement of two years,

Benefits provided for early retirement are reduced by 4% per year for




-32-

retirement between the ages of 55 and 57 and by 3% per vear for retirement between the ages of 58 and
39. No reduction is made for retirement between the ages of 60 and 64.

The estimated annual pension payable upon retirement, assuming no reduction for early retirement and
based on the standard form life annuity for a minimum of 60 months with no joint survivor pension, is as
follows:

Estimated Annual Benefits Payable Upon Retirement

Annual Years of Service
Compensation

20 Years 25 Years 30 Years 35 Years 40 Years 45 Years

$400,000 $160,000 $200,000 $240,000 $280.,000 $320,000 $360,000
$500,000 $200,000 $250,000 $300,000 $350,000 $400,000 $450,000
$600,000 $£240,000 $300,000 $360,000 $420,000 $480,000 $540,000
$700,000 $280,000 $350,000 $420,000 $450.000 $560,000 $630,000
$800,000 $320,000 $400,000 $480,000 £560,000 $640,000 $720,000
$900,000 $360,000 $450,000 $540,000 $630.000 $720,000 $810.000

$1,000,000 $400,000 $500,000 $600,000 $700,000 $800,000 $900.000
$1.100,000 $440.000 £550,000 $660,000 $770.000 $880,000 $990,000
$1,200,000 $480,000 $£600,000 $720,000 $840,000 $960,000 | $1.080,000
$1,300,000 $520,000 $650,000 $780.000 $910,000 | $1,040,000 | $1,170,000
$1,400,000 $560,000 $700,000 $840,000 $980,000 | $1,120,000 | $1,260,000
$1,500,000 $600,000 $750,000 $900,000 | $1.050,000 | $1,200,000 | $1.350,000

Compensation for the purposes of the pension plans is defined as the average annual compensation,
including salary and bonus, of the highest consecutive 60-month period in the last 10 years’ service with
the Company.

The benefits listed in the table are not subject to any deduction for Canada Pension Plan or other offset
amounts.

The estimated years of credited service under the pension plans at the normal retirement age of 65 for
each Named Executive Officer would be as follows:

Henry H. Ketcham 42 years
D. Wayne Clogg 39 years
Gerald J. Miller 35 years
Martti Solin 20 years

Gary W. Townsend 39 years




Pension Expense Related to Service and Compensation

Amounts reported in the table below represent the pension service cost related 10 2006 for each of the

Named Executive Officers.

Name 2006 pension service cost
Henry H. Ketcham $223,600
D. Wayne Clogg $76,100
Gerald J. Miller $104,600
Martti Solin $110.400
Gary W, Townsend £110,800

Directors’ Remuneration

As with the executive officers of the Company, Directors’ remuneration is adjusted periodically to
provide competitive compensation for services provided as a Director of the Company. Current
remuneration (which applies until April 25, 2007) for each Director is as follows:

Annual retainer $50,000

Board meeting attendance fee $1,500 per meeting
Annual Committee Chair retainer 310,000 per Committee
Annual committee retainer $2.000 per Committee
Committee meeting attendance fee $1,500 per meeting
Lead Director $30,000 per year

Annual retainers are paid monthly.

To ensure that the interests of the Directors are appropriately aligned with those of our Sharcholders, each
Director is required to acquire and hold a minimum of 5,000 Common shares or deferred share units or a
combination of each. A Director has five years from the later of the date the Director is first elected as a
Director and February of 2005 to accumulate the minimum equity holding.

A Director who is an employee of the Company does not receive Director’s fees. Directors are also
reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in attending meetings of the Board or committee
meetings or otherwise on Company business.

The Company has a Directors’ Share Compensation Plan (the “*Compensation Plan™). The purpose of the
Compensation Plan is to enable Directors 1o participate in the growth of the Company by receiving
Common shares in lieu of cash for services performed as Directors. Under the Compensation Plan,
Common shares are issued after each quarter at a price per share equal to the weighted average of the
trading price for the Common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the last five trading days in the
quarter,

No Common shares were issued to Directors during 2006 in lieu of cash under the Compensation Plan.
The Company has a Deferred Share Unit Plan (“DSU Plan™) which provides a structure for the Directors

to accumulate an equity-like holding in the Company. The DSU Plan allows Directors to participate in
the growth of the Company by providing a deferred payment based on the total Shareholder return over a
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specilic period. Each Director may elect 10 receive up to 100% of annual retainers and meeting fees in
deferred share units ("Units™}). The Units are issued based on the Company’s Cominon share price at the
time of issue. Additional Units arc issued 1o take into account the value of dividends paid on Common
shares from the date of issue to the date of redemption. Units are redeemable only after a Director retires,
resigns or otherwise leaves the Board and the redemption value is equal 10 the Common share price at the
date of redemption. A unitholder may elect 1o redeem Units in cash or in Common shares. Units qualify
as equity for the purposes of the minimum equity holding requirement for Directors.

Total Director Compensation

2006
Payment
Total Compensation

Director Earned Cash Shares DSUs'
Clark S. Binkley $81.500 $40.750 - $40,750
J. Duncan Gibson $83,000 $41,500 - $41,500
William H. Ketcham $64,000 $64.000 - -
Witliam P. Ketcham $67.000 $67.000 - -
Harald H. Ludwig $69.000 - - $69,000
Brian F. MacNeill $91,000 - - $91,000
Robert L. Phillips $64.000 $64.000 - -
Janice G. Rennie $75.,000 $37,500 - $37,500
1) Notional value {number of Units times market value of a Common share) at time of grant.

Direct and Indirect Share and Other Holdings of Current Directors
{as at March 1)

Shares' Share Purchase Options DSUs

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Henry H. Ketcham’ 192,948 192,948 625,080 457,080 Nil Nil
Clark S. Binkley 8,986 7,086 30,854 34,181 2,6409 [ 1,566.7
J. Duncan Gibson 6,475 6,475 30,854 30,854 2,672.4 | 1,579.6
William H. Ketcham® 752,109 752,109 6,050 6,050 Nil Nil
William P. Ketcham® 3.010,429 | 4.260.429 30.854 34,181 Nil Nil
Harald H. Ludwig 5,738 5,738 30,854 34,181 4,520.6 | 2,705.6
Brian F. MacNeill 2,102 2,102 18,150 18,150 5.963.8 [ 3.561.3
Robert L. Phillips 3.500 2,500 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Janice G. Rennie 500 500 Nil Nil 3,158.7 | 2.157.1
(1) Inctudes Common and Class B Common shares,
(2) Does not include holdings of Keicham Investments. Inc.
3) Does not include holdings of a trust of the estate of Samuel Kendall Ketcham,

4 Includes holdings of Tysa Investments. Inc.
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Aggregate Indebtedness

The following table sets out the aggregate indebtedness outstanding of all Directors. executive officers,
employees and former Directors, executive officers and employees of the Company or any of its

subsidiaries as at March 1, 2007.

AGGREGATE INDEBTEDNESS (%)

To the Company or its

Purpose Subsidiaries To Another Entity
Share purchases $285.125 Nil
Other $438,181 Nil

Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers Under Securities Purchase Programs

Financial
Assisted
Largest Amount Securities
Amount Outstanding | Purchases Amount

Name and Qutstanding | as at March 1, During Forgiven
Principal Lending During 2006 2007 2006 Security for during
Position Company (%) )] {# Indebiedness 2006
Rodger M. West 520,661 515,260 Nil Common shares Nil
Hutchinson Fraser
Vice-President, Timber Co.

Ltd.
Corporate
Controller
Christopher D. West $20,661 $13,260 Nil Common shares Nil
Mclver Fraser
Vice-President, 'll::x:ber Co.
Lumber Sales ’
Edward R. West $20,661 $13,260 Nil Common shares Nil
Seraphim Fraser
Vice-President, 'Il_':g'nber Co.
Pulp and Paper )

These and similar loans were granted in 1998 10 certain employees, excluding executive officers, to
enable them to acquire Common shares of the Company. The loans are interest-free and are secured by
the acquired Common shares. The foans are repayable in annual instalments to 2008. Dividends received
on the Common shares held as security are applied to the outstanding balance of the loan.

The loans granted to Messrs. Hutchinson, Mclver and Seraphim were granted before they became
executive officers of the Company.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

You can find additicnal information (including financial information) relating to the Company in our
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2006, which includes the Company's Annual
Information Form dated February 15, 2007 and the Company’s audited financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the accompanying audit report and management’s discussion and
analysis. The Annual Report is posted on our website {www.westfraser.com) and can also be found on
SEDAR (www sedar.com) by clicking on “search database™ and filling in the company name. Copies of
the Annual Report and the relevant portion of any documents incorporated by reference in the Annual
Report, as well as additional copies of this Circular, may be obtained upon request from the Secretary of
the Company, Suite 501 — 858 Beatty Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6B IC1.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, March 30, 2007.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
”“17 i

Henry H. Ketcham
Chair of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TFhe annual general meeting (the “Meeting™) of shareholders of WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LTD. (the
“Company™) will be held at 1250 Brownmiller Road. Quesnel, British Columbia on April 25, 2007 at
11:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

1. to recetve the report of the directors of the Company;

2. to receive the consolidated financial statements of the Company for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006. 1ogether with the auditor’s report thereon;

3. to elect the directors of the Company to hold office until the close of the next annual meeting;

4. to appoint an auditor of the Company to hold office until the close of the next annual general
meeting and to authorize the directors to fix the auditor’s remuneration;

5. to consider and, il deemed advisable, approve the proposed amendments of the 1994 Director,
Officer and Employee Stock Option Plan of the Company by way of two separate and
independent resolutions;

6. to consider any amendment to or variation of any matter identified in this Notice; and
7. to transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

An Information Circular and a copy of the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2006 accompany this Notice. The Information Circular contains details of matters to be
considered at the Meeting. The Annual Report includes the consolidated financial statements and the
auditor’s report.

A shareholder of the Company who is unable to attend the Meeting in person and who wishes to
ensure that the shareholder’s shares will be voted at the Meeting must complete, date and sign the
enclosed form of proxy and deliver it by hand or by mazil in accordance with the instructions set out
in the form of proxy and in the Information Circular.

Shareholders registered at the close of business on March 16, 2007 will be entitled to receive this Notice
and to vole at the Meeting,

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, March 3¢, 2007.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

/ »
/?3#2(7 ;Zéé._
Henry H. Ketcham

Chair of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

J v
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FORM 52-109F1

A Ay M L] . ~
Certification of Annual Filings a1 onT - i A (PR
I, Henry H. Ketcham, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of West Fraser Timﬁé} (FO"Ltd:_, g .‘l.’I_ .. ‘; g,&‘ {_“ .
certify that: R Sraraegy

1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of West Fraser Timber Co.
Ltd. (the issuer) for the period ending December 31, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

4. The issuer’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal contro] over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

{a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the issuer’s GAAP; and

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in
the annual MID& A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such
evaluation; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to matenially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: Mapch 30/ 2007,

e
B{enfy H. 5éham o

Chairmafy, President and Chief Executive Officer

1420483.1
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FORM 52-109F1

Certification of Annual Filings

I, Martti Solin, Executive Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of West Fraser Timber Ca.
Ltd., certify that:

1.

Date:

I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multlateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of West Fraser Timber Co.
Ltd. (the issuer) for the period ending December 31, 2006;

Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which 1t was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annuatl filings fairly present in alt material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

(2 designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

()] designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the issuer’s GAAP; and

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in
the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such
evaluation; and

I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal ’
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that

has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control

over financial reporting,

March 30 . 2007.

Martti Solin
Executive Vice-President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

1420472.]
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Owned through Blue Fidge Lumber Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Owned through Alberta Plywood Ltd,, a wholly-owned subsidlary,

Cwned through Sundre Forest Products Ing., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Owned through West Fraser, Inc., a wholy-owned subskdiary,

Owned through Ranger Board Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Joint-vonture Interest in Cariboo Pulp & Paper Company.

. Joint-vanture intarest in Alberta Newsprint Company owned through Wast Fraser Nawsprint Ltd., a wholly-owned subsikdfiary.
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

\ Nole/s to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, cxcept where indicated)

21

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share arc calculated based on carnings avatlable to Common sharcholders, as set out below,
using the weighted average number of Common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per sharc assuine the

exercise of options using the treasury stock method.

2006 2005
Earnings available 1o sharcholders $ 397,997 107.650
Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average sharcs - bastc 42,751,422 42,731,125
Share options - treasury stock method 375,924 556,334
Weighted average number of shares - diluted 43,127,346 43,287,459
Earnings per share (dollars)
Basic b 9.31 2.52
Diluted $ 9.23 2.49

(19)




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures arc in miltions of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

22 Segmented information

The segmentation of the Company’s manufacturing operations into lumber, panels and pulp and paper is based
on a number of factors, including similarities in products, production processes, and economic characteristics.
The accounting policies of cach scgment arc the same as those described in note 1.

2006

Pulp & Corporate
Lumber Pancis paper and other Consolidated
Sales at market prices
To external customers $ 1.7556 % 4751 $ 1.095.1 $ -3 3,325.8
To other segments 834 16 - -
3 1.839.0 % 4827 3% 1.095.1 $ -
EBITDA'D $ 5180 8§ 528 % 1228 § (11.6) % 682.0
Amortization 117.6 39.7 91.0 3.6 251.9
Restructuring charge - - 37.6 - 37.6
Operating eamings {loss) 400.4 13.1 (5.8) (15.2) 3925
Interest income {expense) - net 29.5 (6.3) (11.0) 0.2 12.4
Exchange loss on long-term debt - - - (0.7) (0.7}
Gain on sale of power purchase
agreement 22 8.4 51.2 - 61.8
GGain on sale of assets held for
sale 207 - - - 217
(Gain on timber take-back 13.6 - - - 13.6
Other income {expense) 13.8 0.4 {0.2) 7.0 21.0
Eamings (loss) before income
taxes and non-controlling
interest 3 4812 § 156  § 34.2 $ 8.7) §% 522.3
Total capital employed'" $ 14796 § 4223 % 1,0089 % 4105 3% 3.321.3
Identifiable assets 3 1,773.7 § 4662 % 1,1006 § 6779  $ 4.018.4
Capital expenditures $ 1230 § 199 % 665 § 22 % 211.6
Sales by geographic area
Sales to external customers
USA ) 1,2813 % 1508 % 3988 % - 3 1.831.0
Canada 3551 314.0 846 - 753.7
Europe - - 116.8 - 116.8
Far East 119.1 10.2 307.9 - 437.2
Other 0.1 - i87.0 - 187.1
3 1,735.6 % 475.1 3 1,.095.1 b - 3 3,325.8
Froperty, plant, equipment and timber by geographic area
Canada 3 2,042 8
USA 91.1
$ 2,133.9

' Non-GAAP measures:

a)  EBITDA is defined as operating eamings plus amontization of property, plant, equipment and timber plus restructuring charge.

b)  Capilal employed is defined as identifiable assets less current non-interest bearing liabilities at year-end.

(20)
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2006 and 2005

{figures are in millions of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

2005

Sales at market prices
To external customers

To other segments

ERITDAM

Amoriization

Operating earnings (loss}

Interest expense

Exchange gain on long-term

debt

Gain on timber take-back
Other income (expense)

Eamnings {loss) before income
taxes and non-controtling

interest

Total capital employed™"

Identifiable asscts

Capital expenditures

Sales by geographic arca
Sales to external customers

USA
Canada
Europe
Far East
Other

Property, plant, equipment and timber by geographic area

Canada
USA

i

Non-GAAP measures:

Pulp & Corporate
Lumber Panels paper and other Consolidated
$ 2.020.9 $ 5110 $ 1,044.8 $ - 3 3,576.7
86.0 5.0 - -
5 2.106.9 b 516.0 $ 1.044.8 g -
b 327.8 h) 65.4 $ 62.2 $ (85 § 446.9
121.9 38.1 92.5 2.9 255.4
2059 273 {30.3) (LL.4) 191.5
{28.0) 5.1 {10.1) (1.2) (48.4)
- - - 13.9 13.9
3.3 - - - 33
0.4) {0.4) 0.8 (8.9) (8.9)
$ 180.8 $ 17.8 $ (39.6) 3 (7.6) 3 151.4
$ 1.7629 % 450.8 b 976.2 $ 40.1 $ 3,230.0
3 19389 § 4927 3 1,081.3 3 120.8 3 3,633.7
$ 147.4 3 23.6 $ 46.6 3 6.8 $ 2244
h) 1.460.3 b 169.7 3 3788 $ - $ 2.008.8
410.2 3264 73.2 - 809.8
- 0.1 126.2 - 126.3
150.3 I4.8 2471 - 412.2
0.1 - 219.5 - 219.6
$ 2.020.9 $ 511.0 3 1,044.8 $ - 3 3.576.7
3 2.127.5
102.6
3 2.230.t

a)  EBITDA is defined as operating earntngs plus amontization of property, plant, equipment and timber plus restructuring charge.
b)  Capital employed is defined as identifiable asseis less current non-tnterest bearing liabilities at year-end.

(21)
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Reporting Issuer Name: West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Fiscal year end date used
to calculate capitalization: December 31, 2006

Market value of listed or quoted securities:
Total number of securities of a class or series outstanding as
at the issuer’s most recent fiscal year end 37.886.731 (i)

Simple average of the closing price of that class or series as
of the last trading day of each month of the fiscal year (See
clauses 2.1 1{a)(ii){A) and (B) of the Rule) 39.44 (ii)

Market value of class or series (iy X (=

(Repeat the above calculation for each class or serics of
securities of the reporting issuer that was listed or quoted on a
marketplace in Canada or the United States of America at the
end of the fiscal year)

Market value of other securities:
(See paragraph 2.11(b) of the Rule)
(Provide details of how value was determined)

(Repeat for each class or series of securities)

Capitalization
(Add market value of all classes and series of securities) (AHB)HCOHD)=

Participation Fee
(From Appendix A of the Rule, select the participation fee
beside the capitalization calculated above)

New reporting issuer’s reduced participation fee, if applicable
(See section 2.6 of the Rule)

Participation Number of entire months remaining
fee in the issuer’s financial year =
12

Late Fee, if applicable
(As determined under section 2.5 of the Rule)

March 17, 2006
1420875.1

1.494.252.670.64 (A)

NIL (B)

NIL (C)

NIL (D)

1.494.252,670.64
$29.700

N/A

N/A

(2006) 29 OSCB 2351



ANNUAL

INFORMATION FORM

Business Overview

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. {“Waest Fraser” or the "Company™) is an integrated forest products company producing
lumber, wood chips, LVL, MDF, plywood, pulp, linerboard, kraft paper and newsprint. Most of the forest products
manufactured by the Company are sold outside of Canada as commodities. West Fraser holds timber harvesting
rights representing approximately 13 milion m® of AAC providing raw material tor its Canadian manufacturing
operations. It also has a long-term agreement for the supply of a substantial amount of the fibre required by its two
sawmills in the southern United States. All of the fibre requirements of West Fraser's pulp and paper operations and
MDF plants can be satisfied, directly or indirectly, from the Company’s own operations. The current annuat capacities
of West Fraser's wholly-owned manufacturing facilities and its share of its joint-venture facilities is approximatety 4,400
MMfbm of lumber; 3,200 Mef of LVL; 820 MMst of plywood (3/8"); 300 MMsf of MDF (3/4"); 470,000 tonnes of
Inerboard and kraft paper; 580,000 tornes of BCTMP; 485,000 tonnes of NBSK and 135.000 tonnes of newsprirt.

Corpoarate Structure
The chart on page 12 shows the relationship of West Fraser to its principal direct and indirect subsidianes ancl the joint

varitures in which they participate, and where less than 100%, the percentage of its direct or indirect ownership.

West Fraser, which began operations in 1955, assumed its present form in 1966 by amalgamation of a group of
companies under the laws of British Columbia. The Company's principal operating subsidiary, West Fraser Mills Ltd.
(“Wesi Fraser Mills™), subsists under the laws of British Colurmbia and took its present form on January 1, 2005 when
its predecessor with the same narme was armalgamated with Weldwood of Canada Limited {“Weldwood™), which was

acquired on December 31, 2004.

Blue Ridge Lumber Inc., Ranger Board Inc. and Sundre Farest Products inc. are incorporated under the laws of
Aberia. Alberta Pywood Ltd. and West Fraser Newsprint Ltd. subsist under the laws of Canada. West Fraser, Inc. is
incorporated under the laws of Delaware. Alberta Newsprint Company (“ANC") is an unincorporated joint venture
govemed by the laws of Alberta. Carboo Pulp & Paper Company is an unincorporated joint venture govermed by the
laws of British Columbia.

West Fraser's executive office is located at B58 Beatty Street, Suite 501, Vancouver, British Columbia, V683 1C1.

Forward-looking Statements

This Annual Information Form, dated Febyruary 15, 2007, and the Annual Report of which it forms a part, contain histarical information, descriptions
of current circurnstances and statements about potential tuture developments. The latter, which are forward-iooking staterments, ire presented
to provide reasonpble guidance to the reader but the accuracy of these statements depends on a number of assumptions and is subject o
wvanious risks and uncertainties, These statements are not guaranteed by the Company and actual outcomes and resuits will depend on a number
of factors that could affect the ability of the Company to execute its business plans, including those matters describea under "Risk Factors”, and
such outcomes and resuits may differ materially from those anticipated or projected. Accordingly, readers should exercise caution in relying upon
forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no chligation to publicly revise thesa forward-locking staternents to reflect subsequent
evanis or circumstances,
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INFORMATION FORM

History

West Fraser was founded in 1855 when three brothers, Henry H. Ketcham Jr., William P. Keicham and Samuel K.

Ketcharm acquired a lumber planing mill at Quesnel, BC. From 1855 to 1979, the business expanded through the

acquisition af a number of sawmills and related Smber rights in the interior of British Colurnbia and the development of a

small chain of home improvement stores. Recent key milestones in the Company's history are:

1979 Formation of the Quesnet River Pulp ("QRP™) joint venture, in which \West Fraser owned 50%, to construct
and operate a pulp mill at Quesnel, BC. West Fraser's ownership increased to 100% in 2002.
1981 Acquisition of a 40% nterest in Eurocan Pulp & Paper Co., which owned a linerboard and kraft paper mil
at Kitimat, BC, two sawmilts and partial interests in two joint-venture sawmills elsewhere in British
Columbia. West Fraser's ownership was increased to 50% in 1984 and 100% in 1993.
1989 Formation of the ANC joint venture to construct and operate a newsprint mill at Whitecoust, AB,
with West Fraser owning a 50% interest.
1995 Acquisition of the Blue Ridge sawmill and Ranger Board MDF plant both at Blue Ridge, AB and the Slave
Lake Pulp mill at Slave Lake, AB.
1996 Operations begin at the WestPine MDF plant at Quesnel, BC,
1999 Acquisition of a plywood plant in Edmonton, AB and a veneer plant and stud mill at Stave Lake, AB.
2000 Acquisition of two sawmills in the southern United States.
20 Agquisition of a sawmill at Chasm, BC.
Sale of timber plantations in Uruguay.
Sale of retail home improvermnent business.
2004 Acquisition of Weldwood, an integrated forest products business.
2006 Sale of Bumns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills,
Operations begin at the new Quesnel, BC sawmill.
Agreement entered into to acquire 13 sawmils in the southermn United States, expected to complete by
the end of the first quarter of 2007,
Sales Revenue ($ milions) Table |
Year ended December 31 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Lumber 1,756 2,028 1,475 1,141 1,149
.Panels 475 511 284 230 247
Pulp & Paper 1,095 1,045 641 550 590
TJotal 3,326 3,577 2,400 1,921 1,986
Fibre Supply

British Columbia

The Province owns about 95% of the timberland in British Columbia. Tmber harvesting operations are regulated by

the provincial government under various laws which empower the B.C. Ministry of Forests and Range to grant various

forms of timber tenures, including forest licences, TFLs and timber sale licences.




A forest licence confers the right to harvest a specified volume of timber from [:;ubiic lands, and usually bas a term of
15 years. A TFL has a term of 25 years and requires the icensee to manage a defined land area on a sustained-yield
basis. Legislation covering these tenures enables the Province to offer replacement tenures at any timea batween the
fourth and ninth anniversaries of the dates on which they were granted. Replacement of a forest licence or TFL is
subject to satisfactory performance by the licensee and the entry into of an agreement between the licensee and the

Province. The Pravince may also grant short-term, non-replaceable forest licences.

West Fraser's timber tenures are currently due for replacerent and replacerment docurments have been received and
accepted for approximately 20% of the Company’s B.C. tenures. West Fraser expects most of the balance to be
replaced in 2007. The Province is required to consult with interested aboriginal groups ("First Nations™) before making
replacement offers. This requirement has delayed the replacement process and may result in the addition of new
terms and conditions to West Fraser's tenures, some ol which could adversely affect the Company’s timber

harvesting rights.

The AAC of a tenure is determined by a licensee for a TFL and by the B.C. Ministry of Forests and Range for a iorest
licence. In all cases, the AAC must be approved by the Chief Forester of the Province. Annual cut levels are imited by

five-year maximum levels.

The British Columbia Forest Act requires the Chief Forester of the Province to review the AAC for each timber supply
area and TFL al least once every five years to ensure that it reflects current informnation, practices and govemment
policies, The most recent review began in 2002 and is scheduled for completion n 2007, All tenures in which West

Fraser has an interest are currently in compliance with their cut control requirements.

Effective March 31, 2003, the Province of British Columbia reduced the AAC allocated to holders of long-term tenures
by 20%. Each specified corporate group holding timber tenures was subject to an overall 20% reduction with an
exemption for the first 200,000 m? of AAC held. On June 30, 20086, the Company entered into a settlement agreement
with the Province and received compensation of $31 milion for the 1,275,000 m® reduction of timber rights and the

loss of certain related assets.

Alberta

Tre Province owns more than 90% of the timberiand in Alberta. Forest operations on pubiic lands are regulated by
the provincial government under the Alberta Forests Act, which empowers the Alberta Minister of Sustainable
Resource Development to grant various forms of timber tenures, including FMAs, timber quotas and timber permits.
An FMA gives the holder righls to establish, grow and harvest timber on a defined land area. An FMA generally has a
20-year term with further 20-year renewal pericds. Each FMA requires the holder to pericdically conduct a forest
inventory and prepare a delailed forest management plan to determine the AAC and to have annual operating plans

approved by the Minister.

A timber quota is renewable and gives the holder the right to harvest, during a perod of 20 years, a specified
percentage of the AAC of a Forest Management Unit, as determined by the Minister. in areas where there is no FMA,
the Minister is responsible for completing a forest inventory, preparing a forest management plan and allecating a
volume of timber to be harvested by each quota holder. A quota holder must obtain a timber licence issued by the
Minister that describes the area planned for timber harvesting and the period during which the timber is to be harvested,
usually three to five years. The volume of timber that may be harvested under a timber quota may be varied by the

Mimister and is generally subject to review by the Minister every five years.
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ANNUAL IiNFORMATION FORM

Table Il summarizes the timber tenures supplying the mills that West Fraser owns or in which it has an interest, the

AAC and the actual harvest in 2006.

Timber Tenures (000 m¥} Table
Location Tenure' Expiry AAG? Harvast®
B.C. Long-term 2007-2025 5,175 5,658
18 Short-term 2007-2015 905 665
E Atberta Coniferous Long-Term 2008-2026 4,284 4,638
e Deciduous Long-Term 2009-2019 975 N8

1. Leng-term tenures include TFLs, FMAS, timber quotas and forest licences, which are renewable tmber tenures. Short-term tenures include
non-raplaceabla I'or,fst icences.

2. Excludes 75,000 m™ temporary reduction of AAC related to consent agreement entered into with the Competition
Commissioner regar; the Wekdwood acquisition.

3. Includes 390,000 m™ related to interest in Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmils, sokd October 31, 2006.

Annual log requirements for West Fraser's Canadian sawmills, LVL plant and plywood facilities operating at the
capacities described in this Annual Information Form total approximately 15 milion m?, of which approximately 70%

can be obtained from the tenures described in Table Il. The remaining requirerments are met through a combination
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of direct or indirect purchases at government timber auctions, competitive bids on non-replaceable forest icences

and agreements with First Nationsg' timber rights holders, community forest tenure holders and woodlot owners.

U.S. South
West Fraser's sawmills at Joyce, Louisiana and Huttig, Arkansas, consurme approximately 1.3 milion i of togs annually,
of which approximately 60% is supplied under a long-termn agreernent. The balance is obtained on the open market.

Harvesting Operations
Al of West Fraser's harvesting operations are carried out by independent contractors and are supervised by the
Company's woodlands staff to ensure cormpliance with the terms of applicable timber tenures, statutes and

regulations, and with West Fraser's policies.

Reforestation

Timber tenures in British Columbia and Alberta require the holders to carry out reforestation to ensure the re-
establishment of the forest after harvesting. Determining how to reforest a particular area is based on the climate,
terrain, species and other factors affecting regeneration. Each of West Fraser's reforestation projects is planned and

supervised by its forestry staff and is approved by the relevarmt government authority.

Stumpage

The Provinces of British Columbia and Alberta levy fees, commonly referred to as stumpage, on timber harvested on
provincial land. Under the current system in Alberta, stumpage is principally tied to product prices. In B.C., stumpage
is based on timber sales data derived from publicly auctioned timber. Prior to Aprit 2006, stumpage in B.C, was based
on the Statistics Canada lumber and wood chip price indices.

Wood Chip Supply

Substantially all West Fraser's wood chip requirements are supplied directly or indirectly from its own operations, which
reduces its exposure to risks associated with wood chip price fluctuations and supply shortages. The fibre
requirements of the Company‘s B.C. pulp and paper mills and MDF plant are met primarily by West Fraser's sawmiling
operations in British Columbia. The Alberta MDF plant obtains its fibre from the Blue Ridge sawmill and other sawmills
in the area. Most of the fibre requirements of the Slave Lake Fuip mill are available under the Slave Lake FMA, and
additionat fibre is obtained from industnal salvage and logs purchased from local suppliers and processed at Slave
Lake's facilities. The Hinton Pulp mill obiains its fibre from the Hinton sawmill and other sawmills in the area, including

those belonging to West Fraser, Aimost all of the fibre requirements of ANC are obtained from local sawmills, including




the Bive Ridge sawmill, through log-for-chip trading of logs harvested from ANC's tenures. The balance is obtained

from direct fibre purchases,

Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions
West Fraser regularly invests in upgrading and expanding its facilties and operations. Table Nl shows the capital

expenditures and acquisitions during the past five years.

Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions ($ miions) Table
Year ended December 31 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Lumber 123 147 95 56 B84
Fanels 20 24 10 5 i2
Fulp & Paper 66 47 32 17 20
Corporate & Other 3 6 3 1 7

212 224 140 79 123
Acquisitions — — 1124 6 —_
Total 212 224 1,264 B85 123

Human Resources

At December 31, 2006, West Fraser employed approximately 6,900 indhiduals, including the Company's share of
those in joint venture operations. Total remuneration paid to these employees in 2006 was approximately $485 milhon.
Approximatety 50% of West Fraser's employees are coverad by collective agreements. Certain of these agreements
expire in each of 2007, (covering 1% of employees), 2008 (covering 20% of employees) and 2009 (covering 27% of
employees).

Markets

West Fraser's products are sold in markets open to a number of companies with similar products. Purchasing
decisions by customers are based on price, quality and service. Prices and sales volumes are influenced by general
economic conditions. Table IV shows selected average benchmark prices for the past five years for products of the

type produced by West Fraser, although these prices do not necessarily reflect the prices obtained by West Fraser.

Average Benchmark Prices (In US $ except plywood) Table IV
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

2 x 4 random length SPF (per Mfbm)' 296 353 394 277 270

SYP #2 West 2 x 4 (per Mfbm)? 330 422 387 an 302

Plywood (per Msf 3/8" basis)? Cdn $ 366 387 53 442 405

MDF (per Msf 3/4" basis)’ 445 414 392 365 355

Newsprint (per tonne)® 655 600 544 493 455

NBSK (per tonne)® 721 646 640 553 483

Linerboard (per tonne)’ 554 472 461 404 443

Saurces:

1. Random Lengths - 2 x 4, #2 & Better - Net FOB mil.

2. Random Lengths - 2 x 4 - Net FOB mill Westside.

3. Crow's Market Report - Delvered Toronto,

4. Resource Irforration Systemns, Inc. - MDF Westermn U.S. - Net FOB mil,

5. Hesource Information Systems, Inc. - U.S. defvered 48.8 gram newsprint.

6. Resource Information Systerms, Inc. - U.S. st price, delivered U.S.

7. Pup & Paper Week - Unbleached linerboard kraft, East.

Research and Development
West Fraser supports industry research and development organizations, and conducts research and development at
several plants to improve processes, maximize resource utilization and develop new products and environmental

applications.
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ANNUAL INFOBMATION FORM

Lumber

Capacity and Production (MMibm)' Table V
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Capacity — year-end 4,400 4,700 3,030 2,860 2,600

Production:
18 Quesnel 336 366 378 368 337
z Quesnel Finger-Joint 14 15 15 14 15
§ Wiliams Lake 2m 244 239 222 197
g Smithers 309 3m 289 264 224
ok Chetwynd 245 250 250 244 232
2 Fraser Lake 334 321 349 336 269
o Terrace o2 90 81 36 83
E Chasm 284 283 254 229 138
iy Houston? 3as8 339 165 154 148
z Burns Lake?3 222 282 87 B4 81
< Decker Lake®? 65 75 24 22 21
Northstar? 167 158 — — —
100 Mie? 285 245 — — —
Blue Ridge 298 283 289 273 264
Slave Lake 23 24 24 26 27
Red Earth* - 37 26 23 28
Hinton? 27 268 -— _— —
Sundre? 253 243 — — -
Huttig 177 168 n3 10 10
Joyce 212 220 189 189 182
Total Production 4,186 4,212 2,772 2,594 2,347

1. Tabde reflects 100% capacity and production for consolidated operations. For years prior to 2005, Houston, Bumns Lake and Decker Lake ware
accounted for as joint ventures and therefore figures reflect Wast Fraser's ownership percentage.

2. Miks acquired December 31, 2004.

3. Includes procuction to October 31, 2006, whon the Comparny's interest in these mils was sold,

4. Shut down September 2006.

Operations:

West Fraser produces lumber and by-product wood chips from 16 sawmills and has a plant at Quesnel which

produces finger-jointed studs out of by-product trim blocks. The Company alsc has a wood-treating facility at the

Sundre sawmill.

Sales:

Lumber produced at West Fraser’s Canadian sawmitls and sold to North American customers is marketed and sold
from the Company's sales office in Quesnel, BC, while sales to offshore markets are made from an export sales office
in Vancouver, BC. Ofishore sales activities are complemented by customer service offices in Japan and China. Lurmber

produced at West Fraser's two U.S. sawmills is marketed by a sales group in West Monroe, Louisiana.

West Fraser sells lumber to wholesale distributors. buying cooperatives, lumber brokers, retailers and
remanuiaciurers, as well as to mber treating businesses. From time to time, the Company purchases lumber for

resale in order to meet the timing, quantity or quality requirements of its customers.




I 2006. approsdrmately 73% of umber sales by value were made to customers in the United States, 20% to customers in
Canada and 7% o customers in Asia, predominantly Japan. Most lumber shipments to North American customens were

made by rail, although some were by tnuck or ocean camiers. Offshore shipments were through public terminals in Vancouver.

Panels

Capacity and Production Table V}
20086 2005 2004 2003 2002

MDF (MMsf 3/4” basis)

Capacity — year-end 300 300 290 270 250

Production:

Ranger Board 155 158 155 149 138

WestPine 133 136 130 12 m

Total Production 288 294 285 261 249

Plywood (MMsf 3/8" basis)

Capacity — year-end 820 820 280 270 260

Production:

Alberta Plywood 262 251 249 248 235

Wiliams Lake' 239 248 — - —

Quesnel’ 227 222 — — —

Total Production 728 72 249 248 235

LVL (Mch)!

Capacity — year-end 3,200 3,200 — — —

Total Production 3,000 3,179 — — —

1. Acquired December 31, 2004,

Operations:
Woest Fraser’s panel operations include two MOF mills, each with the flexibility to manufacture varying thicknesses and
sizes, three plywood mills that primarily produce standard softwood sheathing plywood, an LVL mill and a veneer mill

which produces veneer for use solely in West Fraser's plywood and LVL plants.

Sales:

MDF is marketed under the names “Ranger™” and “WestPine™"” out of West Fraser's Edmonton, AB sales office and
through distributors under the direction of West Fraser's sales personnel. Plywood is marketed out of the Company's
sales office in Quesnel to retal outlets, wholesale distributors, remanufacturers and treating businesses. LVL is marketed
out of the Company's Calgary, AB sales office primarily to independent distributors and manufacturers.

In 2006, approximatety 63% of MDF sales by value were made to customers in the U.S., 31% to customers in Canada
and 6% to customers in Asia; approximately 20% of plywood sales by value were made to Canada, 9% to the United
States and the balance to offshore customers; and approxirmatety 54% of LVL sales by value were made to U.S.
customers and the balance to Canadian customers. Shipments to North America were by both rait and truck and

offshore shipments were by bulk and container vessels.
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ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM

Pulp and Paper

Pulp
Capacity and Production (Mtonnes) Table VIl
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
BCTMP
20 Capacity — year-end 580 555 550 550 540
E Production:
g QRrRP! 343 334 307 310 190
g Slave Lake Pulp 218 218 215 213 207
I; Tota! Production 561 552 522 523 397
§ NBSK
e Capacity - year-end 485 585 — — —
E Production:
Z Hinton?3 3st 420 - - -
Z Cariboo®* 162 161 — — —
< Total Production 543 581 — — —

Additionat 50% ownership of QAP acquired November 1, 2002,
Acquired December 31, 2004.

Reflects closure of #1 line at Hinton Pulp in 2006.

Reflects West Fraser's share of ownership.

pRNS

Operations:

West Fraser produces BCTMP. primarily from aspen, at the Slave Lake pulp mill and BCTMP, primarily from softwood,
at the QRP mill. These pulps are used by paper manufacturers to produce printing and writing papers, paperboard
products and a variety of other paper grades. NBSK is produced at the Hinton and Cariboc pulp millls and is used by
paper manufacturers to produce a variety of paper products, including printing and writing papers and tissue products.

Sales:

Both BCTMP and NBSK are marketed out of West Fraser's pulp and paper sales office in Vancouver, BC. In 2006,
approximately 43% of the combined pulp sales by value were sold 1o customers in North America, 40% to customers
in Asia and the Far East, 11% to customers in Europe and the balance to other offshore customers. Shiprments within
North America were primarily by rail and pulp sold to offshore customers was transported by rail to Vancouver and

then shipped by bulk and container vessels.

Linerboard and Kraft Paper

Capacity and Production {Mtonnes) Table Vit
20086 2005 2004 2003" 2002

Capacity — year-end 470 450 450 450 450

Production:

Linerboard 338 337 341 205 305

Kraft Paper 121 112 105 75 105

Total Production 459 449 446 280 410

1. Production affectad by a strike.

Operations.

West Fraser produces unbleached linerboard and kraft paper at its Kitimat mifl. Linerboard is produced in basis weights
ranging from 125 to 400 grams per square metre, and distributed wordwide to producers of corrugated shipping
containers. Kraft paper is manufactured in basis weights ranging from 60 to 147 grams per square metre and used in

producing multi-wall industrial sacks and in various spedialty products.




Sales:
Linerboard and kraft paper are marketed out of West Fraser's office in Vancouver, BC, Most overseas sales are

arranged through the worldwide sales network of Stora Enso Oyj under a long-term agency agreement.

In 2006, approximately 30% of all sales by value were made to customers in North America, 22% 1o customers in Asia
and the Far East, 14% to customers in Europe, and the balance to customers in other markets. Sales to North
American customers were shipped by a combination of barge, rail and truck. Offshore sales were either shipped

directly from Kitimat via bulk vessels or barged to Vancouver for shipment by container vessels.

Newsprint

Capacity and Production’ (Mtonnes) Table IX
20086 2005 2004 2003 2002

Capacity — year-end 135 135 135 133 130

Tota! Production 125 130 135 127 128

1. Raflects West Fraser's 50% share of ownership.

Operations:
The ANC mil in Whitecourt, AB produces standard newsprint in two basis weights: 45 and 48.5 grams per square

miatre.

Sales:
Newsprint is sold to vanious publishers in North America through a partnership owned indirectly by the ANC owners.
In 2006, approximately 74% of all sales by value were made to customers in the United States and the balance to

customers in Canada.

Risk Factors
A detailed discussion of risk factors is included in “Management’s Discussion & Analysis — Risks and Uncertainties”™,

which is incorporated herein by reference.
External Issues Affecting West Fraser's Business in 2006

Economic Conditions

Woest Fraser's earnings are sensitive to changes in world economic conditions, primarily those in North America,
Europe and Asia. Most of the Company's revenues are from sales of commaodities for which prices are sensitive to
variations in supply and demand. Since most of these sales are in foreign currencies. mainty U.S. dollars, currency

exchange fluctuations are a major factor.

Saftwood Lumber Agreement

Effective October 12, 2006, a Softwood Lumber Agreement between Canada and the United States (the “SLA 2006")
came into force, and has a term of seven years which may be extended for ancther two years by agreement. After
the initial 18 months of the term, either party may terminate the SLA 2006 by providing not less than & months notice
to the other.

Under the SLA 2006, the Company is no longer required by the United States to deposit countervaiing and
antidumping duties on softwood lumber shipped to the U.S., but will instead pay export taxes to Canada. These export
taxes will range from 0% — 15% for producers in the provinces of B.C. and Alberta, and will vary depending on the
reference lumber price. Also, subject to U.S. lumber consumption and the volume of lumber shipments from B.C. and

Alberta to the U.S., an additional 50% surcharge on the applicable export tax may be levied.
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ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM

Energy
West Fraser's exposure to energy costs includes the cost to purchase electricity, natural gas. gasoline, diesel fuels,

resins and other natural gas-based chemicals and supplies, and fuel surcharges on purchased transportation.

In British Columbia, electricity is purchased from the provincial utility at regulated prices based largely on generation

costs. In Alberta, West Fraser is effectively hedged against electricity market price fluctuations for a substantial volume

N
N

of its eleciricity consumption through ownership of a fixed long-term power purchase agreement that provides

electricity based on generation costs and inflation.

The Company’s pulp and paper operations are significant consumers of energy. However, both the Hinton and
Cariboo pulp mills have cogeneration facilities that produce electricity to satisfy a considerable portion of their energy
requirements. In January 2007, the Kitimat mill completed a cogeneration project that will supply a portion of its

electricity requirements.

Environment

West Fraser's operations are subject to various federal, provincial, state and lecal enwironmental protection laws and
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regulations both in Canada and the United States. The Company has internal programs under which all forestry and
manufacturing operations are audited for compliance with appliicable laws and standards, and with West Fraser's
management systems. All of the Company's woodlands operations in Canada, and the harvesting operations of its
key U.S, suppliers, are third-party certified to internationally-recognized sustainable forest management standards.
The Safety & Environment Committee of the Company's Board of Direclors participates in reviews of environmental
matters and makes recommendations to the Board from time to time. The Committee also percdically tours selected
West Fraser operations. West Fraser has adopted an Erwironmental Policy, a copy of which is contained in the

Company’s Annual Report.

First Nations Claims

The potential existence of aboriginal titte and rights over substantial portions of British Columbia, including areas where
the Company’'s timber tenures are located, has created uncertainty with respect 1o property rights and natural
resource development in the Province. The Supreme Court of Canada (the "SCC"™) determined in 1997 that Frst
Nations may possess rights in respect of land used or occupied by their ancestors where treaties have not been

concluded to deal with those rights, Very few areas of British Columbia are the subject of such treaties.

In 2004, the SCC confirmed that the Crown must consutt with First Nations before authornizing any activity that rmight
infringe on their interests in certain circumstances and, when appropriate to do so, seek to accommaodate those
interests by minimizing interference with them. Authorizations requiring consultation may include approval of cutting
permits and required ministenial action relating to the transfer or renewal of Crown timber harvesting tenures. The
process of consultation and, when appropriate, accommodation is curently not clearly defined, creating some
uncertainty with respect to Crown timber harvesting rights held by forestry companies in British Columbia, including

Woest Frasger,

Failure of the govemment of British Columbia to adequatety discharge its obligations to First Nations may affect the
validity of its actions in dealing with public rights, including the granting of Crown timber harvesting rights. This
uncertainty may be alleviated by the steps the Province has been taking in its “New Relationship” with First Nations,
its policy of entering into Forest and Range Agreements with First Nations across the province. the negotiation of
treaties with First Nations, and further judgments of the courts. At this time, the Company cannot predict whether First
Nations claims will have a material adverse affect on its timber harvesting rights or on its ability to exercise or rengw

themn, or secure other timber harvesting rights.




Capital Structure

Share Capital and Market for Securities

The authorized share capilal of the Company consists of 230,000,000 shares divided into:
(a) 200,000,000 Common shares,
{b) 20,000,000 Class B common shares, and
{c) 10,000,000 Preferred shares, issuable in series.

The Commaon shares and Class B common shares are equal in all respects, including the right to dividends, except
that each Class B common share may at any time be exchanged for one Common share. The Common shares are
ksted and traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol WFT. As at December 31, 2006, the issued share
capital consisted of 37,886,731 Common shares and 4,885,206 Class B common shares.

Market for Securities
The tollowing table sets forth market prices and trading volumes of the Company's Common shares on the Toronto

Stock Exchange for each month of 2006 and 2005.

Table X
2006 2005

High Low Close Volume Close Volume
(D00's) (000's)

January a1.77 38.22 39.50 as52 4710 1,641
February 42.45 37.31 42.00 879 52.27 1,016
March 42.50 39.99 41,85 2,307 50.80 1,413
Apri 44.00 41.36 43.20 1,411 45.00 1,080
May 43.34 36.62 37.15 1,067 46.37 1,288
June 39.00 36.25 37.50 681 47.25 705
July 40,14 35.51 37.52 766 48.01 844
August 39.12 34.85 37.10 o 46.75 1,001
Sapternber 37.96 35.68 35.68 711 44.44 848
Cctober 3B.45 358.70 37.50 1,070 40.95 849
Novernber 43.50 37.01 a2.99 1,311 41.25 628
December 43.55 40.56 41.28 775 41.22 1,440
Total 12,721 12,853

Source: www.radingdata 15X, COMm.

Dividends

The declaration and payment of diidends is within the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company. MHistorically,
diiidends have been declared on a quarterly basis payable after the end of each quarter. In each of 2004, 2005 and 2006,
the Company declared cash dividends of $0.56 per Common share and Class B common share. Therg can be no
assurance that dividends will continue to be declared and paid by the Company in the hiure as the discretion of the Board
of Directors will be exercised from time to time taking into account the circumstances of the Company at the time.

Transfer Agent
West Fraser's transfer agent and registrar is CIBC Mellon Trust Companny with registers of transfers in Vancouver and

Taronto.

Experts

West Fraser's auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“*PwC"), who prepared the Auditors' Report included with
the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. PwC has confirmed that it
is independent with respect to the Company, within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia, as of February 15, 2007.
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INFORMATION FORM

Directors and Qfficers

Directors

The names and municipalities of residence of the directors of the Company, their principal occupations during the past

five years and the periods during which they have been directors of the Company are as follows:

Name and Municipality
of Residence

Principal Occupation

Director Since

Henry H. Ketcham

Vancouver, Briish Columbia

Clark 5. Binkley"2%+*

Cambridge, Massachusetts

J. Duncan Gibson"2%*

Toronto, Ontario

Wiltiam H. Ketcham?®*
New York, New York

William P. Ketcham' %4

Seattle, Washington

Harald H. Ludwig? **
Weast Vancouver,

British Colurnbia

Brian F. MacNaeill? * 55
Calgary, Alberta

Robert L. Phillipg?®*

Vangouver, British Columbia

Janice G. Rennie™? %"

Edmonton, Alberta

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Managing Director, Intemational Forestry

Investment Advisors (advisory services)

Investor

Managing Director, Serafin Partners LLP

{private investment)

Chairman of the Board, Herry H. Ketcham

Lumber Co., nc. {private investrment)

Presidernt, Macluan Capital Corporation

({diversified private equity investments)

Chairman, Petro-Canada Inc.
(energy, exploration, development,

refining and marketing)

Corporate Director

Corporate Director

September 16, 1985

February 13, 1992

April 29, 1997

April 23, 2002

December 1, 1966

May 2, 1985

September 19, 2000

April 28, 2005

April 28, 2004

. Member of the Audit Committee.

. Member of the Compensation Commitieo.

. Mamber of the Govemnance & Nominating Committee,

1
2
3. Mamber of the Safety & Environment Committee.
4
5. Lead Director.

Each director has held the sarme or a similar principal occupation with the organization indicated or a predecessor
thereof for the last five years except for Clark S. Binkley who betore April 2005 was Senior Vice President, Hancock
Natural Resource Group Inc.; Wiliam H. Ketcham who, betore March 2005 was a Managing Director of Fortress
Investment Group, before August 2003 was the managing partner of Serafin Partners, LLP and before December 2002
was Vice-President, Apex Leaming Inc.; Willam P. Ketcham who before January 2005 was also the President of Henry
H. Ketcham Lumber Co., Inc.; Robert L. Philips who before July 2004 was President and Chief Executive Officer of the
BCR Group of Companies; and Janice G. Rennie who from September 2004 to September 2005 was Senior Vice
President, Human Resources and Organizational Effectiveness with EPCOR Uilities Inc. and before September 2004
was Principal of Rennie and Associates. The temn of office of each director will expire at the conclusion of the

Company's next annual general meeting.




Officers

Mame and Municipality
of Residence

Office Held/Principal Occupation

Henry H. Ketcham

Vancouver, British Columbia

Gerald J. Miller

Vancouver, British Columbia

Martti Solin

West Vancouver, British Columbia

Gary W. Townsend

Quesnel, British Columbia

D. wayne Clogg
Victoria, British Columbia

Rodger M. Hutchinson

West Vancouver, British Columbia

William H. LeGrow
Coqguitlam, British Columbia

Christopher D. Mchver
Quesnel, British Columbia

Edward R. Seraphim
Morth Vancouver, British Columbia

Zoltan F. Szucs
Coquitlam, British Colurnbia

Larry S. Hughes

Vancouver, British Columbia

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Cificer

Executive Vice-President, Operations

Executive Vice-President, Finance, Corporate Development

and Chief Rinancial Officer

President, Solid Wood Products

Vice-President, Woodlands

Vice-President, Corporate Controller

Vice-President, Transportation and Energy

Vice-President, Lumber Sales

Vice-President, Pulp and Paper

vice-President, Panelboard

Secretary
Partner, Lang Michener LLP (lawyers)

Each officer has held the same or a similar principal occupation with the organizabon indicated or a predecessor
thereof for the last five years except for Gerald J. Mifler, who before February 15, 2007 was Executive Vice-President,
Pulp and Paper and befare 2005 was Group Vice-President, Pulp and Paper and Vice-President, Administration; Martti
Solin, who before February 15, 2007 was Executive Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer and before
2005 was Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Cfficer; Gary W. Townsend, who before February 15, 2007 was
Exective Vice-President, Solid Wood Products and before 2005 was Group Vice-President, Lumber Operations;
Rodger M. Hutchinson, who before 2003 was Corporate Controller; Edward R. Seraphim, who before February 15,
2007 was Vice-President, Pulp and Paper Sales and Christepher D. Mclver who from January 2005 to December 2005
co-managed the lumber sales department integration effort and before January 2005 was MDF Operations Manager.

N
]

=
r
o]
w
z
[+
T
L
b
o
o]
w
z
=}
<
=
z
z
<




ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM

Shareholdings of Directors and Officers

As at December 31, 20086, the directors and senior officers of the Company as a group, beneficially owned directly, or
exercised control or direction over 5,598,309 Cornmeon shares and 1,911,794 Class B common shares, being 15% of
the outstanding Common shares, 39% of the outstanding Class 8 common shares and 18% of the outstanding voting

shares of the Company.

Governance

Corporate governance is guided by West Fraser's Corporate Govemance Policy, a copy of which may be viewed on
the Company's web site: www.westfragser.com. The Board of Directors has established a Govemance & Nominating
Committee comprised of all non-management directors which provides support for the stewardship and governance
role of the Board in reviewing and making recommendations on the composition of the Board, the functioning of the
Board and its committees, succession planning as well as all other corporate governance matters and practices. At
each meeting of the Board during 2008, the Committee met without management representatives present and

reviewed these and other issues.

Audit Committee
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The Audit Committee of the Cormpany's Board of Directors assists the Board in fuffiling its responsibility to oversee the
Company's financial reperting and audit process. The full text of the Audit Committee’s Charter is set out below.

Audit Committee Charter
The Audit Committee Charter, which is set out below, was approved by the Board on December 9, 2003.

General Mandate
To assist the Board in fulfiing its responsibility to oversee the Company's financial reporting and audit processes, its system
of intemal controls and its process for monittoring compliance with applicable financial reporting and disclosure laws and its

own policies.

Responsibilities
The Cormmittee will carry out the following responsibilities:

Financial Statements

* Reviow significant accounting and financial reporting issues, including complex or unusual transactions, significant
contingencies and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory pronouncements, and understand their
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

* Review interim financial reports (including financial statements, managerent's discussion and analysis and related news
releases) with management and the auditors before filing with regulators and consider whether they are complete and
consistent with the information known to Committee members,

*  Understand how management develops interim financial information, and the nature and extent of auditor involvement.

+ Heview with management and the auditors the results of the audit, including any ditficulties encountered.

« HAeview the annual financial statements, and consider whether they are complete, consistent with information known to
Committee members, and reflect appropriate accounting principles and prosdde a recommendation to the Board with
respect 1o the approval of the statements.

+ Review with management and the auditors alf matters required 1o be comrmunicated to the Committee under generally
accepted auditing standards,

Internal Control

+ Consider the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over annual and interim financial reporting, including
information technology security and control.

*  Understand the scope of the auditors’ review of intermal control over financial reporting. and obtain reports on significant

finckngs and recommendations, together with management's responses.




Audit

* Review the auditors' proposed audit scope and approach.

+ Review the performance of the auditors, and provide recommendations to the Board with respect te the nomination of
the auditors for appointment and remuneration.

+ Review and confirm the independence of the auditors by obtaining staterments from the auditors on relationships
between the auditors and the Compary, including non-audit services. and discussing the relationships with the auditors.

Compliance

+ Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with financial reporting and disclosure laws and the
results of management's investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary acton) of any instances of non-compliance.

* Review the findings of any examinations by regulatory agencies, and any auditor observations.

+  Obtain regular updates from management and Company legal counsel regarding compliance matters.

Reporting Requirements
* Regularty report to the Board about Committee activities, issues and related recommendations.
* Provide an open avenue of communication between the auditors and the Board.

+ Review any reports the Company issues that relate to Committee responsibilities.

Other Responsibilities

+ Institute and oversee special investigations as needed.

+ Develop and implement a policy for the approval of the provision of non-audit services by the auditors and assessing
the independence of the auditors in the context of these engagements.

+ Be avalable to receive and deal with, on a confidential basis. reports, complaints or other communications from officers
ar employees of the Company.

+  Perform other activities related to this charter as requested by the Beoard.

* Review and assess the adequacy of the Committee Charter annually, requesting Board approval for proposed changes.

* Review terms of any Code of Conduct established by the Board and respond to any related compliance issues.

+ Confirm annually to the Board that all responsibilties outfined in this charter have been carried out.

Qualifications and Procedures

* The composition of the Committee will comply with applicable laws including requirements for independence,
unrelated to management, financial literacy and audit experience.

+ The Committee will meet at least four times annually, and more frequently as circumstances dictate, and the
CFO and a representative of the auditors should be available on request to attend all meetings.

*= The Cormmittee should meet privately in executive session with representatives of each of management and of
the auditors to discuss any matters of concem to the Committee or such members, including any post-audit
management letter.

* Minutes of each meeting should be prepared, approved by the Committee and circulated to the full Board.
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ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM

Members

The following identifies each current member of the Audit Committee, and the education and expenence of each member
that is relevant to the performance of the member's responsibiities as an Audit Committee member. Al members of the
Audit Committee are considered “independent” and “financially literate” within the meaning of Ml 52-110.

4. Duncan Gibson

N
]

Mr. Gibson halds a Bachelor of Commerce and a Masters of Business Administration. His career spanned 27 years
with the Toronto-Dominion Bank, including nine years in the Comporate Banking, U.S. Division, and as Vice Chairman

with responsibility for the Commercial Banking Division.

Clark S. Binkley
Mr, Binkley holds a Bachelor of Ants in Applied Mathematics and a PhD in Forestry and Ervironmental Studies, He was
recently the Chief Investment Officer of the world's largest private equity timberand investment firm. He has served

as a director of public and private forest products companies.

William P. Ketcham
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Mr. Ketcham, as one of West Fraser's founders, has been involved in the Company's financial affairs since it was
established in 1955. He has served as a director and member of the Audit Committee continuously since the

Company's first public offering in 1986.

Janice G. Rennie

Mrs. Rennie, who holds a Bachelor of Commerce, is a Chartered Accountant. She was elected as Fellow of the
Chartered Accountants in 1998. Mrs. Rennie has chaired or been a member of several audit committees of pubtic
companies, including Nova Chemicals Inc., Weldwood of Canada Limited, EPCOR Utilities Inc., Canadian Hotel Income

Properties REIT and Matrikon Inc.

Pre-Approval Policies and Precedures

The Audit Committee has adopted a policy that sets out the pre-approval requrements related to services to be
perforrmed by the Comparny's independent auditors. The policy provides that the Committee will annually review proposed
audit, audit-related, tax and other services {to be submitted by the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor),
and will provide general approval of described services, usually including specific maximum fee amounts.

Unless a service has received general pre-approval, it will require specific pre-approval by the Committee. The
Committee is permitted to delegate pre-approval authority to any of its members. The Committee reports on the pre-

approval process to the full Board of Directors from time to tirme.

Fees Paid to Auditors ($ thousands) Table X1
Audit-Related
Audit Fees' Fees®® Tax Fees? All Other®
2006 Q30 173 417 36
2005 875 202 260 82

1. Represents actual and estimated fees related to fiscal year ends.

2, Represents tees invoiced in the fiscal year.

3. For asswance and related services that are reasonably related to the perfarmance of the audit but are not reported as “Auckl Fees”.
Material Contracts

On Novermber 29, 2006, West Fraser entered inte an agreement to acquire 13 sawmills for approximately US$ 325
million, subject to certain post-closing adjustments. The transaction wilt include the assignment of multi-year market
price log supply agreements which are expected to provide approximately 15% of the acquired mills’ current
requirements and the entry into and assumption of long-term agreements to sell residual wood chips to the seller of
the sawmills al market prices. The transaction will result in the lermination of certain pulp supply contracts which were

entered into as part of West Fraser’'s 2004 acquisition of Weldwood.




In 2006, the Company sold its interest in one of two power purchase agreements to which il was a party and
concurrently acquired a greater interest in the remaining agreement. This was intended to allow West Fraser to

substantially bedge a constant rate of power output until 2020. at which time the agreement expires.

In 2005, the Company refinanced its operating credit facility, changing from a $350 million 2-year term to a $500 milion
S5-year term. In 2006, West Fraser obtained a commitrnent to increase the operating facility to $600 million with a new
maturity in 2012 and to create a 3-year term facility in the amount of $100 million to provide funding for the purchase

of the 13 U.S. sawmills. Definitive loan documents are expected to be entered into during the first quarter of 2007.

Legal Proceedings

As a condition to the implementation of the SLA 2006, both the United States and Canadian governments agreed to
terminate all outstanding ltigation, which covered proceedings before the World Trade Organization, the North
American Free Trade Agreement, U.S. agencies and U.S. courts, including the West Fraser de minimus dumping rate
case. There are a number of outstanding proceedings and appeals related to the recent softwood lumber dispute that
are expected to be discontinued or terminated.

inCorporation by Reference
The sections of the Company’'s Annual Report entitied “Management's Discussion & Analysis” and “Six-Year Review"”

are incorporated herein by reference.

Additional Information

When securities of the Company are in the course of distribution pursuant to a shon form prespectus, or a preliminary
short form prospectus bas been filed in respect of a distribution of its securities, the Company will, upon request,
provide to any person:

(a) one copy of this Annual Inforrmation Form, together with one copy of any document, or of the pertinent pages
of any document, incorporated by reference in this Annual Information Form;

{b) cne copy of the comparative consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
20086, together with the accompanying auditors’ report, and one copy of each interim consolidated financial
statement of the Company prepared after December 31, 2006:

{c) one copy of the Information Circular for the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Aprit 25, 2007;
and

{d) one copy of each other document that is incorporated by reference in the short form prospectus or the

preliminary short form prospectus and is not described above.

Additional information, including directors' and officers’ remuneration and indebtedness, principal holders of the
Company's securities and options to purchase its securities, is contaned in the Company’s Information Circular.
Additional financial infformation is provided in the Company’s comparative consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Copies of this Annual Information Form and the documents incorporated by reference therein, the comparative
consolidated financial statements of the Company (including the auditors' report) for the year ended December 31, 2006,
each consolidated interim financial statement prepared after Cecember 31, 2006, the Company's Information Circular and
Annual Beport may be obtained at any time upon request from the Company, provided the Company may require the
payment of a reasonable charge if the request is made by a person who is not a security holder of the Company.

This Annual Information Form, the Company’s Annual Beport and additiona! information conceming the Company may
also be obtained on the web site: wyww,westfrager.com and on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and
Retrieval (“SEDAR") at www.sedar.com.

N
[

INFORMATION FORM

-
Lo
]
4
-4
L4




858 Beatty Street
West fraserTimber Ca.Ltd Sesor

Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1C1
NEWS RELEASE

WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LTD.
(TSX:WFT)

February 23, 2007

Attention: Business & Financial Editors
Financial Analysts

Completion of Share Sales

Vancouver, B.C. — February 23, 2007 - Further to the Company’s News Release dated

February 15, 2007, the Company confirms that two of the Company’s principal shareholders,
Ketcham Investments, Inc. and Tysa Investments, Inc., have advised the Company that they have
completed the sale of a total of 2,000,000 Common shares of the Company. The sales were

conducted through the Toronto Stock Exchange. Each of Ketcham and Tysa is owned by
members of the Ketcham family.

West Fraser is an integrated forest products company that produces lumber, wood chips, LVL,
MDF, plywood, pulp, linerboard, kraft paper and newsprint. The Company has manufacturing
operations in British Columbia, Alberta and the southern United States. West Fraser has
approximately 6,900 employees and is headquartered in Vancouver, British Columbia.

Further information may be obtained from:
Martti Solin, Executive Vice-President, Finance and Corporate Development
and Chief Financial Officer
(604) 895-2700
www, westfraser.com
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(1B Metlon Trust {ompany C I BC

February 20, 2007

Nova Scotia Securities Commission Securities Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador

Alberta Securities Commission Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission, Securities Division
The Manitoba Securities Commission Office of the Administrator of the Securities Act, New Brunswick
Oniario Securities Commission British Columbia Securities Commission

Registrar of Securities, Prince Edward Island Autorité des marchés financiers

TSX Exchange Government of Yukon

Dear Sirs:

RE: WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LTD.

Pursuant to a request from our Principal, we wish to advise you of the following dates in connection
with their Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

DATE OF MEETING: April 25, 2007
RECORD DATE FOR NOTICE: March 16, 2007
RECORD DATE FOR VOTING: March 16, 2007
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DETERMINATION DATE: March 16, 2007
SECURITIES ENTITLED TO NOTICE: N/A
SECURITIES ENTITLED TO VOTE: Common

Yours very truly,

CIBC MELLON TRUST COMPANY

Trust Central Services‘
cc: CDS & Co. (ViaFax)

bbANM_WestFraser
H 320 Bay Street, P.O. Box 1 « Toronto, ON M5H 4A6 - Tel 416.643.5000 + www.cibcmellon.com

CIBC Mellon Trust Company is a licensed user of the CIBC and Mellon rademarks




858 Beatty Street
West fraserimber Co.Ltd Suite ;?,]ty e
Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1(1
NEWS RELEASE
WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LLTD,
(TSX:WFT)
February 15, 2007
Attention: Business & Financial Editors
Financial Analysts
Intended Share Sales

Vancouver, B.C. — February 15, 2007 - Two of the Company’s principal shareholders, Ketcham
Investments, Inc. and Tysa Investments, Inc., have today filed notices with Canadian securities
regulators confirming their intention 1o sell up to a total of 2,000,000 Common shares of the
Company. The notices, which are required to be filed whenever a “control person” intends to
sell shares, indicate that sales will be conducted through the Toronto Stock Exchange. Each of
Ketcham and Tysa is owned by members of the Ketcham family.

The Company has been advised that the intended sales are being considered for investment
diversification, estate planning and tax reasons. Despite these indications of an intention to sell
shares of the Company, there is no requirement on any of the named shareholders to complete
any sales.

West Fraser is an integrated forest products company that produces lumber, wood chips, LVL,
MDF, plywood, pulp, linerboard, kraft paper and newsprint. The Company has manufacturing
operations in British Columbia, Alberta and the southern United States. West Fraser has
approximately 6,900 employees and is headquartered in Vancouver, British Columbia.

Further information may be obtained from:
Martti Solin, Executive Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(604) 895-2700
www. westfraser.com

1452147.1



Form 45-102F1

Notice of Intention to Distribute Securitics under Section 2.8 of
MI 45-102 Resale of Securities

Reporting issuer

1.

Selling security helder

2.

Name of reporting issuer:

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. (the “Issuer™)

Suite 501 o
858 Beatty Street =1 .
Vancouver, B.C. LU e
V6B 1C1 oo s

Telephone: (604) 895-2700 - - A

Your name:

Tysa Investments, Inc.

300 — 2811 East Madison Street
Seattle, Washington

U.S.A. 98112

The offices or positions you hold in the reporting issuer:

The control person is a corporation. A shareholder of the control person is a
director of the Issuer.

Are you selling securities as a lender, pledgee, mortgagee or other encumbrancer?
Not Applicable.
Number and class of securities of the reporting issuer you beneficially own:

Tysa Investments, Inc. holds 2,177,363 Common shares and 1,833,066 Class B
Common shares.

Distribution

6.

1438800.1

Number and class of securities you propose to sell:

1,000,000 Common shares.




7. Will you sell the securities privately or on an exchange or market? If on an
exchange or market provide the name.

The securities will be sold on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
Warning

It is an offence to submit information that, in a material respect and in light of the
circumstances in which it is submitted, is misleading or untrue.

Certificate
| certify that

(1) I have no knowledge of a material fact or material change with respect to the
issuer of the securities that has not been generally disclosed; and

(2) the information given in this form is true and complete.

Date: February 14, 2007 Tysa Investments, Inc.
Your name (Selling security holder)

(Signed) S. Jean Ketcham
Your signature (or if a company, the signature of
your authorized signatory)

S. Jean Ketcham, Secretary
Name of your authorized signatory

INSTRUCTION:

File this form electronically through SEDAR with the sccuritics regulatory authority in each
jurisdiction where you sell securities and with the Canadian exchange on which the securities are
listed. Where the securities are being sold on an exchange, the form should be filed in every
jurisdiction across Canada.

Notice to selling security holders - collection and use of personal information

The personal information required in this form is collected for and used by the listed securities
regulatory authorities to administer and enforce securities legislation in their jurisdictions. This
form is publicly available by authority of Multilateral instrument 45-102 and the securities
legislation in each of the junisdictions. The personal information collected will not be used or
disclosed other than for the stated purposes without first obtaining your consent. Corporate filers
should seek the consent of any individuals whose personal information appears in this form
before filing this form

If you have questions about the collection and usc of your personal information, or the personal

information of your authorized signatory, contact any of the securities regulatory authorities
listed below,

1438800.1



Alberta Securities Commission
41h Floor, 300 - 5th Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 3C4
Attention: Information Officer
Telephone: (403) 297-6454
Facsimile: (403} 297-6156

British Columbia Securities Commission

P.O. Box 10142, Pacific Centre

701 West Georgia Street

Vancouver, B.C. V7Y L2

Autention: Manager, Financial and Insider Reporting
Telephone: (604) 899-6730 or (800) 373-6393 (in B.C.)
Facsimile: (604) 8§99-6506

Securities Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador
P.O). Box 8700

2nd Floor, West Block

Confederation Building

75 O’Leary Avenue

St. John's, NFLD A1B 4J6

Attention: Director of Securities

Telephone: (709) 729-4189

Facsimile: (709) 729-6187

Department of Justice, Northwest Territories
Legal Registries

P.O. Box 1320

st Floor, 5009-49th Street

Yellowknife, NWT X1A 2.9

Attention: Director, Legal Registries
Telephone: (867) 873-7490

Facsimile: (867) 873-0243

Nova Scotia Securities Commission
2nd Floor, Joseph Howe Building
1690 Hollis Street

Halifax, NS B3J 3]9

Attention: Corporate Finance
Telephone: (902) 424-7768
Facsimile: (902) 424-4625

1438800.1



Department of Justice, Nunavut

Legal Registries Division

P.O. Box 1000 - Station 570

Ist Floor, Brown Building

[galuit, NT X0A OHO

Attention: Director, Legal Registries Division
Telephone: (867) 975-6190

Facsimile: (867) 975-6194

Ontario Securities Commission

Suite 1903, Box 55

20 Queen Street West

Toronto, ON M5H 358

Attention: Administrative Assistant to the Director of Corporate Finance
Telephone: (416) 593-8314

Facsimile: (416) 593-8177

Prince Edward Island Securities Office

Consumer, Corporate and Insurance Services Division
Office of the Attorney General

P.O. Box 2000

Charlottetown, PE C1A TN8

Attention: Registrar of Securities

Telephone: (902) 368- 4550

Fax: (902) 368-5283

Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission
Securities Division

6th Floor, 1919 Saskatchewan Drive

Regina, SK S4P 3V7

Attention: Deputy Director, Legal

Telephone: (306) 787-5879

Facsimile: (306) 787-5899

Autorité de marches financiers

Tour de la Bourse

800 square Victoria

C.P. 246, 22¢ étage

Montréal, Québec H4Z 1G3

Attention: Responsible de 1"accés a I'information

1438800.1
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Form 45-102F1

Notice of Intention to Distribute Securities under Section 2.8 of
MI 45-102 Resale of Securities

Reporting issuer

Selling security holder

2.

Pistribution

6.

1438792.1

Name of reporting issuer:

West Fraser Timber Co. Lid. (the “Issuer™)

Suite 501 PESED.
858 Beatty Street o

s X ]
Vancouver, B.C. ., Tx
V6B ICI -
Telephone: (604) 895-2700 | ~/:- ‘S

We -

Your name:

Ketcham Investments, Inc.
2308 Federal Avenue East
Seattle, Washington
U.S.A, 98102

The offices or positions you hold in the reporting issuer:

The control person is a corporation. A shareholder of the control person is a
director of the Issuer and is its Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer.

Are you selling securities as a lender, pledgee, mortgagee or other encumbrancer?
Not Applicable.

Number and class of securities of the reporting issuer you beneficially own:

Ketcham Investments, Inc. holds 3,109,745 Common shares and 2,743,228
Class B Common shares.

Number and class of securities you propose to sell:

1,000,000 Common shares.



.
7. Will you sell the securitics privately or on an exchange or market? If on an
exchange or market provide the name.
The securities will be sold on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
Warning

It is an offence to submit information that, in a2 material respect and in light of the
circumstances in which it is submitted, is misleading or untrue.

Certificate
I certify that

) I have no knowledge of a material fact or material change with respect 1o the
tssuer of the securities that has not been generally disclosed; and

(2)  the information given in this form is true and complete.

Date: February 14,2007 Ketcham Investments, Inc.
Your name (Selling security holder)

(Signed) Mary Kerr
Your signature (or if a company, the signature of
your authorized signatory)

Mary Kerr, President
Name of your authorized signatory

INSTRUCTION:

File this form electronically through SEDAR with the securities regulatory authority in each
jurisdiction where you sell securities and with the Canadian exchange on which the securities are
listed. Where the securities are being sold on an exchange, the form should be filed in every
jurisdiction across Canada.

Notice to selling security holders - collection and use of personal information

The personal information required in this form is collected for and used by the listed securities
regulatory authorities to administer and enforce securities legislation in their jurisdictions. This
form is publicly available by authority of Multilateral Instrument 45-102 and the securities
legislation in each of the jurisdictions. The personal information collected will not be used or
disclosed other than for the stated purposes without first obtaining your consent. Corporate filers
should seek the consent of any individuals whose personal information appears in this form
before filing this form

If you have questions about the collection and use of your personal information, or the personal

information of your authorized signatory, contact any of the securities regulatory authorities
listed below.

1438792.1



Alberta Securities Commission
4th Floor, 300 - 5th Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 3C4
Attention: Information Officer
Telephone: (403) 297-6454
Facsimile: (403) 297-6156

British Columbia Securities Commission

P.0O. Box 10142, Pacific Centre

701 West Georgia Street

Vancouver, B.C. V7Y IL.2

Attention: Manager, Financial and Insider Reporting
Telephone: (604) 899-6730 or (800) 373-6393 (in B.C.)
Facsimile: (604) 899-6506

Securities Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador
P.O. Box 8700

2nd Floor, West Block

Confederation Building

75 O’Leary Avenue

St. John's, NFLD AIB 4J6

Attention: Director of Securities

Telephone: (709) 729-4189

Facsimile: (709) 729-6187

Department of Justice, Northwest Territories
Legal Registries

P.O. Box 1320

Ist Floor, 5009-49th Street

Yellowknife, NWT X1A 2L9

Attention: Director, Legal Registries
Telephone: (867) 8§73-7490

Facsimile: (867) 873-0243

Nova Scotia Securities Commission
2nd Floor, Joseph Howe Building
1690 Hollis Street

Halifax, NS B3J 3J9

Attention: Corporate Finance
Telephone: (902) 424-7768
Facsimile: (902) 424-4625

1438792.1




Department of Justice, Nunavut

Legal Registries Division

P.O. Box 1000 - Station 570

Ist Floor, Brown Building

Igaluit, NT X0A GHO

Attention: Director, Legal Registries Division
Telephone: (867) 975-6190

Facsimile: (867) 975-6194

Ontario Securities Commission

Suite 1903, Box 55

20 Queen Street West

Toronto, ON M5H 358

Attention: Administrative Assistant to the Director of Corporate Finance
Tetephone: (416) 593-8314

Facsimile: (416) 593-8177

Prince Edward Island Securities Office

Consumer, Corporate and Insurance Services Division
Office of the Attorney General

P.O. Box 2000

Charlottetown, PE C1A 7N8§

Attention: Registrar of Securities

Telephone: (902) 368- 4550

Fax: (902) 368-5283

Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission
Securities Division

6th Floor, 1919 Saskatchewan Drive

Regina, SK S4P 3V7

Attention: Deputy Director, Legal

Telephone: (306) 787-5879

Facsimile: (306) 787-5899

Autorité de marches financiers

Tour de la Bourse

800 square Victoria

C.P. 246, 22e étage

Montréal, Québec H4Z 1G3

Attention: Responsible de I'accés a I'information

1438792.1
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West fraserTimber Co.Ltd o

2006 MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS AT

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the annual audited consolidated financial
statemenis and accompanying notes. The annual audiled financial stalements are prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepled accounting principles and are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated. Additional
information relating to the Company, including the Company's Annual Informalion Form is available on SEDAR at
www.sedar.corm.

This report of management’s discussion and analysis contains historical information, descriptions of current
circumstances and slatements abou! potential future developments. The latter, which are forward-looking statements, are
presented to provide reasonable quidance to the reader bul the accuracy of these statements depends on a number of
assumplions and is subjec! to various risks and uncertainties. These statements are not guaranteed by the Company and
actual outcomes and results will depend on a number of factors that could affect the ability of the Company to execute its
business plans, including those matters described under “Risks & Uncertainties”, and such outcomes and results may
differ materially from those anticipated or projected. Accordingly, readers should exercise caution in relying upon forward-
looking statements. The Company undertakes no cbligation to publicly revise these forward-locking statements to reflecl
subsequent events or circumstances.

Throughout this report, reference is made to EBITDA (defined as operaling earnings plus amortization of property, plant,
equipment and timber, plus restructuring charges), which the Company considers to be a key performance indicator.
EBITDA is not a generally accepled earnings measure and should not be considered as an alternalive to earnings or cash
flows as delermined in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. As there is no standardized
method of calculating EBITDA, the Company's use of the term may not be directly comparable with similarly titted
measures used by olher companies,

The information in this report is as at February 15, 2007, uniess otherwise indicated.
U.S. Sawmill Acquisition

On November 29, 2006, West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or "West Fraser™) entered
into an agreement with International Paper Company (“IP") to acquire 13 sawmills for
approximately US $325 million, subject to certain post-closing adjustments. U.S. regulatory
approval was granted January 4, 2007 and the transaction, which is subject to customary
conditions, is expected to close at the end of March, 2007.

The 13 mills, which are located in North and South Carolina, Georgia, Florida, Alabama,
Arkansas and Texas, employ approximately 2,200 peopte and have a combined annual
produclion capacity of approximately 1.8 billion board feet of southern yellow pine lumber. At
closing, West Fraser is expected to become the second largest lumber producer in North America
with combined Canadian and U.S. production capacity of approximately 6.2 billion beard feet.

The transaction will include the assignment of multi-year market price log supply agreements
which are expected to provide, in aggregate, approximately 15% of the acquired mills’ current
requirements. Weslt Fraser will also enter into or assume long-term agreements to seli residual
wood chips at market prices. The transaction will result in the termination of two pulp supply
contracts for 170,000 tonnes per year, which were entered into as part of West Fraser's 2004
acquisition of Weldwood of Canada Limited ("Weldwood"). The termination of the contracts is not
expected to have a material impact on West Fraser,

Financing, Synergies and Current Operations

West Fraser intends to finance the acquisition with cash on hand and available lines of credil. In
assessing the acquisition, West Fraser established US $23 million in annual pre-tax synergies as
a target lo be achieved by the end of the third year after closing. Synergies are expected to be
achieved by implementing best practices and by centralizing U.S. sales and administrative
offices.
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Activities to Date

Since the announcement of the transaction, West Fraser has established an organizational
structure to manage the U.S. operations and announced plans to consolidate U.S. administrative
and sales functions in Memphis, Tennessee. The Company is also carrying out the planning
phase of the systems integration process, although activities will be limited until after closing.

Softwood Lumber Agreement

On July 1, 20086, the Canadian and U.S. governments agreed to the basic terms of a Softwood
Lumber Agreement (the "SLA 2006"), which came into force on October 12, 2006. Under the
agreement, the LS. terminated the existing duty deposit requirements on Canadian softwood
lumber shipments to the U.5. and agreed to return all duty deposits made to date, with interest. In
return, Canadian producers were required lo pay approximately $1 billion, which equated lo
18.06% of the returned duties plus interest received up to October 12, 2006 (the “Special
Charge") to the Canadian government to be forwarded to the U.S. government for further
distribution. Parties in Canada and the U.S. agreed to withdraw all related litigation and the U.S
industry agreed to waive its rights to file any other proceedings while the SLA 2006 is in effect.

Also under the agreement, the Canadian provinces were reguired to choose one of two options
with respect to lumber shipments to the U.S.; to pay to the Canadian governmenl either a variable
export tax based on price or a lower variable export tax but subject to a quota on total shipments.
B.C. and Alberta elected the export tax only option, which results in West Fraser's Canadian
tumber operations being subject to the following export taxes:

Table Xl
Prevailing price’ Export Tax (%)
Over US $355 Nil
US $336 - $355 5
US $316 - $335 10
US $315 or under 15

1. Based on Random Lengths Framing Lumber Composite Price {the “Reference Price™),

Also, if monthly shipments from specified regions in B.C. or from Alberta, as export tax only
regions, exceed a certain trigger volume as defined in the SLA 2006, a surge mechanism (the
“Surge™} will cause a 50% increase in the applicable export tax rate for that month.

From the date the SLA 2006 came into force until February 15, 2007 shipments to the U.S. from
B.C. and Alberta resulted in a 15% export tax being incurred. The tax rate will be re-determined
monthly based on a four-week average Reference Price that is published 21 days prior to the
start of any given month. The Surge will be calculated monthly based on trailing U.S. lumber
consumption.




Fourth Quarter Results

Table Xl

Q4 - 2006 Q4 — 2005
Production
Lumber — MMibm 910 1,011
MDF — MMsf (3/4" basis) 67 75
Plywood — MMsf (3/8” basis) 172 176
LVL — Mcf 655 737
BCTMP - Mtonnes 138 136
NBSK — Mtonnes 141 153
Linerboard and Kraft Paper — Mtonnes 117 113
Newsprint — Mtonnes 3 29
Shipments
Lumber — MMfbm 1,000 1,004
MDF ~ MMsf (3/4” basis) 55 74
Ptywoad ~- MMsf (3/8” basis) 163 162
LVL — Mcf 526 733
BCTMP — Mtonnes 108 165
NBSK — Mtonnes 136 149
Linerboard and Kraft Paper — Mtonnes 114 120
Newsprint — Mtonnes 29 29
Sales - § millions
Lumber 358 443
Panels 102 120
Pulp & Paper 267 269
Total 727 832
Operating earnings - $ millions
Lumber 354 35
Panels {5) 2
Pulp & Paper 19 (12)
Corporate & Other (10) 6
Total 358 3
EBITDA - $ millions 427 a5
Amorlization - $ millions (69) (64)
Operating earnings - $ millions 358 31
Interest income (expense) - $ millions 43 (10
Exchange loss on long-term debt - $ millions (14) -
Other income (expense) - $ millions 46 {4)
Provision for income taxes - § millions {137) {(8)
Earnings - $ millions 296 9
$CDN/$US — average 1.14 1.17




Average Benchmark Prices (in US $. except Piywood) Q4 - 2006 Q4 - 2005

2 x 4 random length SPF (per Mfbm)' 245 327
SYP #2 West 2 x 4 (per Mfbm)? 267 418
Plywood {per Msf 3/8" basis)3 Cdn§ 367 389
MDF (per Msf 3/4" basis)’ 462 407
Newsprint (per lonne)® 654 627
NBSK (per tonne)® 770 637
Linerboard (per tonne)’ 568 468
Sources:

1. Random Lengths - 2 x 4, #2 & Better - Net FOB mill.

2. Random Lengths — 2 x 4 — Net FOB mill Wes!side.

3. Crow's Market Report - Delivered Toronto.

4. Resource information Systems, inc. - MDF western U.S. — Net FOB mill,
6. Rasource Information Systems, Inc. — U.S. delivered 48.8 gram newsprint.
6. Resource Information Systems, Ine. = U.S. lisi price, delivered U.S.

7. Pulp & Paper Week — Unblteached linerboard kraft, East,

Selected Quarterly Information

($ millions, excepl earnings per share (“EPS") amounts which are in §) Tabte XIV
Q4-06 Q3-06 Q2-06 Q106 Q4-05 Q3-05 Q205 Q1-05
Sales 727 809 888 902 832 890 953 902
Earnings 296 (8) 104 6 9 18 38 43
Basic EPS - § 6.93 (0.19) 2.43 0.14 0.20 0.42 0.89 1.00
Diluted EPS - § 6.87 (0.19) 2.41 0.14 0.20 0.42 0.88 0.99

Operating earnings for the fourth quarter of 2006 include $387 million of duty refunds recorded as
the result of the seltlement of the softwood lumber dispute. Fourth quarter results, excluding the
duty refund, would have been an operating loss of $29 million compared to operating earnings of
$31 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. The decrease was mainly due to lower lumber and
plywood prices, offset partially by higher putp and paper prices, lower nalural gas costs and lower
export taxes in 2006 compared to duties in 2005.

Interest expense for the quarter was $7 million compared to $10 million for the fourth quarter of
2005. The decrease was due to interest earned on cash deposits and lower debt levels. In
addition, softwood lumber duty refund interest of $50 million was recorded in earnings in the
quarler.

During the quarter, West Fraser soid its interest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills and
associated harvesting rights for net proceeds of $79 million, subject to adjustment, resulting in a
gain of $22 million. In addition, logging operations in Hinton, AB were sold for $2 million (see note
5 to the accompanying financial statements).

The change in value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar in the fourth quarter resulted
in an exchange loss of $14 million on the Company's U.S. denominated long-term debi. Also,
other income included a $19 million gain on the transtation of U.S. dollar cash, receivables and
U.S. operations, compared 10 a $4 million translation loss in the fourth quarter of 2005.

During the fourth quarter, West Fraser reallocated a portion of the gain on the sale of a power
purchase agreement to better reflect historic consumption of electricity. Accordingly, $10 million
was transferred from the pulp and paper segment of which $8 million was attributed to the panel
segment and $2 million 1o the lumber segment.

Excluding the $387 million duty refund, lumber operations had an operating loss of $33 million
compared to operating earnings of $35 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. The $68 million
reduction was primarily due to lower lumber prices offset partially by lower export taxes in 2006
compared to duties in 2005. Lower production volumes in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to




the fourth quarter of 2005 were primarily due to the disposal of the Company's interest in the
Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills on October 31, 2006.

Operating earnings of the panel segment were $7 million lower in the quarter compared to the
fourth quarter of 2005 partially due o lower plywood prices, higher plywood production costs
resulting from operating issues and higher log costs. MDF prices were higher during the quarler
than in the fourth quarter of 2005, but that benefit was partially offset by lower production and
shipments.

Pulp and paper operating earnings were higher by $31 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 than in
the fourth quarter of 2005, mostly due to price increases and lower natural gas costs offset
partiatly by increased fibre costs and decreased shipment volumes for BCTMP. Fourth quarter
NBSK production declined mostly as a result of the closure during the quarter of the #1 pulp
machine at Hinton Pulp.

Annual Results

Revenue and Earnings Comparison ($ millions, except as stated) Table XV
Year ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Sales by Segment

Lumber 1,756 2,021 1,475
Panels 475 511 284
Pulp & Paper 1,095 1,045 641
Total 3,326 3,577 2,400
EBITDA 682 447 442
Amortization {252) (255) {154)
Restructuring charge (38) - -
Operating earnings 392 192 288

Operating Earnings by Segment

Lumber 400 206 298
Panels 13 27 45
Pulp & Paper (6) (30) (15)
Corporate & Other (15) (11) {40)
Total 392 192 288
Less certain unusual items:

Duty refund (387) - -

Restructuring charge 38 - -
Adjusted Operating Earnings' 43 192 288




Year ended December 31 2006 2005 2004

Earnings 398 108 212
Basic EPS - § 9.31 252 5.75
Diluted EPS - $ 9.23 2.49 5.36
Cash dividends per share - $ 0.56 0.56 0.56
Total assets 4,018 3,634 3,927
Long-term debt 628 628 886
$CDN/ 3US - average 1.13 1.21 1.30

1. Adjusted Operating Earnings refers to lotal operating eamings less certain unusual items. Adjusted Operating Earnings is not a generally
accepled earnings measure and shoutd nol be considered as an alternative to operaling eamings as delermined in accordance with
Canadian generalty accepted accounting principles. The Company's use of this term may not be direclly comparable with similarty titled
measures used by other companies.

On December 31, 2004, the Company acquired Weldwood through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Weslt Fraser Mills Lid. Wesl Fraser's 2006 and 2005 results include the earnings of the acquired
Weldwood operations, whereas the 2004 results do not.

Adjusted Operating Earnings in 2006 declined by $149 million from 2005 and by $245 million
from 2004. These declines were primarily due to lower lumber and plywood prices and the
stranger Canadian dollar but were partially offset by lower duty and export tax payments and
higher MDF and pulp and paper prices. In addition, West Fraser's share option recovery was $1
million in 2006 compared to a recovery of $6 million in 2005 and an expense of $25 million in
2004. The share option expense fluctuations are primarily due to changes in West Fraser's year-
end share price compared to previous years.

Interest expense of $38 million was $10 million lower than in 2005 due to lower debt levels,
interest earned on cash held on deposit and deferred financing charges of $3 million expensed in
2005 related to a debt prepayment. Interest expense of $16 million in 2004 was lower than both
2006 and 2005, primarily due to increased debt levels related to financing the Weldwood
acquisition.

The change in value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar resulted in an exchange
loss of less than $1 million in 2006 on the Company's U.S. denominated long-term debt
compared to an exchange gain of $14 million in 2005 and an exchange gain of $27 million in
2004, Other income included a $12 million gain on the translation of U.S. dollar cash, receivables
and U.S. operations, compared to a $15 million translation loss in 2005 and an $8 million
translation foss in 2004. Other income also included gains on the sale of property, plant,
equipment and timber and other items.

During 2006 the following significant one-time items were included in eamings:

» The Hinton Pulp mill restructuring plan resulted in a writedown of $35 million of property,
plant, equipment and timber and a $3 million charge for other restructuring costs.

+ The SLA 2006 resulted in West Fraser recording duty refund income of $387 million and
interest income of $50 million.
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* The sale of one of two power purchase agreements resulted in a gain of $62 million.
Concurrently West Fraser acquired a greater interest in the remaining agreement for $86

million.

+ The sale of West Fraser's inlerest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills and the

related timber harvesting rights resulted in a gain of $22 million.

s The receipt of compensation for timber rights expropriated by the Province of British
Columbia under the government's Forestry Revitalization Plan resulted in a gain of $14

million.

The effeclive tax rate applicable to the Company for 2006 and 2005 was lower than the statutory
rate primarily due 1o reductions during 2006 in federal and Alberta tax rates and the reduction
during 2005 in the British Columbia tax rate. The 2006 provision for income tax was an expense
of 5124 million compared to the 2005 expense of $42 million and the 2004 expense of $85
million. Note 20 1o the accompanying consolidated financial stalemenls provides a reconciliation

from the statutory income tax rate to the effeclive income tax rate.

Total tax and tax-like levies and charges are shown in Table XVI. With the exception of income

tax, these payments do not vary directly with profitability.

Tax and Tax-Like Levies ($ millions) Table XVI
Year ended December 31 2006 2005
Current income tax 182 63
Corporation capital tax - 4
Lumber export tax 17 -
Canada pension plan 14 14
Employment insurance 6 7
Property tax 24 23
Social service tax 10 12
Stumpage & royalties 129 149
Workers compensation 1 13
Other 3 3
Total 396 288




2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Lumber

Table XVII
2006 2005
Production — SPF — MMfbm 3,797 3,824
Production - SYP — MMibm 389 388
Shipments — SPF — MMfbm 3,889 3,816
Shipments — SYP - MMfbm 386 374
Wood chip production - SPF - ODTs 1,908 1,960
- SYP - green tons 437 427
Sales - $ millions 1,756 2,021
EBITDA - $ millions 518 328
EBITDA margin - % 28 16
Operating earnings - $ miflions 400 206
Less duty refund (387) -
Adjusted Operating Earnings1 13 206
Capital expenditures - § millions 123 147

Benchmark Price
- SPF #2 & Better 2 x 4 (per Mibm)? US $ 296 353
- SYP #2 Wesl 2 x 4 (per Mibm)® US § 330 422

-,

. Adjusted Operating Earnings refers 10 total operating earnings less certain unusual items. Adjusted Cperating Earnings is not a generally
accepted earnings measure and should not be considered as an affernative to operafing eamings as determined in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The Company's use of this lerm may not be direclly comparable with similardy titled
measures used by other companies.

2. Source: Random Lengths — 2 x 4, #2 & Belter — Net FOB mill.

3. Source: Random Lengths — 2 x 4 — Nel FOB mill Westside.

Adjusted Operating Earnings declined by $193 million from 2005 primarily due to lower lumber
prices and the stronger Canadian doliar. The decline was partially offset by lower duties and
export taxes and lower sawlog costs from reduced stumpage rates.

During 2006, West Fraser sold its interest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills and the
refated timber harvesting rights located in British Columbia for net proceeds of $79 million,
subject to adjustment, resulting in a gain of $22 million, These diveslitures were required under
the agreement with the Canadian Competition Commissioner related to the Company's
acquisition of Weldwood. A read maintenance business and logging operations located in Hinton,
AB were also sold for proceeds of $2 million.

Woest Fraser reached an agreement with the Province of British Columbia for compensation for
tlimber rights expropriated by the Province under its Forestry Revitalization Plan. The Company
received $29 million from the Province in compensation for the loss of approximately 1,275,000
m" of AAC from its replaceable forest tenures and received an additionat $2 million for certain
related assets. A gain of $14 million was included in earnings.

Table XVIH outlines the softwood lumber duties expensed each quarter at the then prevailing
exchange rate. The cumulative duty expense since 2002 exceeded the gross duty refund
received by the Company by $75 million due to the stronger Canadian dollar. The duty refund
was recorded net of the Special Charge.




Softwood Lumber Duties ($ millions) Table XVl

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
2006
Duty expense 22 22 17 - 61
Gross refund - - - (472) (472)
Less Special Charge - - - 85 85
Net refund - - - (387) {387)
Total 2006 22 22 17 (387) (326)
2005 40 43 39 29 151
2004 31 42 52 3 156
2003 23 26 31 32 112
2002" 2 (13) 29 24 42

1. After 2001 reversals,

West Fraser's sawmills operated efficiently during the year despite primarily processing lower
quality mountain pine beetle {"MPB") affected logs in B.C. Log qualily resulted in reduced lumber
recovery and increased volumes of lower grade lumber. However, West Fraser plans to continue
1o upgrade and operate its mifls in a manner that reduces the negative effects of processing such
logs.

The Company experienced railcar shortages in the early part of 2006. Railcar supply improved
over the summer months and the sawmills were able to recover the lost shipment volumes.
However, inconsistent rail service to West Fraser's operalions remains a significant issue.

Capital expenditures for the year were $123 million compared to $147 million in 2005. Major
expenditures incurred in 2006 were for the construction of the new Quesnel sawmill, improved
energy systems to reduce natural gas consumption and various projects dealing with processing
of the MPB affected timber.

The new sawmill in Quesnel commenced operations at the end of October 2006 and in January
2007 began operating on a three-shift basis. The sawmill has a capacity of approximately 600
MMIbm per year. Additional planer capacity will be added to the Quesnel operations to handle the
increased volume of lumber to be produced.

In the early part of 2006 lumber prices weakened due to declining U.3. housing starls. The SPF
benchmark price ended the year at US $265 per Mfbm, down from US $360 per Mfbm in the early
part of 2006. Southern yellow pine prices, which were even more volatile, ended the year at US
$280 per Mfbm, down by more than US $140 per Mfbm since the early part of 2006. In 20086, the
Japanese lumber market showed improvement over 2005 for both price and volume.

West Fraser's outlook for 2007 assumes a continued slowdown of housing starts in the United
States for the first half of the year with some improvement expected in the second half of the
year. Lumber prices are not likely to recover until the housing market begins to improve.

Stumpage

In 2006, the B.C. government enacted a new timber pricing system for the B.C. Interior under
which stumpage is now based on timber sales data derived from publicly auctioned timber rather
than on the Statistics Canada lumber and wood chip price indices.

Also during 2006, the Province of British Columbia changed the way logs are graded and
stumpage is calculated for beetle-affected trees. The changes were designed to be revenue
neutral to the Province but changed the distribution of stumpage across the B.C. Interior.
Generally timber stands that were heavily damaged by the MPB incurred increased stumpage
with a corresponding reduction in stumpage in less severely damaged or unaffected stands.




Under the current system in Alberta, stumpage is principally tied to product prices. In 2008, the
Alberta government introduced a new stumpage schedule for sawlegs which reflects updated
industry costs. The Province also began to charge stumpage as logs are delivered to the mill
rather than as they are processed, which has had the effect of accelerating the timing of
stumpage payments.

Mountain Pine Beetle

in B.C.'s Interior, the MPB infestation has been spreading since 1994. Recent surveys indicale
that approximately 582 million m?® of lodgepole pine in B.C. has been affecled by the MPB. The
Quesne!, Prince George, Williams Lake, 100 Mile House, Lakes and Morice TSAs continue to be
the most heavily affected by the MPB. These are all areas in which West Fraser has operations.
The Dawson Creek TSA, where the Company also operates, currently has a moderate level of
infestation.

The Province of British Columbia has increased the AAC of timber tenures by approximately 16
million m® in the northern and central areas of B.C. from pre-infestation levels. West Fraser
estimates that approximately 85% of the timber currently supplied to its B.C. Interior operations is
from heetle-affected stands.

The long-term effect of the MPB infestation on West Fraser's operations is not clear. Preliminary
analyses by the Province indicate that the AAC in the B.C. Interior may be reduced by 20% to
25% below pre-beetle AAC levels beyond 2015 or by as much as 50% from current elevated
harvest levels. it is also expected that the grade and volume of lumber that can be recovered
from the beetie-affected logs will diminish with time. However, the timing and extent of these
reductions on West Fraser's timber supply, and the effect on tumber recovery and grade depends
on a variety of faclors and cannot be reasonably determined.

In 2005, the MPB appeared along the eastern slopes of the Rocky Mountains, including within the
Company's Hinton, AB FMA. In 2006 there was a flight of the beetle into northwestern Alberta,
affecting an estimated one to two million trees and current survey activities are expected to find
additional infestation. The Alberta government is taking proactive action to control the spread of
the MPB and to reduce the area of stands at risk for attack. An advisory group made up of
representatives from the provincial and local governments, industry, aboriginal groups, academia
and environmental organizations is advising the Alberta government on stralegies o contain and
prevent further spread of the infestation. Although the hardest hit areas in Alberta are to the north
and west of West Fraser's operating areas, all of the Company's Alberta operations are shifting
harvest activities into pine stands which have been identified as being at high risk of infestation.
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Panels

Table XiX
2006 2005
Plywood

Production — MMsf — 3/8” basis 728 721
Shipments — MMsf — 3/8” basis 721 713

MDF
Production — MMsf — 3/4" basis 288 294
Shipments — MMsf — 3/4” basis 281 290

LVL
Production — Mcf 3,000 3,179
Shipments — Mcf 2,710 3,134
Sales - § millions 475 511
EBITDA - $ millions 53 65
EBITDA margin - % 11 13
Operating earnings - $ millions 13 27
Capital expenditures - $ millions 20 24
Benchmark price - Plywood {per Msf 3/8" basis)' Cdn $ 366 387
- MDF (per Msf 3/4" basisf uss$ 445 414

1. Source: Crow's Market Report = Delivered Toronto,
2. Source: Resource Information Systems, Inc, — MDF Western U.S. — Net FOB mill.

Operating eamings were $13 million for the year compared to $27 million for 2005. The decrease
was primarily due to lower plywood prices, higher plywood production costs resulting from
operating issues and higher log costs. In addition, operating earnings were reduced by lower LVL
shipments due to a weakening LVL market, The increase in the MDF price was partially offset by
lower production and shipment volumes.

Plywood
Combined production and shipments at West Fraser's plywood plants increased marginally in
2006 over 2005 levels.

Price erosion for plywood was less severe than lumber due to reduced production capacity in
Canada and continuing strong demand in the Canadian markel. Although West Fraser was able
to sell its production in 2006, it experienced a slowdown in sales in the last few months of the
year.

MDF
Produclion was lower than in 2005 due to market driven product mix changes and voluntary
power-related curtailments during pericds of high electricity prices.

MDF prices rose during the first nine months of the year, but began to decline in the fourth
quanter. The MDF business continues to face increasing competition from offshore manufacturing
of both MDF panels and MDF products such as furniture. However, the North American laminated
flooring market, which is key for West Fraser's MDF business, continued to grow during 2006.

LVL

Various operational difficulties and production curtailments due to deteriorating market conditions
resulted in lower production in 2006 compared to 2005. Union certification of the hourly
employees of the Rocky Mountain House LVL facility cccurred in March 2006 and contract
negotiations with the union are ongoing.

Sales volumes began to deciine in the third quarter of 2006 and continued to fall by a further 16%

in the fourth quarter. Demand for this structural product is expected 1o pick up along with other
building materials when the U.S. housing market improves.
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Pulp & Paper

Table XX

2006 2005

Sales - § millions 1,095 1,045
EBITDA - § millions 123 62
EBITDA margin - % 11 6
Operating loss - $ millions {6) (30)
Capital expenditures - $ millions 66 47

Operating earnings for the pulp and paper segment improved by $24 million despite the $38
millien restructuring charge for the Hinton Pulp mill. Higher pulp and paper pricing, improved
operations at the Kitimat mill and lower natural gas prices were the primary reasons for the
improvement, which was parlially offset by the stronger Canadian dollar.

The Company sold its interest in one of two power purchase agreements to which it was a party
for proceeds of $68 million while concurrently acquiring a greater interest in the remaining
agreement for $86 million. These transactions were accounted for as a sale and purchase
respectively, resulting in a gain of $62 million of which the pulp and paper segment recorded $51
million. The increased ownership in the remaining agreement provides Weslt Fraser wilh greater
participation in the power purchase agreement related to a newer and lower cost power plant.
This provides a more consistent energy hedge and substantially protects its energy position
through 2020 for most of its Alberta operations.

Pulp’ Table XXI

2006 2005
Production — NBSK — Mtonnes 543 581
Shipments — NBSK — Mtonnes 565 570
Production - BCTMP — Mionnes 561 552
Shipments — BCTMP — Mtonnes 572 550
Benchmark price — NBSK (per tonne)’ US $ 721 646

1. For Cariboo Pulp & Paper, includes West Fraser's share.
2. Source; Resource Informalion Systems, Inc. - U.S. lis! price delivered U.S.

Capital spending at the four pulp mills was $35 million in 2006 compared to $25 million in 2005,
Projects in 2006 included various upgrades at Quesnel River Pulp (*QRP") and the upgrade of
the #2 pulp machine at Hinton Pulp mill, which is expecled to be completed in 2007. In addition,
there were several other productivity improvement projects completed in the year.

NBSK

Combined production at the two NBSK mills was 543 Mtonnes compared to 581 Mlonnes in
2005. The lower production was a result of extended maintenance shutdowns mainly as a result
of additional maintenance work, the closure of the old pulp line at the Hinton Pulp mill in the fourth
quarter and various operating issues throughout the year.

The Cariboo Pulp mill's 2006 annual maintenance shutdown and startup was complicated by a
failure of a tank in the bleach plant. This event idled the bleach plant for approximately 20 days.
During this time approximately 15,000 tonnes of unbleached kraft pulp were produced, of which
50% was to West Fraser's account. The production and sale of the unbleached pulp mitigated the
losses associated with the downtime.

The woodroom al the Hinton Pulp mill was permanently closed in the fourth quarter as part of the
announced restructuring of that operation. In addition, the shutdown of the smaller #1 pulp
machine commenced near the end of the year. The $20 million upgrade of the remaining pulp
machine is expected o be completed by the end of the second quarter of 2007. After completion
of the upgrade, the annual capacity of the mill will be 350,000 tonnes reflecling a net reduction of
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approximately 70,000 tonnes. In 2006, West Fraser recorded a writedown of $35 million of
property, plant, equipment and timber and a charge of $3 million for other costs related to the
restrucluring plan.

The agreement to purchase 13 sawmilis in the southern United States includes the termination of
two 10-year pulp supply agreements for 170,000 tonnes per year thal were entered into as part of
the Weldwood transaction. The reduction of 70,000 tonnes per year of pulp production at Hinton
and a strong market and customer base are expected to offset the effect of the termination of the
contracts.

North American NBSK pulp prices quoted in U.S. dollars increased significantly in 2006 resulting
in higher sales returns despite the stronger Canadian dollar. A significant reduction in North
American NBSK pulp capacity was the primary reason for the improved markelt conditions. West
Fraser expects NBSK pulp prices o remain strong during the first quarter of 2007 due to supply
reductions.

BCTMP

BCTMP production increased to 561 Mtonnes from 552 Mtonnes in 2005, with both the QRP and
Slave Lake pulp mills achieving record production for the year. QRP increased production by 3%
as a result of several productivity initialives completed during the year. Despite voluntary power-
related curtailments during pericds of high electricity prices of approximately 5,000 tonnes in each
of 2005 and 2006, Slave Lake Pulp established a fifth consecutive annual production record.

Demand for BCTMP was strong for the first ning months of the year, allowing for higher
shipments compared to 2005, although demand slowed in the fourth quarter of 2006. West Fraser
expects BCTMP prices in 2007 may be under pressure due to capacity additions.

Linerboard and Kraft Paper Table XXII

2006 2005
Production — Mtonnes 459 449
Shipments - Mionnes 467 458
Benchmark price — Linerboard (per tonne)' US § 554 472

1. Source: Pulp & Paper Week — Unbleached linerboard kraft, East.

Improvements made in the past few years at the Kitimat mill have resulted in an increase in
capacity from 450 Mtonnes to 470 Mtonnes, and a 2006 annual production record of 459
Mtonnes. Production costs declined in the year as a result of lower {ibre and natural gas costs
and productivity improvements realized in the year.

In 2005, West Fraser began building an electrical cogeneration plant at the Kitimat mill, designed
to generate approximately 20 megawatts of electricity. The project was completed in January
2007 and after some conslruction issues is expected to improve production costs for this
operation. Total capital spending for Kitimat was $30 million compared to $16 million in 2005.

Linerboard markets strengthened throughout 2006 primarily due to capacity reductions, mainly in
North America. Benchmark prices denominated in U.S. dollars averaged approximately US $82
higher than the average for 2005. Although the stronger Canadian dollar offset much of this
increase, the Company's Canadian mill net returns for linerboard increased 6%. As a result of
current North American capacity reductions and continued demand, West Fraser expects
linerboard prices to remain near current levels for at least the first half of the year with the annual
average slightly higher than 2006.

Kraft paper prices were relatively unchanged during the first nine months of 2006 but
strengthened significantly towards the end of the year. In Canadian dollars, mill net reatizations
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were unchanged from 2005. Weslt Fraser expects kraft paper prices to remain strong throughout
2007.

Newsprint (West Fraser's share) Table XXIN

2006 2005
Production — Mtonnes 125 130
Shipments — Mtonnes 123 129
Benchmark price - (per tonne}' US $ 655 600

1. Source: Resource Information Systems, Inc. - U.S. delivered 48.8 gram newsprint,

ANC's newsprint production was 4% lower in 2006 compared to the previous year due to
voluntary power-related curtailments during periods of high electricity prices, an increase in
production of lower basis weight paper and operational issues. Power-related curtailments
resulted in a production reduction of 3,500 tonnes in 2006 compared to 2,000 tonnes in 2005,

North American newsprint demand continued to decline in 2006 primarily due to the reduction in
U.S. daily newspaper consumption. Newsprint capacity closures have nol kept pace with this
lower consumption and prices declined during the fourth quarter of 2006. West Fraser expects
that newsprint prices will be lower in 2007 than in 2006 as newsprint demand is expected to
decline further.

Significant Management Judgments Affecting Financial Results

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions, and to select accounting policies that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements. The significant accounting policies followed by West Fraser are disclosed in Note 1 to
the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements. The following items are the judgments
considered most significant,

Asset Valuation

West Fraser believes that the frequency of technological changes in its manufacturing processes
should be reflected in its choice of amortization pericds. Accordingly, West Fraser amortizes its
manufacturing equipment and machinery over periods ranging from 10 to 20 years, with sawmill
machinery and equipment averaging 10 to 12 years. Timber rights are amortized over periods of
up to 60 years. In addition to the appropriateness of the amortization periods, West Fraser
pericdically reviews estimated future cash flows from its assets as part of its consideration of
whether the carrying value of the assets is appropriate.

Reforestation Obligation and Other Asset Retirement Obligations

West Fraser's Canadian operations are required by provincial regulations to carry out
reforestation to ensure re-establishment of the forest after harvesling. Reforested areas must be
tended for a period sufficient to ensure that they are well-established. The time to meet regulatory
requirements depends on a variely of factors, but in West Fraser's operating areas, it usually
spans 12 to 15 years. The estimated total cost of refarestation is accrued as harvesting takes
place. These estimates are reviewed by the Company at least annually, and adjusted if
appropriate.

West Fraser records the estimated fair value of a liability for other asset retirement obligations,
such as landfilf closures, in the period when a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The
fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset and amortized
over its useful life. The liability is accreted over time through charges to earnings and is reduced
by actual costs of settiement. Payments relating to landfill closure and site remediation costs are
expected to occur at periods ranging up to 20 years.
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Defined Benefit Plan Assumptions

Woest Fraser maintains defined benefit pension plans for many of its empioyees. The provision of
future funding requirements and the expense for accounting purposes for such plans depends on
assumptions made by the Company, as well as on actual returns experienced on the pension
fund assets. The Company makes assumptions it believes to be conservative.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Assumptions Table XXIV

2006 2005
Discount rate 5.25% 5.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of increase in fulure compensation 3.25% 3.25%

Change in Accounting Policies

Share-based Compensation

Effective December 31, 2006, West Fraser adopted the new provision of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants’ ("CICA™) Emerging Issues Committee for share-based compensation for
directors, officers and employees eligible 1o retire before the vesling date. Compensation
expense is now recognized over the earlier of the normal vesting period or the period from the
grant date lo the date the employee becomes eligible to retire. Pursuant to the transition
provision, the Company recorded a reduction of $1.5 million (net of income tax of $0.8 million) to
opening 2006 retained earnings for the cumulative effect on prior years arising from this change
in accounting policy. The Company has not restated earnings of any prior period as a result of
adopting this accounting change as the Company concluded thal such an impact was not
material. The 2006 income stalement effect of adopting this change in policy was an increase in
earnings of $1.6 million {net of income tax of $0.8 million).

Financial Instruments

The CICA issued new accounting rules on financial instruments, hedges and comprehensive
income that will require the Company to account for derivatives and financial assets held for
trading or available for sale at fair value. Loans, receivables and invesiments held to maturity will
be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rale method. Other financial liabilities
will be measured al fair value or at amortized cost using the effeclive interest rate method. The
effective interest rate method establishes the discount rate which equates the estimated future
cash flows with the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Other comprehensive income is the method used to record revenues, expenses, gains and
losses on net financial assets that are not required to be included in earnings. Foreign currency
translation gains and lesses on self-sustaining foreign operations will be included in other
comprehensive income. Comprehensive income is the sum of earnings for the period plus other
comprehensive income.

The Company is assessing the impact of the new rules, which are effective for the first quarter of
2007.

Translation of U.S. Operations

West Fraser has determined that upon the completion of the U.S. sawmill acquisition, its U.S.
operations will become self-sustaining. Accordingly, the Company will translate the financial
statements of its L.S. operations using the current rate method as opposed to the temporal
methad currently used. Under the current rate method all assets and liabilities are transtated at
the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Under the temporal method, only monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date while
non-monetary items are translated at historical exchange rates.
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Under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, this change will be accounted for
prospectively. The revaluation component will be included in accumulated other comprehensive
income as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. The impact of this change, assuming a
December 31, 2006 application of the translation method change, would have been an $18
million reduction to shareholders’ equity.

Capital Structure

The combined number of Common shares and Class B common shares outstanding was
42,771,937 as at December 31, 2006 (2005 - 42,756,992). The increase reflects the issuance of
14,945 Common shares pursuant to the Employee Share Purchase Plan and the exercise of
outstanding share purchase options.

All of West Fraser's debt, other than current borrowings incurred from time to time for the
Company's joint-venture newsprint mill, is unsecured and ranks equally in right of payment.
West Fraser’s public debt is rated as investment grade by teading rating agencies. In February
2007, Moody's changed its rating from Baa2 with a negative outiook to Baa3 with a Stable
outlook, reflecting in parl its near-term view of uncertainty in the lumber market along with
increasing capacity of pulp in the southern hemisphere. The ratings from Standard & Poor's and
Dominion Bond Rating Service were unchanged from 2005 although Standard & Poor’s changed
its outlook from 'Stable’ to ‘Negative’ in 2005, reflecting in part its view of the North American
forest products industry in general.

Debt Ratings Table XXV
_Agency Rating Qullook
Dominion Bond Rating Service BBB Stable
Moody's Baa3 Stable
Standard & Poor's BBB Negative

Capital Requirements and Liquidity

Summary of Financial Position ($ millions, except as otherwise indicated) Table XXVI
As at December 31 2006 2005
Net cash’ 606 18
Current assets 1,451 988
Current liabilities 830 617
Ratio of current assels to current liabilities 1.7 1.6
Net debt 22 775
Shareholders’ equity 2,239 1,866
Net debt to capitalization’ - % 1 29

1. Net cash consists of cash and short-term investmenls less outstanding cheques in excess of funds on deposit.
2. Net debt (lotal debt less cash and short-term investments} divided by net debt plus shareholders’ equily.

West Fraser's cash requirements, other than for operating purposes, are primarity for interest
payments, repayment of debt, additions to property, plant, equipment and timber, acquisitions
and payment of dividends. In years without a major acquisition or debl repayment, cash on hand
and cash provided by operations have normally been sufficient to meet these requirements.
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Selected Cash Flow ltems (3 millions) Table XXVII

As at December 31 2006 2005
Operating Activities

Cash provided before working capital changes 522 266
Non-cash working capital 358 (236}
Cash provided by operating activities 880 30
Financing Activities

Debt and operating loans {166) (150)
Dividends and ather {23) {23)
Cash used in financing activities (189) (173)
Investing Activities

Additions to property, plant, equipment & timber (212) (224}
Other 108 36
Cash used in investing activities (104) {188)
Change in cash 587 {331)

Non-cash working capital items in 2008, included a $174 million increase in income taxes payable
and a $122 million increase in accounts payable related to the Special Charge on duty refunds.
These amounts will be paid in the first quarter of 2007. Non-cash working capital items in 2005
included a use of $244 million of cash for tax payments

Additions 10 property, plant, equipment and timber in 2006 included $69 million related to
construction of the new Quesnel sawmill compared to $46 million in 2005. Other investing
aclivities include $29 million of proceeds related to the timber take-back, and $79 million of net
proceeds from the sale of the Company’s interest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills
and the related harvesting rights, which were partially offset by $18 million related to the
additional investment in the power purchase agreement.

In 2005, the Company refinanced its operating credit facility, changing from a $350 million 2-year
term to a $500 million 5-year term. West Fraser obtained a commitment to increase the operating
facility to $600 million with a new maturity of 2012 and to create a 3-year term facility in the
amount of $100 million to provide funding for the U.S. sawmill acquisition.

At December 31, 2006 there were $517 million in undrawn credit facilities. West Fraser has a
$125 million debenture that is due in November of 2007,

Contractual Obligations at December 31, 2006 (3 millions)' Table XXVIlI

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt 128 - 150 - - 350° 628
Operating leases 3 2 2 1 1 1 10
Capital asset commitments 13 - - - - - 13
Total 144 2 152 1 1 351 651

1. Conlractual obligations means an agreement related to debt, leases and enforceable agreements to purchase goods or services on
specified terms, but does not include reforestation obligations, energy purchases under various agreements, accounts payable in the
ordinary course of business or contingent amounts payable,

2. Represenis U.S. dencminated debt of $300 million.

Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

As required by Multilateral Instrument 52-109, West Fraser's management evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as at December 31, 2006.
Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and the Chief Financial Officer
(“*CFQO") have concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
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The CEQ and CFQ acknowledge responsibility for the design of internal control over financial
reporting {*ICFR") as at December 31, 2006 and confirm that in the quarter ended December 31,
2006 there were no changes in these controls which materially affecled, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, the Company's ICFR.

Wesl Fraser is committed to allocate resources required to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Company's ICFR, and supports activilies that are necessary to achieve continuing compliance
with the requirements of Bill 198.

Risks & Uncertainties

Fluctuations in Price and Demand for Products

Weslt Fraser's financial performance is principally dependent on the demand for and selling prices
of the preducts it sells. Both are subject to significant fluctuations. The markets for lumber,
panels, pulp, paper, wood chips and other forest products are highly volatile and are affected by
factors such as global economic conditions, changes in industry production capacity, changes in
world inventory levels and other factors beyond the Company's control. In addition, interest rates
have a significant effect on residential construction and renovation activity, which in turn
influences the demand for and price of building materials such as lumber and plywood.

Wesl Fraser cannol predict future market conditions, product demand and pricing or increases in
costs of production due to factors outside its control. Prolonged or severe weakness in the market
for any of its principal products would adversely affect the Company's financial condition.

Currency Risk

Mosl of West Fraser's products are sold at prices that are generally based on prevailing U.S.
dollar prices but the majority of its operational costs and expenses are incurred in Canadian
dollars. This results in significant earnings sensitivity to changes in the Canadian / U.S. dollar
exchange rate. Also, payment terms for offshore sales may be up to 180 days, exposing West
Fraser o the risk of exchange rate fluctuations in the period between sale and payment. Although
West Fraser does not currently hedge its foreign exchange exposure with financial forward or
option contracts, U.S. dollar-denominated debt and operations in the U.S. provide a limited offset
to the U.S. dollar exchange exposure. During 20086, the U.S. dollar traded at between Cdn $1.18
and $1.09, with an average of $1.13 (2005 — between $1.27 and $1.14, with an average of
$1.21).

Softwood Lumber Agreement

The Company cannot predict with any certainty the export tax rate applicable to its future lumber
shipments or the polential application or timing of the additional tax related to the Surge. The SLA
2006 has a term of seven years, and may be extended for another two years by agreement. After
the initial 18 months of the term, either party may terminate the SLA 2006 by providing not less
than six months notice to the other. West Fraser cannot predict if the SLA 2006 will be terminated
prior to the expiration of its term and the future responses of the United Slates and Canada
following such expiration or lermination are uncertain,

Availability of Fibre and Changes in Stumpage Fees

West Fraser meets a significant portion of its Canadian timber requirements through government
grants of timber from provincial ministries and is charged stumpage fees for its harvesting
activities on Crown lands. Provincial governments prescribe the methodology that determines the
amount of the stumpage fees charged and changes to the methodology or rates may adversely
affect the Company’s results.

Woest Fraser relies on log supply agreements in the United States which are subject to availability
and market prices. Currently, 0% of the Joyce and Huttig sawmills’ requirements are supplied
under a long-term agreement, leaving 40% to be purchased on lhe open market. There are no
guarantees that the Company can abtain quality southern yellow pine logs at an appropriate




market price. Changes in market conditions for these logs may adversely affect the Company's
resulls.

Competition

Markets for Wesl Fraser's products are highly competitive. The Company’s ability to maintain or
improve the cost of producing and delivering its products to those markels is crucial. Factors such
as cost and availability of raw materials, energy and labour, the ability to maintain high operating
rates and low per unit manufacturing costs, and the quality of its final products and its customer
service all affect West Fraser's earnings.

Operational Curtailments and Transportation Limitations

From time to time, West Fraser suspends operations at one or more of its facilities or logging
operations in response to market conditions, environmental risks, workplace safety concerns or
other operational issues, including power failure, equipment breakdown, dry forest conditions,
adverse weather conditions, labour disruptions and fire hazards. These unscheduled operational
suspensions could have a material adverse effect on West Fraser's financial condition. From time
to time, West Fraser must also respond to rail car and truck shortages that limit product deliveries
to its customers, which may have a material adverse effect on ils financial performance.

Labour Relations

West Fraser employs a unionized workforce in a number of its operations. Walkouts or strikes by
employees could result in lost production and sales, higher costs and supply constraints that
could have a material adverse impact on West Fraser's business. Also, West Fraser depends on
a variety of third parties that employ unionized workers 1o provide critical services to the
Company's operating facilities. Labour disputes experienced by these third parlies could lead to
disruptions at Company facilities.

Natural Disasters

West Fraser's operations are subject to adverse natural events such as forest fires, adverse
weather conditions, disease, and, on the coastal region of British Columbia, earthquake activity.
These events could damage or destroy the Company's physical facilities or its timber supply and
similar events could also affect the facilities of West Fraser's suppliers or customers. Any such
darmage or destruction could adversely affect Wesl Fraser's financial results. Aithough West
Fraser believes it has reasonable insurance arrangements in place to cover certain of such
incidents, there can be no assurance that these arrangements will be sufficient to fully protect the
Company against such losses. As is commaon in the industry, West Fraser does not insure loss of
standing timber for any cause.

Mountain Pine Beetle

The long-term effect of the MPB infestation on West Fraser's Canadian gperations is uncerlain,
The potential effects include a reduction in future AAC levels to those below current and pre-
beetle AAC levels, a diminished grade and volume of lumber that can be recovered over time
from the beetle-killed iogs, potentially decreased quality of wood chips that can be produced from
such logs, and increased production costs. The timing and extent of the effect on West Fraser's
timber supply, lumber grade and recovery, quality of wood chips and production costs depends
on a variety of factors and at this time cannot be reasonably determined.

Environment

West Fraser's operations are subject to regulation by federal, provincial, state and local
environmental authorities, both in Canada and the United States, including industry specific
environmental regulations relating to air emissions and pollutanis, wastewater {effluent)
discharges, solid waste, landfill operations, forestry practices, site remediation and the protection
of endangered species and critical habitat. West Fraser has incurred, and will continue to incur,
capilal expenditures and operaling cosis to comply with applicable environmenilal laws and
regulations. No assurance can be given thal changes in environmental laws and regulations or
their application will not have a material adverse effect on West Fraser's business, operations,
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financial condition and operational results. Similarly, no assurance can be given that any capital
expenditures necessary for future compliance with existing and new environmental laws and
regulations could be financed from Wesl Fraser's available cash flow. West Fraser may discover
currently unknown environmental problems, contamination, or conditions relating to its past or
present operations. This may require sile or other remediation costs to maintain compliance or
correct viclations of applicable environmental laws and reguiations or result in governmental or
private claims for damage to person, propenty or the environment, which could have a material
adverse effect on West Fraser's business, financial condition and operational results.

West Fraser has in place internal programs under which all its forestry and manufacturing
operations are audited for compliance with applicable laws and standards and with West Fraser's
management systems. West Fraser's woodlands operations in Canada, and the harvesting
operations of its key U.S. suppliers, are third-party certified to internationally-recognized
sustainable forest management standards. Wesl Fraser's operations and its ability to sell its
products could be adversely affected if those operations did not, or were perceived by the public
as failing 10, comply with applicable laws and standards, including responsible environmentat
standards.

First Nations Claims

Failure of the government of Brilish Columbia to adequately discharge its obligations 1o First
Nations groups may affect the validity of its actions in dealing with public rights, including the
granting of Crown timber harvesting rights. The Company cannot assure that First Nations claims
will not in the future have a material adverse affect on its timber harvesting rights or its ability to
exercise or renew them or secure other timber harvesting rights.

U.S. Sawmill Acquisition

West Fraser's acquisition of 13 sawmills located in the southern United States is expected to
complete by the end of March 2007. The anticipated timing and benefits of this acquisition are
subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
anticipated. These include, but are not limited to: the successful implementation of the
Company's business ptan for the acquired facilities including management and administration and
anticipated integration with the Company’s current business, processes and systems; the timing
and extent to which the Company realizes anticipated synergies and other benefits of the
acquisition; the reaction of customers, suppliers and other third parlies; the diversion of
management's lime on acquisition-related issues; and other risks and uncertainties, including
those disclosed by the Company from time to time.
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Business Qutlocok

Key uncertainties facing West Fraser in 2007 include potential commaodity price movements and
changes in the value of the Canadian dollar compared with the U.S. dollar.

Earning Sensitivity to Key Variables - based on year-end capacities' (3 millions) Table XXIX
Factor Variation Change in Earnings
Lumber price*” US$50  Change per Mfbm 169
Plywood price®” UsS 550 Change per Msf 32
MDF price® US $50 Change per Msf 12
NBSK price’ Us 350 Change per tonne 19
BCTMP price® US $50 Change per tonne 22
Linerboard and kraft price:1 Us $50 Change per tonne 18
Newsprint price US $50 Change per tonne 5
U.S. - Canadian $ exchange rate’ US $0.01  ChangeperCdn $ 17
Sawlog cost Cdn $10  Change per m® 106

1. Assumes exchange rate of Cdn $1.165 per US $1.00 and excludes L.5. sawmills to be acquired in 2007.
2. Change does not include any potentiat change in tog costs.
3. Change does not include any polential change in wood chip prices.

4, Excludes exchange impact on franslation of U.S. denominated debt and olher monetary items.

West Fraser expects U.S. housing starls to remain low compared to prior years as a result of a
high inventory of available homes. Accordingly, the Company expects lumber and structural panel
prices to remain at low levels for most of 2007.

West Fraser expects that pulp markets will peak in early 2007 as capacity increases may put
downward pressure on pulp prices. Balanced linerboard markets and improving kraft paper
markets should result in higher prices for these products.

The Hinton Pulp mill restructuring plan is expected 1o be completed in the second quarter of 2007
and should improve the cost structure of this mill. The Kitimat cogeneration project was
completed in January 2007 and is expected to result in reduced costs at the Kitimat operations.

On February 10, 2007, the union representing train conductors and certain yard workers for
Canadian National Rallway Company (“CN"), West Fraser's primary rail carrier, went on strike.
CN has announced a plan to maintain service levels at 65% of normal levels for the duration of
the strike. The Company’s ability to deliver product to its cusliomers is expected to be impacted
throughout the strike, although it is too soon to determine the extent of the affect. In addition, the
rail car supply to the Company’s sawmills in earty 2007 has been adversely affected due to rail
service issues related to winter operating conditions. The rail car supply issues have led to an
increase in lumber inventory in early 2007.

Waest Fraser estimates that its capital expenditures will be $200 million in 2007, which includes
anlicipated expenditures at the 13 U.S. sawmills to be acquired. Many of the planned
expenditures are for high pay-back items to enhance future profitability.

The acquisition of 13 U.S. sawmills, expected to close at the end of the first quarter of 2007, will
resull in greater geographic and product diversification for the Company. The Company believes
the long-term market fundamentals and outlook for the industry are positive. However, the recent
decline in UU.8. housing starts has resulted in low product prices for both the U.S. and Canadian
lumber industry and will result in the U.S. mills incurring losses until prices improve.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
PricewatethouseCoopers I'face
250 Howe Streel, Suite 700
Vancouver, British Columbia
Canada V6C 357

Telephone +1 604 806 7000
Facsimile +1 604 806 7804

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. as at December 31,
2006 and 2003 and the consolidated statements of carnings, retained earnings and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial slatements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations

and its eash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

%W@M LLP
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
February 15, 2007

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the Canadian firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the other member 1ims of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited. each of which is a separale and independent legal entity.




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at December 31, 2006 and 2005

{in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and short-term investments
Accounts receivable

Inventorics (note 4)

Prepaid expenses

Current assets held for sale (note 5)

Property, plant, equipment and timber (notc 6)
Deferred charges (note 7)

Goodwill

Other assets (note 8)

Long-term assets held for sale (notc 5)

Liabilities and Shareheolders® Equity

Current liabilities

Cheques issued in excess of funds on deposit
Operating loans (note 9)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Income taxes payable

Current portion of reforestation obligations (note 10)
Current portion of long-term debt (note 9)

Current liabilitics held for sale (note 5)

L ong-term debt (notc 9)
Other liabilities (note 10)

Future income taxes (note 20)
Long-term liabilities held for sale (note 5)

Shareholders’ equity (note 11}

Commitments (notc 12)

Approved by the Board of Directors

William P. Ketcham
Director :

2006 2005

$ 603,574 S 62,199
300,919 308,509

531,873 572,004

12,921 14,081

- 30,739

1,451,287 987,532
2,133,914 2,230,055

41,826 27,143

263,719 263,719

127,689 61,537

- 63,697

$ 4018435 $ 3,633,683
$ - 3% 43,899
- 165,111

468,429 333,075

178,861 4,661

54,222 52,319

128,284 4,500

_ 13,555

829,796 617,120

499,620 623,860

137,446 132,960

312,443 377,637

- 16,187

1,779,305 1,767,764
2,239,130 1,865,919

$ 4018435 § 3,633,683

f@%’é

J. Duncan Gibson
Director




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Earnings
For the vears ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except earnings per share)

Sales

Costs and expenses

Cost of products sold

Freight and other distribution costs
Export taxes

Amortization

Selling, general and administration
Share option recovery (note 2)
Restructuring charge (note 15)
Duty (refund) expense (note 16)

Operating earnings

Other

Interest income on duty refund

Intercst expense - net (note 17)

Exchange (loss) gain on long-term debt

Gain on sale of power purchase agreement (note 8)
Gain on asscts held for sale (note 5)

Gain on timber take-back (note 18)

Other income (expense) (note 19)

Earnings before income taxes and non-controlling interest

(Provision for) recovery of income taxes (notc 20)
Current
Future

Earnings before non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest

Earnings

Earnings per share (notc 21)

Basic

Diluted

2006 2005
$ 3,325,835  § 3,576,701
2,296,157 2,321,785
543.663 541,966
16,755 -
251,869 255,384
113,896 120,318
(1,233) (5,666)
37,631 -
(325,395) 151,431
2,933,343 3,385,218
392,492 191,483
50,032 -
(37,592) (48,424)
(720} 13,850
61,793 -
21,686 -
13,609 3,300
20,984 (8,771)
522,284 151,438
(181,741) (66,878)
57,885 24,581
(123,856) (42,297)
398,428 109,141
(431) (1,491)
$ 397,997 $ 107,650
$ 931 § 2.52
$ 923 §$ 249




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2006 2005

Retained carnings
Balance - beginning of vear ) 1,268,811 §$ 1,185,102
Change in accounting policy (note 2) (1,548) -
Earnings 397,997 107,650
1,665,260 1,292,752
Common share dividends {23,949) (23,941)

Balance - end of year ) 1,641311 § 1,268 811




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Earnings
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization
Writcdown of pulp assets (note 15)
Exchange loss (gain) on leng-term debt
Change 1n reforestation obligations
Change in other long-term liabilitics
Change in deferred charges
Future income taxes
Gain on asset sales
Other

Net change in non-cash working capital items

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt

{Repayment of) net proceeds from operating loans
Common sharc dividends

Issuance of Common shares (note 11)

Other

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant, equipment and timber

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, equipment and timber
Net proceeds from assets held for sale (note 5)

Addition to power purchase agreement (note 8)

Decrease in other assets

Increase (decrease) in cash
Net cash - beginning of year
Net cash - end of year

Net cash consists of
Cash and short-term investments
Cheques issued in excess of funds on deposit

Supplemental information
Interest paid

Income raxes paid

2006 2005
397,997 107,650
251,869 255,384

34,780 -
720 (13,850)
(6,266) (2,134)
12,043 (67,043)

(14,607) 9,101
(59,043) (24,326)
(98.,262) (3,171)

2,753 4,145
521,984 265,756
358,214 (236,053)
880,198 29,703

(1,200) (249,300)
(165,111) 99,111
(23,949) (23,941)
554 527
156 166
(189,550) (173,437)
(211,630) (224,401)
37,013 22,624
81,429 -
(17,527) -

7,341 14,248
(103,374) (187,529)
587,274 (331,263)

18,300 349,563
605,574 18,300
605,574 62,199

. (43,899)
605,574 18,300
40,760 50,219
73,335 243,662




West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

1

Nature of operations and significant accounting policies

Nature of aperations

The Cotnpany is an integrated forest products company producing lumber, panels and pulp and paper products.
Basis of presentation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements arc prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. Certain comparative figures have been reclassificd to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. Principal direct
and indircct operating subsidiaries are West Fraser Mills Ltd., West Fraser Forest Products Inc., Blue Ridge
Lumber Inc., Ranger Board Inc., Alberta Plywood Lid., West Fraser, Inc., (formerly West Fraser (South), Inc.),

Woest Fraser Newsprint Lid., and Sundre Forest Products Ltd.

Investments in and operations of the Company’s joint ventures are accounted for by the proportionate
consolidation method, except for consolidated variable interest entitics.

Revenue recognition

Revenucs are derived from product sales and arc recognized upon the transfer of significant risks and rewards
of ownership, provided collectibility is reasonably assured.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant areas requiring estimates are asset valuations,
reforestation obligations, other asset retirement obligations and employee future benefits. Actual amounts could
differ materially from those estimates.

Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics, including long-term debt, are translated into
Canadian dollars at the exchange ratcs prevailing at the end of the period. Other assets and liabilities and

income and expense items are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Resulting
exchange gains or losses are included in carnings.
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures arc in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

The Company’s forcign epcrations are considered 1o be integrated. Accordingly, monctary items are translated
at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet dates, and non-monctary items are translated at historical
cxchange rates. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange in effect during the period
in which they occur, except for amortization of asscts, which is translated at the same historical exchange raic
as the asset to which it relates. Gains or losses on the translation of monctary items are included in earnings.

Cash and short-term investments

Cash and short-term investments consist of cash on deposit and short-term interest-bearing securities with
maturities at their purchase date of three months or less.

Inventories

Inventories of logs and manufactured products arc valued at the lower of average cost and net realizable value.
Inventories of other raw materials, processing materials and supplics are valued at the lower of average cost and
replacement cost.

Property, plant, equipment and timber

Property, plant, cquipment and timber are stated at cost less aceumulated amortization. Major manufacturing
assets under construction include capitalized interest and preproduction and start-up costs, where applicable.
Expenditures for additions and improvements are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to earnings. Upon retirement, disposal or destruction of assets, the cost and related amortization are
removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in carnings.

Property, plant and equipment are principally amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

as follows:
Buildings 10 - 30 years
Manufacturing equipment and machinery 10 - 20 years
Fixtures and other equipment 3 - 10 years

Timber rights and roads are amortized over a period not exceeding 60 years.

Capitalized preproduction and start-up costs arc amortized over a period not cxceeding five years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchasc price paid for an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets

acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to an impairment test on at least an annual basis, or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicaie that it may be impaired.
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

Goodwill impairment is assessed based on a comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit to the undertying
carrying value of the reporting unit’s net assets, including goodwill. When the carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, the fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is compared with its carrying amount
10 measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews property, plant, equipment and timber for impairment whenever cvents or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Recoverability is assessed by
comparing the carrying amount to the projected future net cash flows the long-lived assets are expected to
generale.

Asset retirement obligatiens

The Company harvests timber under various timber rights. Estimated future reforestation obligations are
accrucd and charged to carnings at the time the timber is harvested. The reforestation obligation is reviewed
periodically and changes to estimates arc credited or charged to carnings.

The Company records the estimated fair value of a liability for other asset retirement obligations in the period a
reasonable cstimate of fair valuc can be made. The fair valuc is added to the carrying amount of the associated
assct and amortized over its useful life. The hability 1s accreted over time through periodic charges 1o carnings
and is reduced by actual costs of settlement.

Share-based compensation

The Company’s share option plan gives sharc option holders the right to elect to receive a cash payment in lieu
of cxercising the option to purchase Common shares. The Company records an expense or recovery for share
options, based on the quoted market value of the Company’s Common shares. If an option holder clects to
purchase Common shares, as opposed to receiving a cash payment, both the exercise price and the accrued
liability is credited to sharcholders’ equity.

The Company’s directors’ deferred share unit plan (“DDSU”) allows for scttlements in cash or Common shares
at the holder’s option and, therefore, 1s accounted for as a hability. Changes in the Company’s obligations
under the DDSU, which arise from fluctuations in the market price of the Company’s Common shares
underlying this plan, are recorded in selling, general and administration cxpenses.
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, cxcept where indicated)

Employee future benefits

The Company accrues for its obligations under employec benefit plans and the related costs net of plan assets.

The Company has adopted the following policies:

¢  The measurement date used for accounting purposes is October 31;

*  The cost of pensions carned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method
pro-rated on service and management’s estimate of cxpected plan investment performance, salary
escalation and retirement ages of employcecs;

*  For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value;

s Past service costs arising from plan amendments and transitional obligations are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated average remaining service period of employces active at the date of

thc amendments;

*  The cxcess of the net actuarial gain (loss) over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets is amortized over the average remaining service period of the active employecs,

For defined contribution plans, the pension expense is the amount of contributions the Company is required to
pay for services rendered by employees.

Income taxes

Future income taxes are provided for using the liability method. Under the hability method, future income taxes
are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and financial statement bases of assets, liabilities and
certain carry-forward items.

Future income tax assets are reccognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be

realized. Future income tax asscts and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on
the date of substantive enactment.
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

2

Change in accounting policy

Effective December 31, 2006 the Company adopted the new provision of the Emerging Issue Committee
proncuncement No. 162 for share-based compensation for directors, officers and employccs eligible to retire
before the vesting datc. Compensation expense is now recognized over the earlier of the normal vesting period
or the period from the grant date to the date the employee becomes cligible to retire. Pursuant to the transition
provision, the Company recorded an adjustment of $1,548 (nct of tax of $791) to opening 2006 retained
carnings for thc cumulative effect on prior years arising from this change in accounting policy. The Company
has not restated carnings of any prior period as a result of adopting this accounting change as the Company has
concluded that such an impact is not material. The fiscal 2006 income statement effect of adopting this change
in policy was an increase in earnings of $1,640 (net of tax of $838).

Investment in joint ventures

The Company’s joint venturcs arc Alberta Newsprint Company (50%) and Cariboo Pulp and Paper Company
(50%). The Company’s proportionate sharc of the joint ventures is as follows:

2006 2005
Current asscts $ 66,213 S 57,078
Non-current assets 174,158 149,096
Total asscts 240,371 206,174
Current liabilitics (26,877) (23,510)
Non-current liabilities (22,887) (22,396)
Equity 3 190,607 % 160,268
Sales $ 215,595 % 198,670
Costs and cxpenses (161,061) (186,472)
Earnings before income taxes $ 54534 § 12,198
Cash flows from operating activitics $ 54,595 § 40,607
Cash flows from financing activitics 5 127 % -
Cash flows from investing activitics b (22,230 § (10,403)

The Company has business transactions with certain of its joint venture participants and cntitics related to these
participants. All transactions arc at market prices and on normal business terms.
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West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2006 and 2005

(figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

4 1nventories

Logs and wood chips
Manufactured products
Processing materials and supplics

S Assets held for sale

2006 2005
170,318 $ 178,103
269,571 305,609

91,984 §8,292
531,873 § 572,004

The Company sold its interest in two sawmills and the related timber harvesting rights for net proceeds of
$79,228, rcsulting in a gain of $21,547. The Company also sold road maintenance and logging operations
located in Hinton, Alberta for proceeds of $2,201, resulting in a gain of $139.

The results of operations from these assets to the sale dates are included in carnings. Effective January 1, 2006,

amortization was discontinued on the as